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Corporate Profile
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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (“Shenzhou
International”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) is the
largest vertically integrated knitwear manufacturer in China. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of highend
knitwear on an OEM basis. The Group was also the knitwear
garment manufacturing enterprise with the largest exporting
amount of knitwear and ranked first among PRC garment exporting
enterprises according to the 2011-2014 reports on the development
of China’s garment industry and the 2011-2013 annual reports on
China’s international trade in textiles and clothing.

The Group’s production base is located in Economic Technical
Development Zone of Ningbo and Vietnam, and strategically set up
garment factories in Quzhou and Anging of China and Cambodia.
The Group also established sales offices or representative offices
in Shanghai, Hong Kong and Osaka. The Group currently had
over 67,390 employees and the area of the factories spans across
3,810,000 sg.m., which can produce various knitwear of over 270
million pieces per year.

The Group focuses on producing sports product, casual wear and
lingerie wear for major international renowned clients including
UNIQLO, ADIDAS, NIKE, and PUMA. The production market is also
gradually extending from Japan to Asia Pacific, Europe and the US
market.

Shenzhou International was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in November 2005 with an aim to
be the most competitive knitwear manufacturer in the world. The
stock code of the Company is 2313. Shenzhou International was
included in Hang Seng Composite Index, Hang Seng Composite
Industry Index (Consumer Goods) and Hang Seng Composite
MiddleCap Index, all effective from 8 March 2010. In June 2014,
Shenzhou International issued convertible bonds of HK$3.9 billion
in Hong Kong, of which the code is 5762. Meanwhile, Shenzhou
International was included in Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability
Index Series was effective from September 2015.

From the year 2010 to the year 2015, Shenzhou International has
been named in the “Top 1000 Asian Companies” List of Yazhou
Zhoukan and during the year 2010, it was recognised by Forbes
Asia as one of the “Best Under A Billion” Companies. Shenzhou
International was selected by Finet and QQ.COM as one of the “Top
100 HK Listed Companies 2012”. In addition, Shenzhou International
was recognized as the one of the “2015 Best Listed Company in
Corporate Governance” by Ta Kung Pao in November 2015. At
the same time, Shenzhou International was awarded “The Largest
Capitalization Private Company Award” in Mainland Enterprises
Listed in Hong Kong Ranking in 2014-2015 by Yazhou Zhoukan in
Year 2015.

BRI B B 45 @1 4% % 5 PR /A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Financial Highlights

BERFETENKEH

KEY FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE LAST
FIVE YEARS

BE+-A=t-ALEE/W+t=-A=t-A

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E-I1f - =% —T-CF —T——F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
TEHKEN Key Financial Information
(AE®FT) (RMB’000)
HEE Sales 12,639,332 11,131,532 10,047,217 8,937,578 9,043,442
BTSRRI FIE Profit before income tax 2,886,901 2,543,347 2,201,209 2,005,465 2,059,420
FEFH Profit for the year 2,354,842 2,066,630 1,803,912 1,621,480 1,704,847
ARFEREEA Profit attributable to equity
JE 15 78 owners of the Company 2,354,664 2,065,867 1,802,989 1,620,158 1,703,845
ERBEE Non-current assets 7,450,113 5,633,884 4,324,581 3,967,507 3,634,317
MBEE Current assets 10,911,501 10,309,144 6,992,693 5,927,902 4,915,242
nBaE Current liabilities 2,154,769 1,265,177 985,617 1,773,275 2,437,331
RBEEFE Net current assets 8,756,732 9,043,967 6,007,076 4,154,627 2,477,911
BEE Total assets 18,361,614 15,943,028 11,317,274 9,895,409 8,549,559
BEERTDAR Total assets less current liabilities 16,206,845 14,677,851 10,331,657 8,122,134 6,112,228
B Total equity 13,089,836 11,811,326 10,331,657 8,122,134 6,112,228
RekReZEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,815,678 1,428,074 2,609,050 2,144,405 1,029,596
TEHHILE Key Financial ratios
EME%) Gross profit margin (%) 30.5 29.0 28.3 28.5 28.8
FFIEE (%) Net profit margin (%) 18.6 18.6 18.0 18.1 18.9
FEXREELE%) Net gearing ratio (%) 15.0 12.6 TERN/A THERN/A 35
B X Current ratio 5.1 8.1 7.1 3.3 2.0
Rz BB (A) Accounts receivable
turnover period (days) 53 49 50 55 45
BEZRABH(A) Inventory turnover period (days) 121 116 110 111 107
N Notes:
1. FEARBEHRZAEAAIEE (BITEZR 1. Net gearing ratio represents the ratio between total borrowings (bank

MM ES) MR e MBS SEYRE
el i

loans plus convertible bonds), less cash and cash equivalents and total
equity.
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Financial Highlights

REmBRIMNAREEER

SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
PRODUCT CATEGORIES

BEt-A=+-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—E-If —ZT-WE =% ZT-ZF —T——F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
AR®T R % ARETT % ARETT % AREFT % AREFT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
REM By products
CE Sports wear 8,028,054 635 6,830,432 614 5561070 554 4994455 559 4949196 547
UNDES Casual wear 3,476,499  27.5 2,724,394 245 2,872,104 286 2,993,648 335 3,046,903  33.7
AKE Lingerie wear 1,022,233 81 1452274 130 1378932 137 701,766 7.8 799,391 8.8
Hipstm Other knitting 112,546 0.9 124,432 1.1 235,111 2.3 247,709 2.8 247,952 2.8
HEBBE Total sales 12,639,332 100.0 11,131,532 100.0 10,047,217 100.0 8,937,578 100.0 9,043,442 100.0
2.3%
8.19 0.9% 130 gl 13.7% ;
55.4%
63.5% 61.4%
2.8% 2.8%
7.8% 8.8%
559% 54.7%

EEN3E Sports

A1%3E Lingerie HAbét 4 Other knitting

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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BRTESHOWNANEBEIEL SALES OF THE GROUP ANALYZED BY
REGIONAL DISTRIBUTION

BEt-A=t-ALEE
For the year ended 31 December
—®-1% —Z-[mF —T-=F% —T-CF “EB——F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
AR®TR % AREBTR % ARETT % ARETT % ARETT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

Bmi5 By regions
B HE International sales
AR Japan 2,859,692 22.6 3,081,139 27.7 3,392,580 33.8 2,805,902 31.4 3,224,257 35.7
EYi Europe 2,319,860 18.4 1,929,613 17.3 1,744,070 17.4 1,849,436 20.7 1,949,355 21.6
£S5 us 1,588,689 12.6 1,300,040 1.7 900,013 8.9 727,913 8.1 516,420 5.7
Hitr Others 2,875,548 22.7 2,333,311 21.0 2,101,090 20.9 1,778,979 19.9 1,428,093 15.8
BAHEE Domestic sales 2,995,543 23.7 2,487,429 22.3 1,909,464 19.0 1,775,348 19.9 1,925,317 21.2
HEBA Total sales 12,639,332 100.0 11,131,532 100.0 10,047,217  100.0 8,937,678  100.0 9,043,442  100.0
22.6%

22.7% 21% 20.9%

12.6% 11.7%

35.7%

2011

19.9% 15.8%

5.7%

Hfhmi5 Others =B US
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Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

REGISTERED NAME

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

CHINESE NAME
FRNERR EEZER AR A A

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Guanlin

Mr. Ma Renhe

Ms. Zheng Miaohui

Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chen Genxiang

Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Qiu Weiguo

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenji

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Zheng Miaohui
Mr. Chan Tak Hing Keniji

KEY BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Jiang Xianpin (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Genxiang

Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Qiu Weiguo

Remuneration Committee
Mr. Chen Genxiang (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Renhe

Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Nomination Committee
Mr. Ma Jianrong (Chairman)
Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Qiu Weiguo

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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ROBFEETRE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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www.shenzhouintl.com
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2313

CIR-VIgE 3 i

5762

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 2708, 27th Floor

Billion Plaza

No. 8 Cheung Yue Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS
Allen & Overy

Lennon & Lawyers
Troutman Sanders

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Company Limited

Bank of Ningbo Company Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Citic Bank Corporation Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited

China Everbright Bank Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Company Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

INVESTOR AND PRESS RELATIONS ADVISER
iPR Ogilvy Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.shenzhouintl.com

STOCK CODE
2313

CONVERTIBLE BOND CODE
5762
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Chairman’s Statement

—
__...-"___,_.‘-'__‘_';.-

— -
e

BENRARER To Shareholders:

RNAZRKBMNEREBR AR AR ([ZA  On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”)
AAll)MESZE ([EFE2][EFE]) X of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
REMARBINEWB AR (KM IAEME] | am pleased to announce the annual results of the Company and
H[EEH]) T—AFELFEE WHES its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year of 2015 for
MR B shareholders’ review.

ER N BB 55 @142 R A BR A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
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In 2015, given the impact of economic downturn, the consumer
demand from overseas markets decreased in general while the
production costs of corporations in China kept rising and the export
amount of China’s garment products marked a decrease instead
of an increase as recorded last year. In response to the pressure
arising from surging costs and the different customs duty policies of
countries importing garment products from China, more and more
sizeable manufacturing enterprises opted to establish production
bases of their own in foreign countries, and the garment industry
in China shifted its development focus to detailed management
and innovative technologies, thus making the competition within
the industry more intense. The Group always upholds the principle
of “plan in advance to ensure implementation in a reliable way”
in its operation. In other words, we need to be the first to seize
emerging business opportunities on the one hand and to guarantee
healthy growth on the other hand. The Group continued to work on
the preliminary establishment of fabric plants and garment plants
in Vietham during the year. Accordingly, our overseas production
bases have taken the form of a vertically-integrated business
model initially, and lean production management has delivered
pleasing results by improving the production efficiency of overseas
plants significantly, which further enhanced the transformation and
upgrading processes based on development concept of “innovation
and legal compliance”. Amidst the gloomy business environment in
2015, the Group managed to deliver satisfactory operating results by
registering the highest sales revenue and earnings than ever. | would
like to extend my gratitude to all our staff members for their efforts
and hope that they can be committed to enhancing the interests
of our clients in all aspects, adhere to our business philosophy
of “quality always comes first and development originates from
innovation” and provide consumers with products of the best quality.
| also hope that investors will acknowledge our results and render
continuous support to the business development strategy of the

Group.
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Chairman’s Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group achieved
outstanding growth in sales revenue and operating results. Total
sales for the year amounted to approximately RMB12,639,332,000,
representing an increase of 13.5% when compared to
2014. The profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted
to RMB2,354,664,000, representing an increase of 14.0% as
compared to RMB2,065,867,000 reported for the year ended 31
December 2014. Earnings per share amounted to RMB1.68. As of
31 December 2015, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
RMB1,815,678,000.

In view of the promising business performance and the healthy
financial position of the Group, the Board of the Company
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$1.07 per share
(including a special dividend of HK$0.35 per share), equivalent to

approximately RMBO0.90 per share.

According to the statistics compiled by China Customs, the total
export value of China’s textile and garment products (including
textile yarns, fabrics and related products, as well as garments and
apparel accessories, similarly hereinafter) for 2015 was US$283.85
billion, representing a decrease of approximately 4.9% over the
previous year. Out of the total export value, the export value of textile
products amounted to US$109.52 billion, representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 2.3%; the garment export volume
dropped by approximately 6.4% to US$174.33 billion on a year-on-
year basis. Among the major textile and garment export markets,
the export volume to the U.S. have increased year-on-year by 6.7%
while the export volume to the EU and Japan dropped year-on-year
by 9.4% and 11.7% respectively. The proportion of China’s garment
products to the total import volume of their respective markets kept
diminishing. Upon the official implementation of the Trans-Pacific
Partnership Agreement (the “TPP”), the U.S. market for China's

textile and garment products will be adversely affected.

BRI B B 45 11 4% % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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In 2015, the garment industry in China was under suppressed
conditions as a whole. Given the ageing population, the size of
labour force in China showed a descending trend for years. After
years of rapid development, labour costs and prices of raw materials
were significantly higher than those of other garment manufacturing
nations. The exchange rate of Renminbi against U.S. dollar recorded
a moderate depreciation during the year. However, the cumulative
appreciation in the exchange rate between Renminbi and other major
currencies, including U.S. dollars, Euro and Japanese Yen, recorded
since the reform of Renminbi exchange rate mechanism launched in
2005 is still high relatively. EU and Japan have not exhibited explicit
signs of economic recovery up till now. In order to address the
environmental issues mounted up from the rapid development for
decades, especially the impact of air and water pollution on the life
quality of people in China, the government of China tightened the
regulatory framework and policies in this respect, thereby pushing
up the related costs incurred by corporations. Thanks to the lowered
demand and the substantial price drop of crude oil, the prices of our
raw materials, namely cotton yarn and chemical fibre, were at their
historical low, thus alleviating the pressure arising from surging costs

of the industry to a certain extent.

In response to the economic downturn, the government of China
ramped up its support to the real economy by streamlining the
administrative approval procedures, speeding up the grant of
approvals, adjusting the taxation policy to alleviate tax burdens
of corporations in an effective way, encouraging competitive
corporations to establish production plants and invest in foreign
countries and taking an active role in inducing and assisting
corporations in innovative transformation. In 2015, the central
bank of China cut the deposit and lending rates and the reserve

requirement ratio for 5 times, thus implying an easier monetary

policy.
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Chairman’s Statement
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The demand in the global market was far from satisfactory, but
the growth of Vietnam’s garment export trended upward still.
According to statistics of the Vietnam Customs, Vietnam’s textile
and garment export (excluding textile yarns) for 2015 amounted to
about US$22.81 billion,

as compared to last year; of which exports to the U.S. amounted

representing an increase of about 9.1%
to approximately US$10.96 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of about 11.6%. Upon the official implementation of the
TPP, products from Vietham will be much more competitive in the
U.S. market. According to statistics of China Customs, fabrics
exported to Vietnam from China in 2015 amounted to US$8.16
billion approximately, representing an increase of about 14.6%. Since
garment products made in Vietnam still rely on fabrics imported
from China, corporations boasting the integrated production model
will be highly competitive in Vietnam. In recent years, Vietnam has
endeavoured to attract foreign investment, which might push up the

prices of raw materials and the labour costs rapidly.

During the year, the Company provided all professional committees
with sufficient resources required for performing their respective
duties. The Board also collaborated closely with all professional
committees and maintained efficient communication between
those committees. All these efforts led to fruitful results. Staff
members of the Company are committed to the highest standard
of corporate governance, and are determined to build a fair and
impartial decision-making process. By ensuring a high degree of
transparency, the Company will exert every effort to provide an open

communication channel for all shareholders and investors.

BRI B B 45 @1 4% % 5 PR /A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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I would like to express my sincere gratitude towards my fellow
Directors for their valuable contributions over the past year. | would
also like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to the management staff
of all levels, as well as all the staff members for their devotion and
loyalty towards the Company. It is your hard work that accomplishes
the Group’s established target for the year. | hope that all staff
members will cherish our fruitful results and uphold our core value of
“quality always comes first” by providing our clients with products of
the best quality with our genuine craftsmanship against the backdrop
of the challenging market conditions in the future. | would like to
thank our shareholders, customers and suppliers for their long-
lasting trust in the Company. | hope that we will continue to gain your

support in our future development!

As to our operating strategy in the future, the Group’s sustainable
development will take the top priority, and the Group will step up our
investment in research and development for the sake of enhancing
our ability in innovation, and will also facilitate the plan of automated
production and the use of information technology by applying
modern technologies, thus securing a larger market share with our

efficiency and service quality.

The Group will spare no effort to provide our staff members with
promising working environment and a decent career path, and will
bring to its customers a more comprehensive service mix, and to

create remarkable returns for shareholders.

Ma Jianrong

Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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Diversify the products,

explore quality clients and optimize
production process to enhance the

Group’s competitiveness
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OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

In the year of 2015, consumption demand was weak in the global
market. The continuously high production cost in Mainland China
and the implementation of Trans-Pacific Partnership Agreement
had adversely affected the Chinese textile and garment industry.
Following the financial crisis in 2009, the export value of the
entire industry recorded its first decline. The depreciation of RMB
against US dollar, the fall of cotton price and the further narrowed
price discrepancy between domestic and overseas markets had
appropriately released the industry’s operating pressure; further,
the Chinese government continued to strengthen the support to the
textile and garment industry by allowing accelerated depreciation of
fixed assets newly acquired by the industry, supporting enterprises
to enhance technology research and development as well as
equipment modification - encouraging competitive enterprises “going
global” to set up overseas production base etc. These policies will
be conducive to the innovation and transformation of the textile
and garment industry. In recent years, the Chinese government
also promoted bilateral or multilateral agreement, such as the
successful conclusions of free trade agreements in 2015 between
China and Korea, as well as China and Australia. The prevailing
operating environment created both pressure and opportunities to
the development of Chinese textile and garment industry.
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According to the data announced by the Chinese customs, in 2015,
the total export value of Chinese textile and garment products
(including textile yarns, fabrics and related products, as well as
garments and apparel accessories, similarly hereinafter) amounted
to US$283.85 billion, representing a decrease of approximately
4.9% year-on-year. Out of the total export value, the export value
of textile export amounted to US$109.52 billion, decreased by
approximately 2.3% over the previous year; the garment export
value amounted to US$174.33 billion, down by approximately
6.4% vyear-on-year, of which the knitwear export value accounted
for US$73.80 billion, decreased by approximately 9.7% year-on-
year. The garment export value dropped more significantly than
that of textile, while the knitwear export value had declined for
two consecutive years and the drop was greater than the average
decrease of garment for the same period. In 2015, the three major
importers, namely the EU, the US and Japan, together accounted
for 43.2% (2014: 42.9%) of China’s total export value of textile and
apparel products, of which exports to the EU decreased by 9.4%
year-on-year to US$53.13 billion; exports to the US gained 6.7%
year-on-year to US$47.74 billion; and exports to Japan dropped by
11.7% year-on-year to US$21.65 billion. Hence, export growth was
only registered for the US market, while the export to the EU and
Japan recorded a significant drop, particularly the export value for
Japan had contracted for three consecutive years which was mainly
due to the diminishing consumption demand in Japan market and
the continuous shift of its procurement activities to Southeast Asia
countries with lower price level. Recently, the import percentage of
imported Chinese textile and apparel products in those three main
markets has been declining. In addition, exports to ASEAN countries
dropped by 0.8% to US$35.82 billion, of which textile export
amounted to US$23.67 billion, representing an increase of 6.5%
year-on-year. Currently, ASEAN countries still mainly rely on textile
raw materials from China.

In 2015, the top five coastal provinces in terms of textile and
garment export value together accounted for 73.7% (2014: 70.5%)
of the total export value of China, representing an increase of 3.2
pp over the previous year. The export value of Zhejiang Province
decreased by 3.2% over the previous year to US$68.71 billion, and
that of Guangdong Province increased by 8.0% over the previous
year to US$52.22 billion. The export value of Jiangsu Province
amounted to US$44.07 billion, down by 4.0% over the previous year,
and those of Fujian Province and Shandong Province were US$22.90
billion and US$21.28 billion, up by 0.1% and down by 4.1% over
the previous year respectively. The export of coastal provinces was
better than the country’s average level, suggesting that the drive
to trigger a shift to the central and western area was not strong
enough.
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According to statistics released by the General Administration of
Customs of China, the total import and export value of China’s
foreign trade in 2015 was US$3,958.64 billion, decreased by 8.0%
over 2014. The total export value and the total import value were
US$2,276.57 billion and US$1,682.07 billion respectively, down by
2.8% and 14.1% respectively as compared to 2014. During the year,
China’s import and export trade surplus amounted to US$594.50
billion, increased by US$212.04 billion as compared to the
US$382.46 billion reported in 2014, representing a growth rate of
55.4%. According to statistics released by the State Administration
of Foreign Exchange, as of 31 December 2015, the country’s foreign
exchange reserves amounted to US$3,330.36 billion, representing a
decrease of US$512.66 billion as compared to the end of last year.
Despite the large amount of import and export trade surplus, capital
outflows are obvious.

According to the primary statistics from the General Department of
Vietnam Customs, the export value of Vietnam'’s textile industry was
about US$25.35 billion in 2015, representing an increase of 8.1%
over the previous year. The export value of textile and garment was
about US$22.81 billion, representing an increase of 9.1% over the
previous year; while the export value of yarn dropped 0.1% year-
on-year to about US$2.54 billion. Vietnam’s textiles and garments
were mainly exported to the US, Japan and South Korea, with export
values of US$10.96 billion, US$2.79 billion and US$2.13 billion,
respectively, representing growth rates of 11.6%, 6.3% and 1.9%
respectively over 2014; Vietnam’s yarns export mainly went to China,
with export value increased by 9.7% to approximately US$1.37
billion over the last year. According to the data compiled by the
Chinese Customs, the textile export from China to Vietnam increased
by approximately 9.8% to approximately US$10.39 billion in 2015,
out of which fabrics export was approximately US$8.16 billion,
representing a surge of approximately 14.6% over the previous
year, and accounted for approximately 14.9% of China’s total
fabrics export. Vietnam is the largest importing country for China’s
fabrics. On 4 February 2016, 12 countries including the US, Japan,
Vietnam and Malaysia have duly signed the Trans-Pacific Partnership
(TPP) Agreement. Vietnam, as one of the member countries, will
benefit from the garment industry to the greatest extent. However,
in the short term, Vietnam will still be dependent on the import of
fabrics for garment manufacturing, which will limit the export growth
of Viethamese garment products. In addition, with the introduction
of larger scale of foreign investment, resource prices and labor costs
will be rising rapidly in Vietnam.
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During the year, the exchange rate of RMB against US dollar
depreciated by approximately 5.8% at the middle rate, which had
changed the situation of continuing appreciation of RMB over the
years. According to the forward exchange rate of RMB against
US dollar in the financial market, RMB is expected to continue
its downward trend against US dollar, which is favorable to the
textile and garment exporting enterprises who mainly settle in US
dollar. RMB appreciated against the Euro by approximately 5.1%,
the continuing depreciation of the Euro and the unstable economy
affected the consumption demand for imports in the EU zone. RMB
depreciated against the Japanese yen by approximately 4.6%.
Following a significant depreciation, the exchange rate of Japanese
yen became comparatively stable. From the RMB exchange
rate regime reforms in 2005 to the end of 2015, the cumulative
appreciation in the exchange rate of RMB against the Euro and
Japanese yen are 41.14% and 35.61% respectively.

In 2015, the gross domestic product (“GDP”) of Mainland China
grew by 6.9% over the previous year to about RMB67.7 trillion.
The economic growth had moderated continuously. According to
the statistics bulletin for the year 2015 announced by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, at the end of 2015, the population
aged between 16 and 59 in Mainland China was 910.96 million,
reduced by 4.87 million as compared to 2014; while the population
aged 60 and above was 222 million, increased by 9.58 million as
compared to last year. The aging population is becoming serious.
From 1 January 2016, China will fully implement a policy that all
couples can have two children, which would help the improvement of
population structure but it is unable to solve the problem of declining
labor force. The labor-intensive industry will be under prolonged
pressure arising from the shortage of labor supply and the change of
recruitment market. To enhance the level of automation and cross-
border industrial transfer had become the counter strategy of the

garment manufacturing enterprises in China.
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According to the information released by the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, China’s cotton cultivation area in 2015 was 3.8
million hectares, decreased by 0.42 million hectares as compared
to the previous year, representing a decrease of 10%. Cotton
production output for the year was 5.61 million tons, representing a
drop of 9.3% over the previous year. The cultivation area for cotton
in China had declined for four consecutive years. According to the
information released by the United States Department of Agriculture
(USDA) in February 2016, the world’s cotton production output in
2015/16 is estimated to be about 22.07 million tons, representing a
decrease of about 3.87 million tons, or about 14.9%, as compared
to 2015/16. The world’s cotton consumption in 2015/16 is about
23.86 million tons, representing a decrease of 0.15 million tons,
or about 0.6%, when compared to 24.01 million tons in 2014/15.
The world’s cotton carryover inventory stocks amounted to 22.66
million tons, representing a decrease of about 7% when compared
to the previous year. Inventory consumption ratio was about 95%.
The cotton inventory in China is estimated to be about 14.05
million tons, accounting for about 62% of the global stock. China’s
cotton consumption accounts for about 29% of the world’s total
consumption and cotton import accounts for about 14% of the
world’s total import. It is expected that the share of China’s cotton
consumption and import volume in the world’s total volume will
continue to decline. According to the research conducted by the
Institute of Cotton Research of CAAS, the cotton cultivation area in
2016 is expected to drop by 8.8% in Mainland China. Though the
production output of cotton dropped significantly, the sharp fall of
crude oil price led to an increasing substitution effect of chemical
fibre on cotton, and the high inventory level of cotton also resulted in
historically low cotton price.

In 2015, the consumer price index rose by 1.4% as compared to
2014, the growth in consumer price narrowed continuously. The
producer price for manufactured goods dropped by 5.2% in 2015,
the decrease was enlarged by further 3.3 pp as compared to last
year. Given the increasing pressure on the economic downturn,
the monetary policies in China were loosened. During the year, the
People’s Bank of China cut the Renminbi benchmark deposit and
loan rate and the deposit reserve ratio for five times. The one-year
benchmark lending rate in financial institutions was lowered by 1.25
pp to 4.35%; one year benchmark deposit rate was also reduced by
1.25 pp to 1.5%. It also opened up cap for deposit floating interest
rate and promoted market-oriented interest rate.
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In light of the declining consumption demand in most of the
international markets (except for the US) declined, rising production
costs of domestic enterprises, tightened environmental requirements
imposed by the Chinese government and different import tariff
levied by importing countries on products from various origins, key
consumer markets are gradually increasing the import volume from
lower cost countries such as Vietnam. As such, China’s textile
and garment industry is facing dual operating pressure: falling
demand and surging costs. The export value of China’s textile and
garment products is expected to go down with further reduction
in market share in key markets such as the US, EU and Japan.
Small and medium enterprises that rely on price competition with
zero innovation capability will gradually fade out. On the other
hand, enterprises with better foundation may “go global” to set
up overseas production base while transforming and upgrading
their domestic bases to gain more market share by offering
comprehensive services to clients.

BUSINESS REVIEW

China’s labor cost kept rising in 2015. Due to insufficient global
demand and shift of procurement activities away from China, the
export value of China’s garment dropped for the first time in five
years. China’s garment manufacturing industry was facing dual
pressure in terms of surging costs and insufficient demand. To
counter such unfavorable operating environment, the Group moved
early to set up overseas production bases and preliminarily formed
an integrated production model. Production efficiency is further
enhanced by deepening and improving production management
and keeping staff settled. The Group also reinforced its effort in
exploring the application of automatic production model to curb the
pressure on rising labor costs. During the year, the Group maintained
outstanding growth in revenue and achieved decent operating
results. In 2015, the revenue and profit attributable to equity
holders increased by 13.5% and 14.0% respectively over 2014,
both reaching historical high levels. We believe that with the large-
scaled production of the Group’s overseas production bases, better
production facilities will be provided to different sales markets of our
customers.
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Construction of overseas bases

After the Phase | project of the fabric factory in Vietham commenced
production in November 2014, the construction of the Phase
Il project was also basically completed during the year. The
operation management of the fabric factory in Vietnam had become
comparatively stable through its own continuous improvements
and operation trainings, as well as the counter assistance from
each department of the Group. The factory is ready for further
expansion that they have adequate management talents for more
fabric projects. The construction of production plant and all kinds
of facilities for the new garment factory in Vietnam was basically
completed during the year and recruitment was in process. Besides
expanding its production scale for garment in Vietnam, the Group
also emphasizes the control of product quality and delivery period.
We enhance our capacity progressively and steadily to procure the
protection of the overall interest of clients and gradually provide
services to more clients. Presently, fabrics used for garment
manufacturing at overseas bases are basically supplied by the fabric
factory in Vietnam. Ancillary procedures of garment manufacturing
such as printing and embroidery also started simultaneously, initially
forming an integrated production model of overseas bases.

Lean production management

During the year, the Group had been further reinforcing its lean
production management by strengthening industrial project
analysis and materials management. Stability of staff turnover was
maintained via vocational trainings and employees’ care campaigns.
Production efficiency was further raised during the year, especially
in the garment factory in Cambodia and Anhui, the Group had
therefore over-achieved its business growth target even the garment
productivity in Vietnam was still in preliminary stage. The Group
had implemented lean production for years, in which the focus was
switched from labor-intensive garment process to improvement of
the entire production chain during the year.
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Facilitate transformation and upgrade

As Chinese industry had become less competitive, the Group
aggressively facilitated the transformation and upgrade of domestic
production bases. With the enterprise’s continuous innovation and
compliance as its development foundation; quality products and
all-round services as its competitive edges, the Group had lifted
the competitiveness of its domestic bases under the unfavorable
operating environment. In meeting the target of staff reduction, the
Group built a Corporate Innovation Centre to enhance production
automation by replacing human with machinery gradually. We also
expect to establish a system to continuously explore production
model for future. Besides, a sustainable group-level department was
set up to reinforce the corporate’s management in environmental
protection, energy conservation and emission reduction, human
resources and risk control, so as to facilitate the long-term
development of the Group. We optimized talents introduction
system, provided a good working environment and further
strengthened the R&D and innovation of new fabric to progressively
enhance the Group’s differentiated advantages in quality and
environmental protection, as well as raise the additional value of the
products.

Optimize product structure

During the year, the Group had further optimized its product
structure. Revenue from sportswear products represented 63.5% of
total revenue, in which the proportion of new fabric products rose
further. Proportion in sales to core clients continued increasing.
On the premise of satisfying the demand of core clients, we also
introduced certain quality new clients. For retail business, the
Group sustained stable growth. At present, the total number of the
Group’s directly-managed stores is 47, which are mainly located
in cities within the Yangtze River Delta region. In view of the huge
consumption demand in domestic market, there are opportunities for
retail business.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenues

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015 amounted to
approximately RMB12,639,332,000, representing an increase
of RMB1,507,800,000 or about 13.5% when compared to
RMB11,131,532,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
increase in revenue was mainly due to: (1) satisfactory revenue
growth in sportswear; (2) the increase in productivity of the factories
in Vietnam and Cambodia; and (3) the continuous increase in

production efficiency of the Group.

UWTEREE _Z—AFER_ZT—WNFE The comparison of the revenue of the Group for 2015 and 2014 by
RERERDITHHEEELER: product categories is as follows:
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
—E-RfF —mF 28
2015 2014 Change
AREBT R % ARETT % ARETT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
RE By products
EE Sports wear 8,028,054 63.5 6,830,432 61.4 1,197,622 17.5
NGIE: Casual wear 3,476,499 27.5 2,724,394 24.5 752,105 27.6
WK Lingerie wear 1,022,233 8.1 1,452,274 13.0 (430,041) (29.6)
H it Other knitwear 112,546 0.9 124,432 1.1 (11,886) (9.6)
HE B Total revenue 12,639,332 100.0 11,131,532 100.0 1,507,800 13.5

HE_Z-—RAF+-_A=Z+—BULEFE &
B E o2 HE A A AR8,028,054,000
T REEZFE-NF+ A=+ —HLEFE
7y 2 84 & B 4 A R #6,830,432,0007T * # 1
7 AR #1,197,622,0007T ' 118 A£17.5% °
BYEEMCHEERIZRERERER
BREMSBRPRREAEMSZHERKEHA-

For the year ended 31 December 2015, revenue from sale of
sportswear amounted to approximately RMB8,028,054,000,
representing an increase of RMB1,197,622,000 or 17.5% from
approximately RMB6,830,432,000 for the year ended 31 December
2014. The increase in revenue from sales of sportswear was mainly
attributable to the increase in demands of international brands in the
Europe and US as well as the mainland China.
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Revenue from sale of casual wear increased from
RMB2,724,394,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
RMB3,476,499,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015,
representing an increase of RMB752,105,000 or approximately
27.6%, which was mainly attributable to the increase in demand for
purchase of casual wear in Japan and mainland China.

Revenue from sale of lingerie products dropped from
RMB1,452,274,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
RMB1,022,233,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015,
representing a decrease of RMB430,041,000 or approximately
29.6%, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in demand for
purchase of lingerie in Japan.

The comparison of the revenue of the Group for 2015 and 2014 by
market regions is as follows:

BLE+T-A=+t—HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

—E-AHfF —E-mF BE
2015 2014 Change

ARBTT % AREFT % AREFTT %
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %

B5 By market regions
HAR Japan 2,859,692 22.6 3,081,139 27.7 (221,447) (7.2)
BUM Europe 2,319,860 18.4 1,929,613 17.3 390,247 20.2
ES us 1,588,689 12.6 1,300,040 11.7 288,649 22.2
Hip Others 2,875,548 22.7 2,333,311 21.0 542,237 23.2

BREHENET Sub-total for

international sales 9,643,789 76.3 8,644,103 7.7 999,686 11.6
NiHE Domestic sales 2,995,543 23.7 2,487,429 22.3 508,114 20.4
SHE 5T Total revenue 12,639,332 100.0 11,131,532 100.0 1,507,800 13.5

BE_Z—AFE+-_A=+—BILFE"
AEEBRBAMENEERENARARKE
2,859,692,0007T B EZE-_ZFT—WFE+ A
=+—HIEFERL AKRES081,139,000
TR T AR #ED21,447,0007T 0 R 1B B4
72% T ERAAMBZRELEOBRERZ
TR RSB BARTS 2 WK REH
BT bboh - AEBAER T 2o B AR N
KPP ZAIEo

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s revenue from
the Japanese market was approximately RMB2,859,692,000,
representing a decrease of RMB221,447,000 or approximately 7.2%
as compared to approximately RMB3,081,139,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2014, which was mainly attributable to the
decrease in import demand for garment in Japan, and the decline
in sales of lingerie of the Group in Japan. In addition, the Group
reduced orders from some of its small and medium Japanese clients.
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MHZHE -

The Group’s revenue from the European market for the year ended
31 December 2015 amounted to approximately RMB2,319,860,000,
representing an increase of RMB390,247,000 or approximately
20.2% from approximately RMB1,929,613,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014. The Group’s sale in the EU market was facilitated
by the relatively favorable tariff policies in the EU towards garment
products from Cambodia, and the increase in efficiency and garment
productivity in the Group’s factory in Cambodia.

The Group’s revenue from the US market for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to approximately RMB1,588,689,000,
representing an increase of RMB288,649,000 or approximately
22.2% from RMB1,300,040,000 for the year ended 31 December
2014, which was mainly attributable to the rapid increase in demand
for sportswear of the Group. The US economic recovery and the
appreciation of the exchange rate of US dollar against RMB led to
stronger demand for garment consumption in the US market.

The Group maintained its satisfactory revenue growth in other
markets including Korea, Russia and Hong Kong. Revenue from
other markets for the year ended 31 December 2015 surged by
23.2% as compared with last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the revenue of the Group
from domestic market increased 20.4% as compared with last
year, with sales of apparels in the domestic market amounted to
approximately RMB2,883,217,000, representing an increase of
RMB510,271,000 or approximately 21.5% from RMB2,372,946,000
last year. Sales growth in the domestic market was mainly from the
sales of international brand clients in the domestic market.
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Cost of sales and gross profit

The Group’s cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2015 amounted to approximately RMB8,790,416,000 (2014:
RMB7,904,911,000). The Group’s gross profit margin of sales in
2015 was 30.5%, representing an increase of approximately 1.5
percentage point when compared to 29.0% in 2014. During the
year, major factors affecting the gross profit margin included: (1) the
enhanced employee stability and the lean production management
resulted in improvement in production efficiency; (2) the product
structure of the Group continued to optimize; (3) the depreciation
of exchange rate of RMB against US; and (4) the decrease in prices
of cotton and oil resulted in decline of procurement cost of raw
materials, while the hike in labor costs offset the increase of the
gross profit margin.

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company amounted to RMB13,074,120,000
(2014: RMB11,795,569,000),
current assets, non-current liabilities and equity attributable
to non-controlling interests amounted to RMB7,450,113,000
(2014: RMB5,633,884,000), RMB8,756,732,000 (2014:
RMB9,043,967,000), RMB3,117,009,000 (2014: 2,866,525,000) and
RMB15,716,000 (2014: RMB15,757,000), respectively. The increase
in equity attributable to equity holders of the Company was mainly

of which non-current assets, net

attributable to the increase in retained earnings during the year.

Liquidity and financial resources

For the year ended 31 December 2015, net cash generated
from the Group’s operating activities amounted to approximately
RMB2,259,107,000; in 2014, it was approximately
RMB1,918,441,000. Cash and cash equivalents of the Group as
at 31 December 2015 amounted to RMB1,815,678,000, of which
RMB1,038,440,000 was denominated in RMB, RMB735,870,000
was denominated in US dollar, RMB24,531,000, was denominated
RMB11,510,000 was denominated in
Euro, RMB4,830,000 was denominated in Vietnamese dong

in Hong Kong dollar,

and the remaining balance was denominated in other currencies
(2014: RMB1,428,074,000, of which RMB985,855,000 was
denominated in RMB, RMB407,494,000 was denominated in US
RMB32,580,000 was denominated in Hong Kong dollar
and the remaining balance was denominated in other currencies).
The balance of bank borrowings was RMB656,851,000 (2014:
RMB46,737,000),

dollar,

all being short-term bank borrowings. The
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outstanding balance of the debt component of convertible
bonds was RMB3,117,009,000 (as at 31 December 2014:
RMB2,864,675,000). Net borrowings (bank borrowings and the
balance of the debt component of convertible bonds less cash and
cash equivalents) of the Group as at 31 December 2015 amounted
to RMB1,958,182,000, which increased by RMB474,844,000 as
compared to RMB1,483,338,000 as at 31 December 2014, mainly
attributable to the increase in capital expenditure of overseas
production bases during the year.

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted
to RMB13,074,120,000 (2014: RMB11,795,569,000). The Group
was in a good cash flow position, with a debt to equity ratio
(total outstanding borrowings (including the balance of the debt
component of convertible bonds) as a percentage of equity
attributable to the equity holders of the Company) was 28.9% (2014
24.7%).
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The Company issued convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$3,900,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,097,380,000 if calculated at the exchange rate of
HK$1=RMBO0.7942 on 18 June 2014 (the “Issue Date”)), bearing
a coupon rate of 0.5% and payable semi-annually. The maturity
date of convertible bonds is on 18 June 2019 (the “Maturity Date”),
unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased, cancelled or
otherwise provided in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The
Company will redeem the convertible bonds at 103.86% of their
principal amounts on the Maturity Date. The initial conversion price
of the bonds is HK$38.56 per share and the current conversion
price after the adjustment on 13 June 2015 is HK$38.00 per share
(subject to further adjustment in accordance with its terms and
conditions). The maximum number of shares to be issued upon full
conversion of the convertible bonds under the above conversion
price will be 102,631,579 shares. On the Issue Date, the initial
recognition amount of RMB2,846,450,000 for the liability component
of the bonds was calculated using a market interest rate of 3.55%
for a non-convertible bond of the same class. Equity component
amount of RMB197,140,000 was credited to the reserves of
shareholders’ equity. Net proceeds from the issue of these bonds
were approximately HK$3,832,271,000, which was intended to be
used for business expansion and for general corporate purpose.
As at 31 December 2015, approximately HK$3,454,539,000 of the
proceeds from such issue had been utilized for expansion of the
Vietnam production bases and as general working capital.

As part of the Group’s overall treasury management policy, the
Company purchased financial products (including entrusted loans,
available-for-sale investments, pledged deposits and structured
deposits) from licensed banks in the PRC to maximize return on
the Group’s idle cash through a legal and low-risk channel. The
applicable size test results in respect of the purchases of these
financial products are all below 5% and thus, these purchases are
not subject to the notifiable transaction requirements under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules (as defined below). The purchases of these
financial products were approved by an investment and lending
committee established by the Board to monitor the execution of the
Company’s treasury management policy. Details of these financial
products can be found in notes 21, 22, 24 and 25 to the Financial
Statements contained in this annual report.
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Pledge of the Group’s assets

As at 31 December 2015, bank balances of 208,046,335 US dollars,
5,800,000,000 Japanese yen, 14,000,000 Euro and 22,865,854
Swiss francs (totaling approximately RMB1,830,908,000) (2014:
US$144,854,052, equivalent to approximately RMB893,483,000)
were pledged until certain foreign currency swaps held by the Group
are settled. The pledged deposits carry interest at fixed rates ranging
from 1.2% to 2.9% per annum.

Finance costs and tax

For the year ended 31 December 2015, finance costs increased
from RMB46,442,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014 to
RMB98,733,000, mainly due to the increase of interest expenditure
of the convertible bonds. During the year, the Group’s US dollar
annual borrowing rate ranged from 2.6% to 3.0% (2014: the US
dollar annual borrowing rate ranged from 2.6% to 2.8%).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, income tax expense of the
Group amounted to RMB532,059,000, representing an increase
of RMB55,342,000 when compared to income tax expense of
RMB476,717,000 for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
increase in income tax expense was mainly due to the increase in
taxable profit of the Group.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE PLACING OF
NEW SHARES AND ALTERNATIVE FUNDING OF
THE COMPANY

The placing of new shares in April 2012

The Company completed a placing of 85,000,000 new shares
on 26 April 2012 and raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$1,158,650,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB939,548,000
based on the exchange rate of HK dollar against RMB of
HK$1:RMB0.8109) after related share issue expenses. The intended
use of the proceeds from the placing of new shares and the actual
use of those proceeds during the year are set out as follows:

° an amount of approximately RMB608,174,000 shall be used to
establish new textile production facilities in Mainland China and
to purchase and construct the relevant equipment and plants.
As of 31 December 2015, the amount had been fully utilized;

° an amount of approximately RMB121,635,000 shall be used to
set up new garment production facilities and to purchase the
relevant production equipment. As of 31 December 2015, the
amount had been fully utilized;

° an amount of approximately RMB81,090,000 shall be used to
expand the Group’s retail network. As of 31 December 2015,
the amount had been fully utilized; and

° an amount of approximately RMB128,649,000 shall be used
to repay part of the Group’s short-term bank loans. As of 31
December 2015, the amount had been fully utilized.

As of 31 December 2015, all proceeds had been utilized. For details
of such placing of new shares, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 16 April 2012 and 26 April 2012.

Annual Report 2015 £ ¥

33



34

EEENmR O - KER

R - 5O RE N R R AT = B R

Management Discussion and Analysis - Operating Environment, Business Review and Future Prospects and Strategies

TE-ZERAZEBEFR
ARARIRZE—ZFNAZ+N\BEKESE
69,000,000/ 7 i 17 - 75 F0 Br 46 BE AR 19 3517
B X 1% FT 18 BB BE4) B1,527,464,000/5 7T
(BEAE—BITHARE ZIEXR0.79655TE
éa ARB#1,216,626,0007T) ° 3% X B &
MRS REZRERRNOT

s MFEFREBAREMmSZHERE
BMIEBEBE2EERE([BEIEBEE]) 4
777,000,000 T AR EEMEIEE F
—ﬁ'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgimﬁ%%~%ﬁ
BFREIBE HEHESKELR
R BEMSELREES R

. #4258 #7750,464,0007% 7T #5 F3 7> B 72 i
MEBEFE_H THE—REELES-

i

NTE S Jn Y
M

—AF+T-A=t+t—HB1t ZRER
FIRC2HEM - ZREEFR 2515 -
J%ﬁ$ﬁ7ﬁ T-=FX"A+/\H

ﬁ“

o
b
EE'“‘

—=FRNAZTNBZRE -HBER
HEAZ2E_T—=FAA-_+/\BR

==

[

D oIm oA g

ell]
v 3

>

The placing of new shares in June 2013

The Company completed a placing of 69,000,000 new shares
on 28 June 2013 and raised net proceeds of approximately
HK$1,527,464,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,216,626,000
based on the exchange rate of HK dollar against RMB of
HK$1:RMB0.7965) after related share issue expenses. The intended
use of the proceeds from such placing of new shares is set out as
follows:

° the proceeds will be used to build and construct a production
facility for the manufacture of fabrics in Vietnam (the “Vietnam
Project”) in phases, as to approximately HK$777,000,000 for
the building and construction of phase | of the Vietnam Project,
including long term leasehold land use right, construction of
buildings and staff quarters, construction of sewage system
and infrastructure, purchase of machinery and equipment, etc.;
and

° the residual amount of the proceeds of approximately
HK$750,464,000 will be used to build and construct phase Il of
the Vietnam Project and as general working capital.

As of 31 December 2015, the proceeds from such placing had been
fully utilized. For the details of such placing of new shares, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18 June 2013
and 28 June 2013. For details of the Vietnam Project, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 28 May 2013.
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Issuance of convertible bonds in June 2014

The Company issued convertible bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$3,900,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,097,380,000 when calculated with the exchange rate of
HK$1=RMBO0.7942 on the Issue Date) on the Issue Date, bearing
a coupon rate of 0.5% and payable semi-annually. The maturity
date of convertible bonds is on the Maturity Date, unless early
redeemed, converted, purchased, cancelled or otherwise provided
in the terms and conditions of the bonds. The Company will redeem
the convertible bonds at 103.86% of their principal amounts on the
Maturity Date. The initial conversion price of the bonds is HK$38.56
per share and the new conversion price after the adjustment on 13
June 2015 is HK$38.00 per share (subject to further adjustment in
accordance with its terms and conditions). The maximum number
of shares to be issued upon full conversion of the convertible bonds
under the new conversion price will be 102,631,579 shares. On the
Issue Date, the initial recognition amount of RMB2,846,450,000
for the liability component of the bonds was calculated using a
market interest rate of 3.55% for a non-convertible bond of the
same class. Equity component amount of RMB197,140,000 was
credited to the reserves of shareholders’ equity. Net proceeds from
the issue of those bonds were approximately HK$3,832,271,000,
which was intended to be used for business expansion and for
general corporate purpose. As of 31 December 2015, approximately
HK$3,454,539,000 of the proceeds from such issue had been
utilized for expansion of the Vietnam production bases and as
general working capital. For details of the issuance of convertible
bonds, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 22
May 2014, 18 June 2014 and 19 June 2014.

As of 31 December 2015, no convertible bonds have been
converted into shares of the Company pursuant to the relevant terms
and conditions of the convertible bonds.

Exposure to foreign exchange

As the Group’s sales were mainly settled in US dollar, while its
purchases were mainly settled in RMB, the Group’s costs and
operating profit margin were affected by exchange rate fluctuations
to a certain extent. The Group adopted a policy to hedge part
of its foreign exchange risks in light of the existing fluctuations
of exchange rate between US dollar and RMB. The amounts
to be hedged depend on the Group’s revenue, purchases and
capital expenditure in US dollar, as well as the market forecast of
fluctuations in the exchange rate of US dollars against RMB.
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As at 31 December 2015, forward sale of foreign exchange
agreements were entered into with relevant banks in relation to
the bank balances of 208,046,335 US dollars, 5,800,000,000
Japanese yen, 14,000,000 Euro and 22,865,854 Swiss francs
(totaling approximately RMB1,830,908,000) (31 December 2014:
US$144,854,052, equivalent to approximately RMB893,483,000),
by which such bank balances were pledged and deposited with the
relevant banks, and the total amount to be settled in RMB upon
maturity will be RMB1,882,000,000. The pledged deposits carry
interest at fixed rates ranging from 1.2% to 2.9% per annum (31
December 2014: 1.2% to 2.5%), and will mature within one year
from the dates on which the agreements were entered into.

To avoid the reduction in the value of future cash flows and the
volatility thereof arising from any exchange rate movement between
RMB and US dollar, the Group has arranged for appropriate number
of loans denominated in US dollars and loans denominated in
Hong Kong dollars with linked exchange rate with US dollars. As
at 31 December 2015, in the total amount of bank loans, there
were loans of approximately RMB70,391,000 denominated in US
dollars (approximately US$10,840,000 in original currency), and
loans of RMB586,460,000 denominated in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$700,000,000 in original currency) (31 December 2014:
RMB46,737,000 (approximately US$7,638,000 in original currency)).
The global layout of the Group’s production bases will reduce the
impact of the exchange rate fluctuations of RMB against US dollars
on the operations.

Employment, training and development

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed approximately
67,390 employees in total. Total staff costs, including administrative
and management staff, accounted for approximately 27.9% (2014:
25.7%) of the Group’s sales during the year. The Group remunerated
its staff according to their performances, qualifications and industry
practices, and conducted regular reviews of its remuneration
policy. Employees may receive discretionary bonuses and monetary
rewards based on their ratings in annual performance appraisals.
The Company also offered rewards or other incentives to motivate
personal growth and career development of the employees, such
as ongoing opportunities for training to enhance their technical and
product knowledge as well as their knowledge of industry quality
standards. Each new employee of the Group is required to attend
an introductory course, while there are also various types of training
courses available to all employees of the Group.
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Capital expenditure and commitments

During the year, the Group’s total investment in property, plant
and equipment and prepaid land lease payments amounted to
approximately RMB2,041,684,000, of which approximately 34% was
used for the acquisition of production equipment, approximately
61% for the construction and acquisition of new factory buildings
and land lease prepayments, and the remaining balance was used
for the purchase of other fixed assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no material contingent
liability.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As at the date of this report, the Group has no material event after
the reporting period ended 31 December 2015.

FUTURE PROSPECT AND STRATEGIES

China is the largest garment manufacturer and exporting country
in the world, and its textile industry enjoys better operating
background, recording a positive growth in export in most years,
saved for the decrease in export in 2009 and 2015, the former
was mainly attributable to the impact of global financial crisis, while
in 2015 the decrease in export is mainly due to the upward cost
pressure, resulting in a shift of purchasing pattern of importers.
The key to development of China’s garment industry is to enhance
our competitive edges under the upward cost pressure. One of the
solutions is to diversify our international production base layout,
and the Group shall expand its fabric and garment production base
in Vietham as planned, in order to provide a more comprehensive

service to our globalized customers.
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The Group will continue the transformation of its domestic
production base towards the environment-friendly, resources-
effective green corporation. Our Vietnam fabric production base is
equipped with the advanced environmental friendly equipment, while
the production line at our domestic fabric production base will phase
out its older equipment and introduce the world’s latest energy-
saving production equipment, so as to lower the consumption of
resources such as water and electricity per unit, while enhancing the
automation of production and logistic processes to achieve higher
efficiency with less manpower, with a view to solving the bottle-
neck problem of resources supply during the development of the
corporation.

The Group shall engage overseas engineers as well as provide
training to domestic talents within the industry and internal R&D
staffers, and increase the investments in research and development,
in order to enhance the Group’s ability to develop innovative
products. The Group will also communicate with our major
customers to exchange information on the market demand, in order
to better grasp the direction for development of our products; while
at the same time establish information-sharing mechanism in regards
to new materials with our major raw material suppliers, so as to
quickly process such new materials into the latest products to meet
the market demands. The Group endeavors to continuously develop
new products to encourage market demand, in order to achieve
better match of product supply and market demand. Specifically,
the Group strives at maintaining its competitive advantages through
innovative functions and environment-friendly features of our new

products to differentiate from fellow manufacturers.
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The Group shall increase the investment in corporation
informatization, in order to optimize the standard of informatization
within the production management system of the Group, to enhance
the flexibility of software, to refine the corporate management, as
well as to shorten the production cycle. Through better correlation
between the management informatization system and the intelligent
equipment, the Group can improve the level of automation of the
production process and the accuracy of the data of production
technologies. Leveraging on the improvement of informatization
standards and monitoring of strategies implementation, the Group
can better satisfy those customers with a smaller quantity and
extensive varieties with a short delivery timeframe, and to help
our customers to avoid substantial accumulation of inventories or
shortage of supply within their retail channels, so as to achieve
optimized market sales.

The development strategies of the Group put focus on the
sustainability as its first priority, rooted in quality management and
driven by technology innovation, and leverages on the automation
and informatization progress, in order to improve the production and
management efficiency within the corporation. We thrive on creating
and appealing demands for our products, and will strive to provide
products and services of the best quality to our customers, and to
provide glorious career prospects to our staff, as well as a fruitful

return for our investors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s stated objective is to enhance its corporate value,
focusing on the solid growth in net profit and consistently
stable cash flow, to ensure the Group’s long-term, sustainable
development and to achieve sound returns for shareholders. The
Group is committed to raising its corporate governance standards
and increasing the transparency of its operations. Such objective
will be achieved by constantly improving the quality of corporate
governance of the Company through the provision of continuous
training for Directors as well as staff and the appointment of external
professional advisers.

The Board adopted its own Code of Corporate Governance, which
covers all of the code provisions and most of the recommended best
practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 9 October 2005. The
Company had complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.
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Terms of Reference of Board Committees

In order to comply with the Listing Rules and the CG Code, the
terms of reference of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company are
regularly revised based on amendments to the Listing Rules and the
CG Code. Such terms of reference and the list of Directors and their
roles and functions are published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange, respectively.

Responsibilities of Directors

All Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 set out in the CG Code. The
Company arranged for continuous professional development on
the update of the Listing Rules and the related legal and regulatory
requirements for the Directors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board had complied
with (1) the requirement that the board of a listed issuer must include
at least three independent non-executive directors under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules; (2) the requirement that at least one
of the independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules; and
(3) the requirement that the number of independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the Board under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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BEENHE-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HIE A summary of training received by the Directors during the year

ERAEXBEINOHZOT: ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:

EEnA EINEB ()
Name of Directors Types of training (Note)
HITES

Executive Directors

BRREE A&B
Mr. Ma Jianrong

ERAMELE A&B
Mr. Huang Guanlin

BEMEE A&B
Mr. Ma Renhe

@t A&B
Ms. Zheng Miaohui

THERESE A&B
Mr. Wang Cunbo

BREF R+ A&B

Ms. Chen Zhifen

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BRAR®E A A&B
Mr. Chen Genxiang

BR 1B 5% & A&B
Mr. Chen Xu

BEmEL A&B
Mr. Jiang Xianpin

REB KL A&B
Mr. Qiu Weiguo
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Note:
A: attending seminars organized by the Company

B: reading seminar materials and updates relating to the latest
development of the Listing Rules and other applicable legal and
regulatory requirements

Corporate governance functions

The Company adopted the terms of reference for corporate
governance functions on 26 March 2012 in compliance with
the code provision D.3 set out in the CG Code, effective from 1
April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the corporate
governance functions, the Board shall be responsible for developing
and reviewing and/or monitoring the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group; training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management and
making recommendations; compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and the Group’s compliance
with the CG Code.

Communications with shareholders

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.2 set out in the CG Code, the
Company invited representatives of the external auditors of the
Company to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to
be convened on 26 May 2016 to answer shareholders’ questions
relating to the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditors’ report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

The Company adopted a shareholders’ communication policy and
procedures with effect from 26 March 2012 for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director. The policy and the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.
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THE BOARD

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency and
profitability through the Board. The Directors recognise their
collective and individual responsibility to the shareholders and
perform their duties diligently to contribute to positive results for the
Company and maximize returns for shareholders.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised six
Executive Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors,
whose biographical details and family relationships among certain
Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Members of Senior Management” on pages 84
to 91. There are no other material financial, business or relevant
relationships among the Directors.

The Board is responsible for governing the Company and managing
assets entrusted by the shareholders. The principal responsibilities of
the Board include the formulation of the Group’s business strategies
and management objectives, supervision of the management and
evaluation of the effectiveness of management strategies.

The day-to-day management of the Group’s businesses is delegated
to the Executive Directors or officers in charge of each division. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed periodically
to ensure that they remain appropriate. Matters reserved for the
Board are those affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies,
finances and shareholders including financial statements, dividend
policy, significant changes in accounting policy, material contracts
and major investments. All Board members have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. They also have full and timely access to relevant information
about the Group and are kept abreast of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Group. Independent professional
advice can be sought at the Group’s expense upon their request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment of the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations. These
interests are updated on an annual basis. A Director should declare
his/her interests and abstain from voting in respect of any proposal
or transaction discussed by the Board in which he/she is deemed by
the Board to have a conflicting interest.
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Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests,
if any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the
Board at Board meetings and withdraw from the meetings as
appropriate. The Company follows guidelines (available at the
“Corporate Governance” section of our website) at each financial
reporting period to seek confirmation from Directors in respect of any
transactions of the Company or its subsidiaries which are related to
Directors or their associates. The identified significant related party
transactions are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements of
this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND GROUP GENERAL MANGER
The Chairman of the Board and the Group General Manager
have separate and distinctive roles. The Chairman of the Board is
responsible for the overall management of the Board and significant
operational decisions of the Group, while the Group General
Manager is responsible for managing the day-to-day operations of
the Group’s business. Mr. Ma Jianrong is the Chairman of the Board
and Mr. Huang Guanlin is the Group General Manager.

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
Independent Non-executive Directors accounted for 40% of the
members of the Board. The Independent Non-executive Directors
are outstanding executives or experts in the textile industry and
business sectors who bring with them expertise in different areas.
They provide adequate control and balances for the Group to protect
the overall interests of the shareholders and the Group. The role of
the Independent Non-executive Directors is to provide independent
and objective opinions to the Board for its consideration and
decisions. All independent Non-executive Directors have submitted
annual written confirmation of their independence and compliance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

Board proceedings

Regular Board meetings are held to discuss the Group’s
operation, financial performance, corporate governance and future
development. At least 14 days prior notice and an agenda with
supporting papers of no less than 3 days of the Board meeting are
given to Directors to ensure timely access to the relevant information
for discharge of their duties.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees are taken by the
Company Secretary and, together with any supporting papers, are
open for inspection following reasonable notice by any Directors.
Draft and final versions of minutes are also sent to all Directors for
their comment and records, respectively.
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The Company held 5 full Board meetings for the year ended 31
December 2015, with all the existing members of the Board attended
except for Mr. Huang Guanlin, Ms. Zheng Miaohui and Mr. Chen Xu
who were absent from 1 meeting and also Mr. Chen Genxiang who
was absent from 2 meetings as they had to attend to other business
engagements.

Board meetings will be held at least four times a year with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to determine overall
strategic directions and objectives and approve interim and annual
results and other significant matters.

During the year, the Chairman also held a separate meeting with all
the Independent Non-executive Directors to address business issues
and concerns.

BOARD DIVERSITY

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members of
the Board, it is the policy of the Company to consider a number
of factors when deciding on appointments to the Board and the
continuation of those appointments. Such factors include gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has three
Committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee have been structured to include a majority
of Independent Non-executive Directors as members in order to
reinforce independence, while the Audit Committee only comprises
Independent Non-executive Directors. All of the Committees are
governed by its respective terms of reference, which are available
on the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website www.hkexnews.hk.

All Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties. The Committees report to the Board on a regular
basis to discuss significant issues and findings and to make
recommendations to the Board for making decisions.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the CG Code on 9 October 2005. As of the
issuance of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises Mr.
Ma Renhe, an Executive Director, Mr. Chen Genxiang, Mr. Chen Xu
and Mr. Jiang Xianpin, Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr.
Chen Genxiang is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure for the Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for approving
such remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management. No Director
will take part in any discussion on his or her own remuneration. The
details of their fees are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain
fair and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. In order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to the members of the Board of Directors, market rates
and factors such as each Director’s workload, responsibility, and job
complexity are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting with full attendance in
2015. At the meetings, it reviewed the remuneration of Directors and
senior management.

Details of the remuneration by band of the 10 members of the
senior management of the Company, whose biographies are set
out on pages 89 to 91 of this annual report, for the year ended 31

Nk December 2015 are set out below:
AE
FHER(AREFTT) Number of
Remuneration band (RMB’000) individual
1,0000A T Below 1,000 1
1,000£2,000 1,000 to 2,000 9
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9
October 2005. As of the issuance of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprises Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive Director, Mr.
Qiu Weiguo and Mr. Jiang Xianpin, both are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Ma Jianrong is Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to identify candidates with suitable qualifications as Directors,
select and nominate such candidates for directorship and provide
recommendations to the Board; regularly review the structure,
headcount and composition (including skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board and make recommendations to the Board
for any proposed changes.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting with full attendance
in 2015. At the meetings, it reviewed and recommended the
reappointment of retiring Directors for shareholders’ approval at the
Annual General Meeting (‘“AGM”).

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

A person may be appointed as a member of the Board at any time
either by the shareholders in general meeting or by the Board upon
recommendation by the Nomination Committee.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors or to fill
casual vacancies shall hold office until the next AGM (in the case
of an addition to the Board) or until the next general meeting (in
the case of filling a casual vacancy), and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the AGM, subject
to reelection by the shareholders. All Independent Non-executive
Directors are appointed for specific terms of not more than three
years.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with
Rules 3.21 to 3.23 of the Listing Rules on 9 October 2005. As of
the issuance of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Jiang Xianpin, Mr.
Chen Genxiang, Mr. Chen Xu and Mr. Qiu Weiguo. Mr. Jiang Xianpin
is Chairman of the Audit Committee. His expertise in accounting,
auditing and finance enables him to provide leadership for the
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to conduct
critical and objective reviews of the Group’s financial and accounting
practices and internal controls. These include determining of the
nature and scope of statutory audit, monitoring the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk manangement, reviewing the Group’s interim and
annual accounts and assessing the completeness and effectiveness
of the Group’s accounting and financial controls.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with
the recommendations as set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and the provisions of the CG
Code and are subject to amendments in response to the regulatory
requirements from time to time (including the Listing Rules). Please
refer to the Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com for the
details.

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings for the year ended 31
December 2015 with full attendance. At the meetings, it reviewed
the 2014 final results, financial report and auditing issues, with the
external auditors, and the 2015 interim results, the activities of the
Group’s internal audit functions, the internal audit report on business
operations and continuing connected transactions.
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TRARNGEEN - ET—RAFALFERREE Details of Director’'s attendance at the AGM, Board and Board
FRE BECEHENEEZESEHME  Committee Meetings held in 2015 are set out in the following table.

B-EEEFHMNERLFEXR0.00% ° The overall attendance rate of Directors at Board meetings was
90.00%.
HE/BTEERY
Meetings Attended/Held
Exgez ENZERS FMEES REZEE RREFAS
Board Audit Remuneration Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee AGM

HiTES
Executive Directors
BRREE 5/5 - - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Ma Jianrong
BEMEE 4/5 - - - 0/1
Mr. Huang Guanlin
BLMEE 5/5 - 11 - 1/1
Mr. Ma Renhe
By EL+ 4/5 - - - 1/1
Ms. Zheng Miaohui
TEREE 5/5 - - - 1/1
Mr. Wang Cunbo
ReHut 5/5 - - - 1/1

Ms. Chen Zhifen

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

BRARM K4 3/5 2/2 1/1 - 0/1
Mr. Chen Genxiang

BRIB S & 4/5 2/2 1/1 - 1/1
Mr. Chen Xu

BERELE 5/5 2/2 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Jiang Xianpin

REBLE 5/5 2/2 - 1/1 11
Mr. Qiu Weiguo
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
accounts which give a true and fair view and in accordance with the
accounting standards generally accepted in Hong Kong as published
by the HKICPA. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Directors endeavoured to
make a fair and comprehensible assessment of the Group’s current
conditions and prospects in the financial report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises its responsibility to maintain an appropriate
internal control system and to ensure accurate reporting of the
Company’s state of affairs to shareholders and the public in a timely
manner.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to enhance
operating effectiveness and efficiency, to safeguard assets against
misappropriation and unauthorized disposition, to maintain
appropriate accounting records and financial reports that are
true and fair, and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The system aims at providing a reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and
managing rather than eliminating operational risks.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015,
which covered controls over financial reporting, operations and
compliance, as well as risk management functions, and considered
that the system of internal controls in operation in the Group have
been in place and functioning effectively.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department plays an important role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Internal Auditor
reports directly to the Chairman and has direct access to the Audit
Committee. The Internal Audit Department has unrestricted access
to information that allows it to review all aspects of the Company’s
risk management, control and governance processes. On a regular
basis, it conducts audits on major activities and process of the
Group’s business and support units. It also conducts special reviews
or investigations of areas of concern identified by the management
or the Audit Committee. All audit reports are communicated to the
Audit Committee, Directors and key senior management. Audit
issues are tracked and followed up for proper implementation, with
progress reported to the Audit Committee, Directors and senior
management periodically.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group’s independent external auditor is Ernst & Young. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of the external
auditors and reviewing the non-audit functions performed by the
external auditors for the Group. In particular, the Audit Committee
will, prior to the execution of contract with the external auditors and
the commencement of their duties, consider whether the non-audit
functions will result in any potential material conflict of interest.

The related remuneration for the audit services provided by Ernst
& Young to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
amounted to RMB2,783,000.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended their appointment as the
Company’s external auditors at the forthcoming AGM.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS
The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Listing Rules as
the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions (“Securities Trading Code”). A copy of the Securities
Trading Code is provided to all Directors upon their appointment.
Reminder will be issued twice a year, being 30 days prior to the
Board meeting approving the Company’s interim results and 60
days prior to the Board meeting approving the Company’s annual
results, reminding the Directors that they are not allowed to deal in
the Company’s securities prior to the announcement of its results
(the period during which the directors are prohibited from dealing
in shares) and that all transactions must comply with the Securities
Trading Code. Upon specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed
their strict compliance with the relevant provisions of the Securities
Trading Code throughout the year.

Senior management may be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information or inside information due to their positions
in the Company, and hence, are required to comply with dealing
restrictions under the Securities Trading Code.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Tak Hing Kenii, is responsible for
facilitating the Board process, as well as communications among
Board members, with shareholders and management. Mr. Chan’s
biography is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and
Members of Senior Management” section on pages 84 to 91 of this
annual report. During the year, Mr. Chan undertook not less than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

INVESTORS RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of communication with its
shareholders. Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive
operational and financial performance information to shareholders
and the AGM provides a forum for shareholders to express their
concerns directly to the Board.

Our Investor Relations Department communicates with research
analysts and institutional investors in an on-going manner and
provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive information about
the Group’s strategies and development.

The Company also issues press releases from time to time
throughout the year and responds to requests for information and
queries from the investors. Current information on the Company
including interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
press releases and presentations material can be retrieved through
our Company’s website www.shenzhouintl.com. Information on
the website is updated in a timely manner to ensure the speed,
fairness and transparency of our disclosure. We recognize that not
all shareholders and stakeholders have ready access to the internet.
For those who do not, hard copies of those website information
listed above are available free of charge upon request to the
Company Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has a policy of open communication and fair
disclosure. Disclosure is a key means to enhance our corporate
governance standards, in that it provides our shareholders and
other stakeholders with the information necessary for them to form
their own judgment and to provide feedback to us. We understand
that more disclosure does not necessarily result in increased
transparency. The integrity of the information provided is essential for
building market confidence.

The Board and Senior Management recognize their responsibility
to represent the interests of all shareholders and to maximize
shareholder value. Therefore, we strongly encourage shareholders
to put forward proposals at an AGM or extraordinary general
meeting (‘EGM”) including a written notice of those proposals that
could be addressed to the Company Secretary at the registered
office. Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the
Company Secretary through our hotline 852-2310-4919, email at
2318ir@shenzhougroup.com or raising questions at an AGM or
EGM. Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary by the same means.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requesting
member(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requesting member(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board to convene such meeting shall be
reimbursed to the requesting member(s) by the Company.

We will continue to review and, where appropriate, improve on our
corporate governance practices in light of evolving experience,
regulatory requirements and international developments. Corporate
governance is an evolving process. Good corporate governance is a
journey, rather than a final destination.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the sustainability report, which outlines our major members’
approaches, commitment and strategies in four aspects of
sustainability — workplace quality, environmental protection,
operating practices and community involvement. The reporting
period of this report is from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015.
The data disclosed in this report are prepared and collected by the
respective human resources, administration, and finance and energy
departments.

VISION
“Striving to become the best global apparel manufacturer” —
Shenzhou is the largest integrated garment end-product enterprise in
Asia, possessing a comprehensive operational system that includes
research and development,

design, production, logistics and

branding.

MISSION

“Building a green enterprise and offering people a comfortable life” —
Environmental protection is Shenzhou’s primary social responsibility
as well as the basis of long-term viability for any enterprises.
The Company shall always remain devoted to environmental
commitments, from which sustainability can be realized; Comfort is
not merely a tactile sensation from the contact with our knitwear, but
also a state of living that we so fervently pursue. By facilitating a life
of comfort, we seek to make the enterprise one with nature.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

1

The Profile of Shenzhou’s Environmental Protection:
Environmental protection is one of the core policy of the
government. Since 1 January 2015, the Chinese government
implemented the Environmental Protection Law of the
PRC which was being amended during the year. The new
environmental law focuses on the control of total emission of
major pollutants and emphasizes the corporate responsibilities
on environmental protection.

The main resources and energy used in the process of the
Group’s production include water, electricity, coal, biomass fuel
and steam. Fabric production is the main process of energy
consumption. The main wastes generated from production
are wastewater and waste gas etc., the former of which is
generated from dyeing process. Through clean water and
sewage split-flow in the production process, lightly polluted
water for dyeing and cleaning is recycled after treatment, and
dyed polluted water is discharged after strict treatment.

Currently, the Group has recycled facilities in China, with
capacity of 15,000 tons of reclaimed water per day, which
effectively lower water consumption and sewage direct
discharge. The waste gases generated from production
process are mainly carbon dioxide and sulphur dioxide.

In 2015, the Group’s fabric production output increased
by 17.05%, standing at 113,575 tons, with consumption
of electricity of 326,654,906 degrees, one of major energy
increasing by approximately 17.80% and consumption of
electricity per unit production decrease slightly. As a result of
using cleaner biomass fuel to substitute coal as basic energy,
total consumption of environmental friendly biomass and
coal was 159,441 tons, of which approximately 76% were
biomass fuel, substantially reducing total volume of sulphur
dioxide discharge and effectively reducing adverse impacts on
environment.
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Shenzhou’s wastewater discharge and smoke emission
in 2015
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(Systematic data collection was carried out since 2015)

Measures in energy conservation and emission
reduction:

In 2015, the Group adopted measures in energy conservation
and emission reduction, such as improvement works on steam
network and motors, with a view to enhance production
efficiency and reduce emission.
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Solid waste separation and treatment

We conduct a separation and treatment process for all solid
waste, part of which will be recycled and reused to minimize
its pollution to the environment. Our Group classifies all
solid waste into four categories according to the relevant

58

BEMo R/NE - BRSO EREEFLER Regulations for Waste Classification and Management. Please
Tk refer to the following table for the specific classification and
weight.
ZT-NF —E-IF
] B4l B IR EE(TR) EE(TR)
Weight in Weight in
Category Particulars Source of waste 2014 (kg) 2015 (kg)
BFARAER 2 ARAA RS RS BEAE EET EXK HE FEREKBR 12,636,200 6,117,000
Reusable or recyclable Waste paper boxes, waste Knitting, Dyeing and Garment
paperboards and papers paper cones, waste paper cores, making process
waste papers
AEFI AR AR BRI E B mER HE - REREXRR 16,854,033 17,167,021
Reusable or recyclable waste fabric Waste fabric, pied hair Knitting, Dyeing and Garment
making process
BRRREYRZFERED BRI EHE HE - REREXRR 426,512 415,330
Reusing or recycling of Plastic wire cores, plastic bags Knitting, Dyeing and Garment
non-hazardous waste making process
T EBMBRE 2 EERED BEAR EBERBRE 2,352,000 2,411,000

No reusing or recycling of
non-hazardous waste

Household garbage

Canteen and office

. LB EMEHE R TRRGHEE . All above mentioned waste are collected by different local service
g - providers.
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USE OF RESOURCES
Energy consumption in 2015
Our main energy consumption in the last two years was as
follows:

The data include the Group’s total energy consumption in the
entire knitting, dyeing and finishing and garment manufacturing
processes and all its operational regions.
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sewage treatment and smoke emissions testing

The Group adopted the following facilities in treating sewage
and smoke emissions. Meanwhile, Ozone wash and digital
printing were also applied to improve water efficiency.
Furthermore, the Group also set up boiler heat recovery system
during the year and will build yarn dye-heat recovery to improve
the Group’s energy efficiency, details of which are as follows:

The Group has set up integrated sewage treatment in Ningbo
and Vietnam factories since the plants built up to comply
with the emission standards before discharging. It carries out
regular inspections according to the Environmental Protection
Bureau’s requirements. The respective environmental
protection authorities have installed online detection devices at
the sewage outfalls.

At our Ningbo Factory, the frequency of inspection on
wastewater discharge is: realtime monitoring for on-sale
inspection; once every three months for sample inspection.

The Group also conducts online monitoring on smoke
emission to ensure compliance with the emission standards
before discharging. The respective environmental protection
authorities have also installed online monitoring devices at
our smoke outfalls. At our Ningbo Factory, the frequency of
inspection on smoke and gas emission is: real-time monitoring
for on-site inspection; once every three months for sample
inspection.
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Ozone Wash

G2 Ozone Wash means ozone washing. Ozone is a strong
oxidant which causes the clothes to discolour naturally
and forms vintage style by washing the clothes with ozone
composing of G2. Generally this effect needs to be completed
by chemical agents, however, G2 production replaces the use
of chemicals and reduces water consumption, which minimizes
the pressure to environment caused by this type of products.

Digital Print

Through digital print, more accurate and vivid colors can be
achieved and get rid of consumption from film and water in
traditional print way. The consumption of power and resources
can be effectively reduced, therefore, a T-shirt with beautifully-
designed printing can also be an environmental-friendly

' e

Boiler Heat Recovery
Set up boiler heat recovery system in the end of 2015 for
stream producing.

This system can deliver 130 tons stream per day, total 39,000
tons stream can be used annually since 2016 which save cost

USD800,000 per year.

The following is the picture of Boiler Heat Recovery:
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Yarn Dye-Heat Recovery
In the beginning of 2016, the Group plan a new investment
USD200,000 to build yarn dye-heat recovery facility.

This system is capable of making 60,000 tons stream annually
which save USD1.3 million every year, it is more efficient to
dispose wasted water after cooling from this system.

The following is the picture of Yarn Dye-Heat Recovery:
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND
NATURAL RESOURCES
In order to expand the globalization layout of Shenzhou,
we launch product research & development, and process
improvement of manufacture technology in the innovation
center which is extremely crucial to our strategic planning.

The strengths of the innovation centres

The vision to be achieved by Shenzhou through its innovation
centres is to increase the added-value and profitability of
products, while developing the Company into a sustainable
operator through introducing our ideology of environmental
design when working products with our customers in the
innovation centres, reducing the use of fabrics and the
pressure to the environment caused by production emission.
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Design for Manufacturing and Assembly (DFMA) and
design production-friendly products as well as increasing
productivity

o Product diversification

o Shortening the cycle of product development and
saving the labor and cost deployed by Shenzhou and its
customers in R&D

o Integrating green elements in the design, reducing the
materials usage and cut chemicals using

o Increasing the product quality

o Ensuring a health and safety production environment for
the staff

Intelligent hanging system

The Group has always upheld lean manufacture. The
“intelligent hanging system” is controlled by computers and is a
transmission and logistic tool which is responsible for allocating
tasks to operators in each workstation. The system lowers the
heavy workload of operating staff and reduces the transmission
time of each working process as well as increasing the
production efficiency by 2 to 3%.

As an enterprise keen on sustainable development, the
Group vigorously supports and maintains its role as a proper
environmental protector, proactively deepens and internalizes
environmental awareness, and has the low-carbon concept
deeply indoctrinated in the whole Group. We firmly believe that
our commitment to environmental protection will become a
part of Shenzhou’s core competitiveness, leading the Group to
greater success in the future.

Selected by World Famous Brand Association to be the world’s
first pilot unit for the 2020 environmental standards for the
textile industry in 2013

The process of the garment
factory in Vietnam, from design
and construction to completion,
fulfils the standard of LEED
GREEN GOAL. The future target
ranking of the factory is LEED
SILVER GOAL.
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THRIEEE WORKPLACE QUALITY
TGRS Working Conditions
ESEELXEH Employees’ Basic Information

HE-_Z-—RAF+-A=+—H8 A&E@EE By 31 December 2015, there were about 67,390 employees working
B AEH A67T30A -FTEREY AZB{E inthe Group. All of them are full-time employees, and the majority

E BAZEAPEFREE - TREIIZFH  are young and middle-aged employees. The tables below show the
BB NKFE TR R MERILLHIEID 2 employee details by age distribution, education level, job locations
BElEe and gender ratio.

0

oD

HESEH

AE BoL

Percentages

of total

REREBERED By Age band Numbers employees
207 B A T Below 20 and 20 9,104 13.51%
21 F 408 21-40 44,587 66.16%
4125087 41-50 12,677 18.81%
51 & A £ 51 and above 51 1,022 1.52%
@Et Total 67,390 100.0%

BEFRD M

Employees Age Distribution
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HEERH
A Bok
Percentages
of total
BHEE D By Education Numbers employees
MmERE Master degree and above 24 0.04%
KB R AK=E Undergraduate and post secondary school 2,387 3.54%

FE.-aF Secondary technical school,
senior high school 11,841 17.57%
M RIAT Junior high school and below 53,138 78.85%
BET Total 67,390 100.0%

BEHEKF
Employees Education Level

HEEAH
AE BALt
Percentages
of total
4 Bl Gender Numbers employees
5 Male 19,533 28.99%
z Female 47,857 71.01%
HET Total 67,390 100.0%

4 Bl Lt &

Gender Ratio

HEEEH
A8 Bok
Percentages
of total
RERE 5 By Country Numbers employees
H B K e Mainland China 51,447 76.34%
jiAEa] Vietnam 6,004 8.91%
RIHE Cambodia 9,939 14.75%
BET Total 67,390 100.0%

EERMBED M

Employees by Job Locations
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Statistical analysis of employee turnover rate

By the end of December 2015, there were 67,390 employees in
total. According to the statistics, the Group’s monthly average
employee turnover rate in 2015 was 4.7%, representing a decrease
of 0.68 percentage points when compared with 2014 (2014: 5.38%).
The monthly average new employee turnover rate in 2015 was 4.2%,

Shenzhou Group has successfully maintained a relatively low staff
turnover rate, thanks to the following effective measures:

1. For six years in a row, chartered coaches were arranged during
Chinese New Year holidays for staff to go home: an average
contribution of approximately RMB17.00 million each year was
made for arranging 291 round-trip chartered coaches covering
296 location in 14 provinces such as Anhui, Sichuan, Shanxi,
Yunnan for 14,157 staff to go home, and to return to work after
the Chinese New Year holidays safe and sound. Refreshment

was provided on the coaches for our staff’s enjoyment.

2. The Company is mindful of educational causes and places
great emphasis on staff development and education for the
children of its staff. In May 2011, the inauguration ceremony
of the Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. Education
Development Fund was held at the administration centre
in Beilun region. In the area of schooling for the children of
its staff, the Company liaises with the staff union each year
to resolve practical difficulties in schooling for children of
management staff as far as possible. This year, the Company
sponsored approximately RMBO0.12 million for a total of 10
Shenzhou staff to study in university.
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3. As a labour intensive corporation, Shenzhou Group places
exceptional emphasis on and pays special attention to
the wellbeing of its staff, both physically and mentally. The
Company established a mental health information centre,
“Joyful Community”, in October 2011. With specialists serving
as counsellors, “Joyful Community” is equipped with music
facilities for relaxation and punching facilities for venting
emotions. Through handling cases received, organising
group activities and holding seminars, the centre resolves
psychological distress and relieves emotional pressure of staff
and gives them peace of mind.

w

4. An average rise in salary has been around 10% each year for
the past five years.

Health and Safety
The Group distributes labor protection appliances and tools to
employees every year, such as masks, gloves and uniforms.

The Group cares about the physical health of employees. It sets
up employee health records for every employee. Besides regular
checkup on occupational diseases, the Company organizes annual
checkups to prevent occupational diseases.
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A total of 27 injuries were recorded in 2015. No significant injury
was recorded. Lost work days due to injuries were 842 days in total.
The Group will strengthen on-the-job trainings to raise awareness of
occupational safety.

The Group supplies free first-aid kits and medicines to employees,
which plays an important role in emergencies. The Group complies
with national labor laws and regulations and arranges the dayoff
and working timetables stringently in accordance with national
requirements. Employees are also entitled to annual leave.

Development and training

The Group gives very serious attention to the internal and external
studies and trainings to improve employees’ education level and
capabilities, and trains talents properly that are needed in the
Group’s development. The Group established The Shenzhou
Management Institute and it has become the cradle of developing
the Group’s management talents. By the end of 2015, 3,000
man-times had been recorded in the training.

Shenzhou School of Management was established on 21
September, 2012. The preliminary training target was the
management staff of garment manufacturing department. The school
formulates the curriculum according to the training requirements
of the Company and devotes to enhancing the management level
of management staff above the position of group leader, so as to
enhance the quality and efficiency of the products in the production

site.

The Group was successfully selected by Ningbo City as the
third batch of pilot enterprises for self appraisal of enterprise
engineer qualification since December 2014. Self appraisal of
enterprise engineer qualification effectively combines corporate
and government performance appraisal. Approved persons are
recognized by the enterprise and will be awarded speciality and
technical qualification certificate by the Ministry of Human Resources

and Social Security.

In addition to training opportunities, certain managerial staffs
are offered with promotions to higher positions so that they can
demonstrate and further hone their management skills.
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Career prospects for employees

Our employees have fair access to adequate learning and
trainings as well as ample promotion opportunities. Shenzhou’s
Performance Committee has set up branches in every department
of the Company, establishing a standardized system whereby the
development of employees and the enterprise can be mutually
integrated. Our employees are encouraged to engage freely in
trainings with regard to their own specialized duties and other
industrial technologies, accordingly, we provide such learning
opportunities as well as the possibilities of promotions and
adjustments to our employees.

Labour Standards

In 2013, the Group formulated some requirements like the “Strict
Prohibition of Engaging Child Labor Administrative Provisions”,
“Underage Worker Administrative Provisions” and “Strict Prohibition
of Forced Labor Administrative Provisions” in order to completely
eradicate child labor, underage workers and forced labor.

Strict forbiddance of forced labour and child labour

Over the past 21 years of Shenzhou’s operation, there has not been
a single case of forced labour or child labour. For the purpose of
compliance with the relevant laws of China, Vietham and Cambodia,
Shenzhou has laid out comprehensive provisions and accountability
procedures in respect to the recruitment, labor use and dismissal.

The above administrative provisions are implemented seriously in
all departments. The following measures reveal how the Group can
eradicate effectively child labor during the recruitment process:

New employee must provide his/her identity card when commencing
employment, so as to verify his/her actual age.

In the recruitment interview, interviewers will observe very carefully
the differences between the photograph on the identity card and the
genuine face. If there is much difference, or the actual age seems
obvious to be younger, then it shall be verified by identity card
identification system or otherwise.

Employee care commences from the grass-roots teams. Employees

participate actively in the interaction with management at all levels to
eradicate forced labor effectively.
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Zero discrimination

We have established anti-discrimination policy and comply with the
requirements of relevant laws. There has been no occurrence of
discrimination in Shenzhou against race, region, gender, nationality,
age, pregnancy or disability in respect to employee recruitment,
training, salary and promotion.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply Chain Management

Major Operating Regions:

Shenzhou Group currently has operations in the regions shown in
the following Chart: the green color represents the production base
of Shenzhou in Ningbo; the pink color represents the sales offices of
Shenzhou; the blue color represents the production bases other than
Ningbo.
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Topic Concerned

The working system of the main subsidiary of the Group, Ningbo
Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. (2% R MET 4B 2 5), manages
the implementation of critical working processes, and controls and
affects the horizontal linking up of the working processes at the
same time, and all working processes from an organic integrity.

To ensure the smooth operation of the critical processes, the Group
adopts systematic management measures and formulates a series
of management systems to fulfill the requirements of the processes
and provide tactical execution. At the same time, we utilize
various measures such as management by objectives to stipulate
key performance indicators to control and improve the working
processes.

Topics concerned by our suppliers and the channels we used to
communicate with our suppliers are shown in the following charts:

BEARX

Communication Channel

BREBEM

Green products

B

Response to climate changes

Suppli EnEE
ier
upp Product quality
R RIRE (L
ARERR
Sustainability
Rk EE

AEECIHEERBE Y HBRAXR
tEmETERE BREEBREMERZR
KB R B EREEFE - REH
ALRBEZLERTERANEE AAEKE
IERR S BRAR Z R Bl BB M RE %

e 7 T BOR

Supplier policies and requirements

EHEHK

Regular meetings

HEBAE

Supplier summit

BEXMIEAR

Cooperative technology projects

& Mim g
Workshops and forums

Risk management

The Group has established a list of chemicals and conducts
management and control on dangerous or restricted chemicals to
ensure that the dyes, agents and detergent used during production
will strictly follow the management and control list. Non-tested and
uncertified chemicals and not allowed to be used in production and a
stringent identification and tracking system is being established.
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Purchase Requisiton

Governance Report

The Group has developed a chemical management and control
process which covers dyes supplier management, incoming
materials inspection, product testing and wastewater discharge
inspection, ensuring a comprehensive management and control of

chemicals applications.

Procurement process

Dedicated staff of the designated departments is responsible
for the procurement of all materials of the Group. The materials
procured mainly include cotton yarn, dyestuffs, trims, office supplies,
fixed assets, equipment and spare parts, and canteen supplies.
Procurement cost control is an important measure to enhance profit
on products. The quality of cotton yarn, dyestuffs and trims procured
will directly affect the quality of products of the Group and the
corporate image. Procurement is one of the most important aspects
affecting product competitiveness.

To ensure the effectiveness of the procurement process, the Group
formulates management documents such as “Procurement Control
The Group segregates the procurement process into
two flows, namely procurement plan formulation and procurement

Procedures”.

implementation, see the following chart.

st

| Demand Plan

BEE5t 2l Purchasing Plan

{FER32 2 Selection of Suppliers

= Yes

B2 Inspection for Acceptance

EE R ER

Determination of purchase price

BAERHRSRBE L
Entering into Framework Agreement
or Purchase Contract

FEMERE
Management of Supply Process

A Fail

71818 Pass or Fail

3R E Return of Goods

AE Warehousing

ZEEZ Claims etc.

%

{457k Payment
»

MBERE  a5t%

Financial Control,

Accounting etc.

EREBEBRAT L

Post Assessment of Procurement Business
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Principal products:

The Group has three principal categories of products, namely are
sports product, casual wear and lingerie. The Main Specific products
include jackets, vests, pants, trousers, tops, T-shirts, dresses and
lingerie etc.

SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The Group’s major subsidiaries have adopted the ISO 14001, ISO
9001 and OHSAS 18001 management systems to strengthen the
safety and environmental protection, after considering facts such as
a large number of employees, plenty of production equipment and
considerable management span.

The Group’s ISO 14001, ISO 9001 and OHSAS 18001 certificates
are shown below:
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In terms of safety and environmental protection, the Group
strengthens the safety education, establishes safety operation
specifications for related job posts and enhances equipment
maintenance. On the other hand, considering a large number of
employees, the Group emphasizes on food safety and occupational
health administration.

With safety, health and environmental protection in mind, the Group
has established a safety department, an emergency response team
and a professional Three Wastes Treatment System to reduce the
use of toxic and hazardous substances to meet the standards of
Three Wastes treatment, thus ensuring the occupational health of
employees, maintaining clean production, energy conservation and
carbon reduction, and responding to and dealing with emergencies.
For the major focus areas, see the following chart.

BRI HE
Energy

Saving and
Emission
Reduction

BREE
Clean
Protection

ZRERR
Safety and
Environmental
Protection

EERE
Employee
Health

T2 RIRRITEER
Focuses of Safety and Environmental Protection Work
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CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

The Group aims to understand all kinds of customer requirements,
expectations and concerns by listening to them. Through these
methods, the Group has transformed and satisfied customer
requirements and expectations and promoted its market expansion
and service improvement. Furthermore, when customers visit the
Group, the sales department will gather directly relevant department
heads and the person-in-charge to attend meetings to have a
comprehensive understanding of customers’ expectations. The
relevant departments will convene special meetings to seek specific
solutions to those aspects that fail to meet customers’ expectations
for the time being. The direct person-in-charge from the sales,
research and development and production departments will attend
regular Sales and Operations meetings every week to discuss the
current problems and customers’ requirements, analyze the causes
and find solutions to meet customers’ requirements.

To protect the security of specific customers’ information from
leaking out, the Company entered into confidential agreements
with specific customers and also protected the patents of specific
customers.

In 2015, the Group was awarded “Overall Factory Performance”
and “Do the Right Thing” by Nike. Meanwhile, the Group was also
awarded “Save” awards by Puma. The following pictures are the
trophies awarded to our Group by Nike and Puma.

— L
-Jl

Campletion

December, 2015

55 520R

Puma Award
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The Group vigorously encourages patents filings by research and
development staff, introduces rewarding policies for the authorization
of patents for inventions, steadily promotes patent commercialization
and endeavors to create its own brand products. In recent years,
the Group’s 1 independent and joint research and development
results have been put into production or applied in the current
production process with an annual average of 20 patents turning
into products, including production methods of polyester-cotton
moisture absorption and quick-dry knitted fabrics, upgraded high
temperature gas emission mechanisms for dyeing machine, polyester
moisture absorption and quick-dry high-functional sports fabrics,
keep-warm and breathable knitted fabrics with pointelle and air flow,
looped knitted fabrics with bamboo fiber and high elastic silk-like
knitted fabrics for innerwear and so on. The Group has over 3,076
new products, 24 licensed patents of new utility models, including
knitted fabrics with smooth change of pattern, three-dimensional
keep-warm knitted fabrics and anti-pilling ultra-soft cotton interlock
with the touch of peach skin flannel, as well as 5 new invention
patents, including multi-functional knitted fabrics for innerwear and
its production method, wool-like knitted fabrics and its production
methods and dual-colour fabrics and its production method and so
on, as well as 30 corporate standards (including an addition of 10
corporate standards in 2015) and has carried out an improvement,
and upgrades on its existing equipment. The Group introduced
encouragement policies on technological innovation, including the
Rewarding Methods on Scientific and Technological Achievements
and established a scientific and comprehensive incentive mechanism

on technological innovation.
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WTEXREEFMINSEEMEREFEBE  Topics concerned by our customers and the channels we used to

TR communicate with our customers are shown in the following charts:
BErEE BEAR
Topic Concerned Communication Channel

AR SEITEEHeH
Sustainability Regular meetings with senior and
mid-manager
BETRELZR
Employees’ health and safety EEmBEERST
'F Client satisfaction survey
Customer HeEE
Social responsibility 2B T W
Factory visits
£ IR IRE M
Comfortable eco-products EHRPKERE
Visits to clients’ operation
R headquarters
Operating performance
HEPEESEPR L
R RER Co-establishing cooperative centres
Supply chain development with clients
EEEERE Quality management process
AREFBEERRENZERKEBL2AEESEE The Group conducts a full range of monitoring measures in the
BEXTHIEENEE - EEHEEEEIE  purchase and manufacture of products based on a comprehensive
wiE F2RTHE- quality management system, refer to the following chart for its quality

management process.

LEERRE
Quality Management Process

& £ B#Z Quality Objectives

F—E"‘

B =% Quality Management

I l l I
HERE R EERE EREUE

Quality planning Quality Control Quality Assurance Quality Improvement

CERHAEEEERARTNEMEE 2E  Quality control is a very important segment in the quality

CHFEBREEM E%ﬁ' OBl XOBlE . management process. It mainly embodies the supervision, inspection

|2 NKEE- and testing of product quality. The Group has established six focuses
of quality control.
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BEEAH
Quality
Innovation

o FREER
SRR ERISE

Incoming Bairgl Metrological

Inspection Quality Control Control and
Model
Inspection

TAZERER KRR
Process Finished
Inspection Product

Inspection

ZEMRRIEZE
Focuses of Safety and Environmental Protection Work
RES: Anti-Corruption:

REEHAPWARNEFTSEHELERESE  In the over two decades of the Shenzhou Group’s history, the
ABERMNEERKL_+ZFUUHK —EF founder and former chairman of the Group, Mr. Ma Baoxing, and

FIHEE] - TEERACEL -HiER each senior management have always been focusing on “integrity”
EE2TARFA MRHEEEE in establishing the corporate culture. Integrity is the code of conduct

and moral standard of the Group.

PFE-ZZFY) FREEESH [#1E] =  Back in early 2000, Mr. Ma wrote the two Chinese characters ‘315

FWBHRKEF R LESMESILJIZA  (integrity)” and hung them in the centre of the lobby hall, reminding

£/ RANESK - BUEE NAEBST A"E  every employee that it is the principle and requirement of the Group.

ENEOEBEBMAREPBRISEE - Every employee must abide by this and the Group also welcomes
closely monitoring by related authorities and customers.

REBEREANDEFTIBFIRINGBLKEET  The Group has set up internal audits department and has engaged
MRIEe AEEMNKRESZEE U IEESS  Ernst & Young as external auditor to improve the Group’s anti-
EHEREEE A corruption standard in preventing corruption in the Group.
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The Group’s employee handbook sets out expressed requirements
in relation to anti-corruption, anti-bribery and conflict of interest.
Accordingly, the employees should follow the requirements.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Community Investment

Participation in community activities

The Group considers that supporting the community is one of the
driving forces for corporate development, as well as an important
motivation for building a “Harmonious Shenzhou”. The Group places
great emphasis on cultivating social responsibility awareness in its
staff and encourages them to participate in charitable community
activities. The Group contributed approximately RMB1,979,000
in 2015 towards participating in community activities and making
various donations for charitable causes.

With regard to education, the Group has made donations totalling
to RMBO0.12 million to charitable funds as subsidies for around 10
university students to pay their tuition fees. Meanwhile, with regard
to Beilun Education Foundations, a donation of around RMB1
million has been made to help more students in need continue their
education.

With regard to healthcare, the Group has sponsored for and donated
around 500 pieces of clothes to elderly associations totalling
approximately RMB50,000. At the same time, we also made in-kind
donations such as gloves and foot straps to caring stores, totaling
around RMB66,700. Furthermore, the Group donated around
RMBO0.56 million to Ma Baoxing Charitable Funds to push forward
and hold more charity activities.

Furthermore, in 2015, 742 employees participated in blood
donations, the total blood donation volume reaching over 184,760

ml, with the hope of helping severe clinical patients in urgent need of
blood.
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PARTICIPATION IN NON-PROFIT
ORGANIZATIONS

Shenzhou has become a member of Textile Exchange since October
2011. Textile Exchange is a non-profit organization based in USA,
the mission of which is to promote the sustainable development of
the entire textile value chain. Shenzhou has all along been actively
participating in industry conferences, seminars and other activities,
sharing best practices with relevant parties and discussing the future
development of the textile industry.

Up to 2012, guided by PUMA, our Group’s major subsidiary,
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. participated in the development
of PUMA C2C (Cradle to Cradle) closed-loop ecological
environmentally-friendly products. From its selection of original yarns
to dyeing materials, printing material and agents, this category
had complied with the C2C environmentally-friendly products
requirements and passed the C2C products certification. For more
relevant C2C information, please refer to C2C website: www.c2c-
world.com.

The Group has been a member of BCI (in full “better cotton
initiative”) since 2013. The keynote of BCI (in full
initiative”) is to ensure the cultivation of cotton to be more beneficial

“better cotton

to cotton farmers, the cultivation environment and the future
development of the industry. Nike and Adidas, being the major
customers of Shenzhou, are both members of BCI Organization. The
six major principles (quality assurance, water resources, the health
of soil for cotton cultivation, protection of the ecological environment
of the surrounding areas of cotton cultivation, quality of cotton and
decent work) of BCI are increasingly recognized by the community.

These are in line with Shenzhou’s rationale of emphasizing social
responsibilities and promoting business with a conscience, which are
therefore well-received by the management of Shenzhou.
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Since 2014, the Group joined Ning bo (Beilun) Charity Association.

The following pictures are the certificates of merit awarded to our
Group by Ningbo (Beilun) Charity Association:

Since January 2015, the registered trademark of Shenzhou Knitting
(registered number: 7226707), a subsidiary of the Group, was
recognized as a “Famous Brand of Zhejiang Province” by Zhejiang
Provincial Administration of Industry and Commerce, signifying the
recognition of the Group’s development over the past few years and
reflected the influence and reputation of the Shenzhen brand in the
industry.

The Group also concerns on the protection of the wild animal. The

Group became a silver member of WWF since 2013.

The following pictures are the trophies awarded to our Group by
WWEF in year 2013-2015.
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Other Awards:

Sustainability:

Starting from September 2015, Shenzhou International was included
in the Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index Series, which
includes Hong Kong listed companies with the most outstanding
performance in terms of corporate sustainability. The index is a
cross-market index covering leaders of corporate sustainability
in Hong Kong and Mainland. The constituent stocks are carefully
selected with reference to the rating results of sustainability by
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, an independent professional
accreditation body, in accordance to the framework it designed
for sustainability rating. This enables the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index Series to achieve objectivity, reliability and of high
investment significance, offering a series of quality benchmark for the
index funds under the theme of corporate sustainability.

Below is the certificate of membership of the Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index Series:

Certificate of Membership

Hang Seng Corporate
Sustainability Index Series

This is to certify that

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Ltd.

is a constituent company of the

Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Index Series

September 2015

The Hang Seng Corporite Suitssability Index Series, limnched by Hang Seng Indeses Company Limiced.
includes companicy thae perform well in cosposaie smtainabiling

Companics in the Hang Serg Corparase Sustainahility I Series have ateaind  high suandasd
of proformance im mvironmental, wial and cocporsic grvernance sipecs.

Vincent Kwan
Dheruii asd Comeral Masager
Mg Seng Irndeses Canspany Lam e

@lﬁi?ﬁ‘ﬁ

HANG SENG INDEXES
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Corporate Governance:

In terms of corporate governance, Shenzhou International was
recognized in 2015 and was named as one of the 2015 Best
Corporate Governance Awards for Listed Companies by Ta Kung
Pao, and was selected as one of the Private Companies with the
Largest Market Capitalization on the Hong Kong Stocks Ranking, the
Mainland Enterprises Category in 2014-2015 (2014-201545 E B K
EEANBEBSRMBETENRATERSD) by Yazhou Zhoukan.
This was greatly encouraging to Shenzhou International and proves
that the community is confident in the corporate governance of
Shenzhou International. Therefore, the Group will continue its efforts
to raise the level of corporate governance, so as to meet the higher
international standards of corporate governance.

Below is the trophy and certificate of 2015 Best Corporate
Governance Awards for Listed Companies by Ta Kung Pao:

TE R EMNETELS ARERER2014-20155F
ErREAKENCZANBERMETENRA
TMER R

Below is the Group’s trophy of the Private Companies with the
Largest Market Capitalization on the Hong Kong Stocks Ranking, the
Mainland Enterprises Category in 2014-2015 by Yazhou Zhoukan:
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ma Jianrong (5 %), aged 52,
and the Chairman of the Group. He is a senior economist. He is

is an Executive Director

responsible for the overall business development strategy of the
Group and has over 35 years of experience in the textile industry.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton
Mill (43 B8 458 ) and Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant
(AN B T ST A AR MR )

as the manager of the knitting and weaving department, a deputy

After joining the Group, Mr. Ma served

general manager and the general manager of Ningbo Shenzhou
Weaving Group Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Weaving”), the earliest operating
entity of the Group. He has been the chairman of Ningbo Shenzhou
Knitting Co., Ltd.
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee on 1 April

(“Shenzhou Knitting”) since April 2005. He was

2012. Mr. Ma is a deputy to the People’s Congress of Zhejiang
Province. He was awarded “Charity Model of Ningbo ( 22 17 % 2 #
)7, “Charity Prize of Zhejiang — Individual” (37L& = 85 — & A %)
and “Prize for Outstanding Charity Contribution in China”( #f Bl & &
REFREE) .

Mr. Huang Guanlin (ZE#) , aged 51, is an Executive Director
and the general manager of the Group. He is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group such as production, sales and marketing
and has over 28 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Huang graduated from Zhejiang University of Technology (#7/T T %
X&), majoring in chemical industry management and engineering.
Prior to joining the Group in 1989, he worked for a silk knitting mill
in Yuhang County, Zhejiang Province. After joining the Group, Mr.
Huang worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
production and operation department of Ningbo Weaving. He has
been the general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005. Mr.
Huang was the chairman of the Nomination Committee during the
period from October 2005 to March 2012. He is the brother-in-law of
Mr. Ma Jianrong.
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Mr. Ma Renhe (FE1=#1), aged 56, is an Executive Director and
a deputy general manager of the Group. He is responsible for
administration, dyeing and finishing affairs of the Group and has
over 39 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to joining the
Group in 1989, he worked for Shaoxing Cotton Mill and Hangzhou
Linping Knitting and Garment Plant. After joining the Group, Mr.
Ma worked as the manager and a deputy general manager of the
dyeing and finishing department of Ningbo Weaving. He has been
a deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2002.
From October 2005 to March 2012, Mr. Ma was also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and subsequently redesignated as
a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is a cousin of Mr. Ma
Jianrong (his father and Mr. Ma Jianrong’s father are brothers).

Ms. Zheng Miaohui () 1&) |
and a deputy general manager of the Group. She is responsible

aged 61, is an Executive Director

for the financial management of the Group and has over 31 years
of experience in financial management, and she obtained an
accountant qualification certificate. After joining the Group in 1988,
Ms. Zheng served as the manager and an assistant to the general
manager of the finance department of Ningbo Weaving. She has
been a deputy general manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April
2005.

Mr. Wang Cunbo (E7 ), aged 44, joined the Group as the
department head of the finance department of the Group and the
financial controller of Shenzhou Knitting in May 2004. He was
appointed as a Director of the Group in 2011. He graduated from
Zhejiang University of Technology (#7/T T2 X&), majoring in
biology and chemical engineering, with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering in 1995. In the same year, Mr. Wang studied at Zhejiang
University of Technology where he obtained a master’s degree in
management in 1998. In addition, he obtained the certificates of
the PRC certified public accountant, the PRC registered tax agent
and the PRC certified public valuer and senior accountant and the
operating permit of the PRC public certified accountant engaged in
securities and futures-related business. Prior to joining the Group, he
was a partner of Ningbo Tianjian Yongde United Accounting Firm ( 2
Rk ERE A TR E T ) | a deputy general manager of Ningbo
Yongde Corporate Management and Consulting Firm ( 22§k =1 %
EIBFAHERFT) , and has over 6 years of experience as certified
accountant.

Annual Report 2015 £ ¥

85



86

EERSHREEEKERBE

Biographical Details of Directors and Members of Senior Management

MEFa: W+t RZE—=F+=H
—HEZEARAAREBEZHITESR  AEEH
BIAAKIE BEMBRER EMBEERB
BT RELB - R —NUNTEHAMNER
SEE REEEREAENTRE XL
12 BIR A RSB ASIR AR TRBNIE AR
EAKENE RN_EETFNAE-_TT=
FRABE REETTHEBEIREARBRE
FEEEIR -BITR_ZEZ-FEENTBM
Lean Sigma Institute * % 1§ Kaizen Promotion
Office Toward World-Class Manufacturing
Excellence2#FE WHR T —FEERN
I RBEESR BERAREEREEA
BRMERESE -

BYFHITES

BEREE I t+—m —ANZF=E
—NANRFHERFEARLME TR E
ARBRBEEFER YREKESEE LB
IMREF-BEER - NNRFRERMT
TERREFF-HAANIIEABKEEE
BREMEAIE -BRETANITIEKRE
TEHERBELTMBARETLEHHA XA
MTEMRBREVHER R 2T
EeRMIEESEEIMMNBEEREAR
AEFEMBER - BEER _ZT—_—FMA
—HEZERAKREBIUNRNTES BFX
ZEEXR ULFHNZESNIREREZES

Ms. Chen Zhifen (FRZ2 %), aged 47, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Group on 1 December 2013. She is a
deputy general manager of the Group, responsible for all garment
manufacturing departments, and has over 26 years of experience in
the textile industry. After joining the Group in April 1990, she worked
as the section chief, the manager of the garment manufacturing
department, the manager of the No. 2 and No. 6 garment
manufacturing departments, an assistant to the general manager
of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general manager of the
Group. During the period from September 2000 to June 2003, Ms.
Chen studied at Naval University of Engineering (BE T2 K£),
majoring in management engineering. She also graduated from TBM
LeanSigma Institute with a certificate for completion of the Kaizen
Promotion Office Toward World-Class Manufacturing Excellence in
2007 and the College of Economics of Zhejiang University (475 A £
£ ) with a certificate for the senior seminar class for modern
entrepreneur managers in 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Xianpin (& ), aged 51, studied accounting in
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, the PRC
(PH/E B 48 K E) from 1982 to 1986 and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Economics majoring in accounting. Mr. Jiang started
teaching at Zhejiang University of Technology (3 I I ¥ K &)
in 1986 and is currently a professor in the School of Accounting,
Trade and Management (& & &2 7 ) of Zhejiang University of
Technology. Mr. Jiang is also a key teaching staff in the University’s
MBA Education Centre and has been engaged by the Science
Technology Department of Zhejiang Province (47T % &l & B2 )
as its special finance expert, as well as a director of Institute of
Finance Engineering, Zhejiang Province, PRC (#T/T 4 €@ T2
&), and the chief financial adviser to T BIEEHE EH A E]. Mr.
Jiang was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
and the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on 1 April

2012.

BRI B B 45 11 4% % 5 PR /2 & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



EERSHEEEKERE

Biographical Details of Directors and Members of Senior Management

RBELEE NT/\B RHBEHERR
PO+ R &R - RAEEDRE LEHBARZ
AETREMES -REER-NAANFNA
ARABZMBRABRMNSBEERK - RE
E-ERAKEIFEE-_FTLFEIK
WHRERARBEERMNSFBOAEEE BE
AEEEMAR - R NAN=ZFMALEE
Bl BRAEGERELEHE — THREHE
AR EBBREHEBBR QR BIELE - RE
AR -_F——F\AMBAXRKEEEBILIFE
HITER FHEZESRERZEERE I
R-BE-——FUAAEFMEES TR

REBLE ~S+H0EK T —=FMA—A
MAREBEABIIFRNTES BHRZEE
ERIRZEEENE -BEEEENPHE
BMEZEER BAERBERNEREREAER
MEESEPRBECEMERE - Btk E
TERCEHERME BHEMNEERES
REGH BEMHBIEARLE B
BEERERARNESRRAH FEWEE
HoEMAREEA  BAEREETEER
MTEERRERREZER KT —Z4FH
A &Ko

Mr. Chen Genxiang (PR %), aged 68, has over 46 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Chen obtained a certificate
of dyeing and finishing engineer from E/&& 4 /A &]. Mr. Chen
joined the Company’s subsidiary, Shenzhou Knitting, in 1998 up
to his retirement. Mr. Chen worked for the Group until he retired in
2007 and before his retirement, he was a deputy general manager
of Shenzhou Khnitting responsible for the product development of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group in 1993, Mr. Chen served as
an assistant to the factory manager of Shanghai Knitting No. 20
Plant and a deputy general manager of Shanghai Baoye Knitting
Company Limited. Mr. Chen joined the Group in August 2011 as
an Independent Non-executive Director, and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee. He was promoted
to the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee in April 2012.

Mr. Qiu Weiguo (3R/&H]) , aged 64, joined the Group on 1 April
2013 as an Independent Non-executive Director, and a member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Qiu
graduated from Party School of Ningbo Municipal Committee of the
Communist Party of China, holding a bachelor’s degree and the
qualification of practicing as an economist in Ningbo (Intermediate
level). He served as a factory manager of Ningbo Chemical Fibre
Plant (&L 28 #F) , the chairman and chief executive of Z
HEFIEE B, a manager of ER W44 T 3 2 7], the chairman
and chief executive of B 47 4% 5 B 5 %2 7], the party secretary
of the Communist Party Committee of the city of Fenghua. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Qiu served as the chief of Ningbo Bureau of
Quality and Technical Supervision (ZF T E £ HIITEE ) and the
secretary to the Party Committee. He retired in April 2012.
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Mr. Chen Xu (FRfB) ,
2013 as an independent non-executive Director and a member of

aged 67, joined the Group on 1 December

each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Chen graduated from Hangzhou Chemistry and Industry Institute
(ML E T Z 24 ) with a diploma in chemical machinery and the
Leadership Training Class of the Party School of Zhejiang Municipal
Committee of the Communist Party (H/T & Z ER B EBETT) .
Between July 1970 and September 1983, Mr. Chen held various
positions at Zhenhai Fertiliser Plant ($8)8 8t JE® ) including
coordinator, deputy section chief of production and technology,
workshop director, deputy secretary of the party committee as well
as factory director. Mr. Chen also served as deputy head of the
organisation department of Zhenhai County Party Committee (8,8
S L AALEEL) from June 1985 to October 1985. He was a member
of the standing committee and the secretary of the Commission
for Discipline Inspection of Binhai (Beilun) District of Ningbo (&
W THEE (4% ) [E) between October 1985 and March 1992. He
was also a member of the standing committee of the Commission
for Discipline Inspection of Ningbo (Z ) T 40 % ) between August
1989 and March 1992, the vice secretary and the secretary of the
commission and the chairman of the standing committee of the
Local People’s Congress of Binhai (Beilun) District (2% Tt @ & A
K &HZE) between March 1992 and January 2003. From February
2002 to March 2011,
standing committee of the Local People’s Congress of Ningbo ( &
BHARELZS).
advisory committee to the People’s Government of Ningbo ( Z )8
ARBF#HHZEE ) in August 2011 and retired from this position in
September 2013.

Mr. Chen served as the vice chairman of the

He was appointed as the deputy director of the

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Tak Hing, Kenji (FR&E®H) ,
in September 2008. He is currently the Financial Controller and

aged 45, joined the Group

Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, financial controlling, company secretarial
and accounting. Mr. Chan holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Master of Science Degree in China Business
Management. Mr. Chan is also a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Certified Tax Adviser
in Hong Kong and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England & Wales.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hu Jijun (#4 %) , aged 47, is a deputy general manager of
the Group. He is responsible for sales and marketing of the Group
and has 26 years of sales and marketing experience in the Japanese
knitwear market. After joining the Group in September 1989, Mr.
Hu worked at the production and operation department of Ningbo
Weaving as the deputy manager and an assistant to the general
manager, responsible for export sales. He has been a deputy general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since April 2005.

Mr. Chen Lan (BR/E) , aged 50, is a deputy general manager of
the Group, responsible for the procurement of raw materials, such
as cotton yarn, and information management, and has over 27 years
of experience in textile industry. After joining the Group in July 1989,
he served as the manager of the weaving department, the deputy
manager of the production and operation department, the manager
of the raw materials procurement department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an assistant to the general
manager of the Group.

Mr. Gu Chaoquan (B #i#) , aged 54, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, responsible for the production planning of the Group,
and has over 28 years of experience in textile industry. Prior to
joining the Group in 1989, he worked for the government of Beilun
District, Ningbo City, China. Mr. Gu served as the deputy head of
the office, the manager of the garment manufacturing department,
the manager of the No. 1 garment manufacturing department (& 7K
—#B) , assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving and an
assistant to the general manager of the Group.

Mr. Yan Delin (5#&#k), aged 61, is a deputy general manager
of the Group, in charge of the operations of the Group’s garment
factory in Cambodia and has over 28 years of experience in textile
industry. He has obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yan worked as the head of the equipment
division of Hangzhou Linping Knitting and Garment Plant, the
head of its office, and a deputy general manager of joint venture
companies under Yuhang Cooperative Office (RMHIEMRAE)
during which, he served as the general manager of a Cambodian
company under the Yuhang Cooperative Office. After joining the
Group in October 1999, Mr. Yan worked as the deputy head of the
office of Ningbo Weaving and has been an assistant to the general
manager of Shenzhou Knitting since May 2005. He graduated from
the Correspondence College at the Party School of the Central
Committee of CCP, majoring in economic management.
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Mr. Jiang Tao (JI3), aged 49, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the Uniglo Business Department of
the Group. He has 20 years of experience in knitting and weaving
industry. Mr. Jiang graduated from the Faculty of English at Shanghai
University (_E/8KXE) | majoring in English for international trade.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked at Shanghai Dongfang Rimian
Company Limited ( L8375 BA& B R A F]) . After joining the Group
in October 1998, Mr. Jiang served as an assistant to the general
manager of Ningbo Weaving and was responsible for the sales to
Uniglo.

Mr. Cui Jifeng (#4232 8) , aged 52, is an assistant to the general
manager of the Group, responsible for the Group’s technology
and quantity affairs, and has over 27 years of experience in textile
industry. Prior to joining the Group in 1990, he worked as the deputy
factory manager of Ningbo Beilun Garments Plant ( 2 1k iy fR 2
) , in charge of technology. Mr. Cui served as the deputy manager
of the production and operation department and an assistant to the
general manager of Ningbo Weaving.

Mr. Hu Yonghai (#7K&), aged 50, is an assistant to the
general manager of the Group, responsible for the affairs of fabric
technology, and has over 27 years of experience in textile industry.
He obtained the certificate of assistant economist. Mr. Hu graduated
from Zhejiang Industrial University (3T T % X2 ) with a bachelor’s
degree in industrial management engineering. He joined the Group
immediately after graduation and worked as an assistant manager,
deputy manager of the production and operation department and an
assistant to the general manager of Ningbo Weaving, responsible for
the affairs of fabrics and technology.

Mr. Ma Bin ( F#2) , aged 45, joined the Group in 2001. Currently,
he is an assistant to the general manager and the manager of the
NIKE Business Department of the Group. He is fully in charge of
the operation and project management and customer relationship
maintenance of the NIKE business department. Mr. Ma has 16
years of experience in the textile industry. After joining the Group,
he participated in the formation of the Shenzhou Department of
European and U.S. Business and was responsible for targeting
potential customers. He has been responsible for the NIKE business
since early 2005. In January 2009, he was appointed as an assistant
to the Group’s general manager. He graduated from the Department
of Electronic Engineering of the Fudan University and later obtained
his SUFE-Webster joint MBA from the MBA School of Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Ma served as the business development manager of the Sealand
Securities.
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Mr. Song Qing (RE), aged 46, is an assistant to the general
manager and the manager of the ADIDAS Business Department
of the Group. He is fully in charge of the general management
and system construction of the ADIDAS Business Department of
the Group. He assists the general manager with other aspects of
operations and has 18 years of experience in the textile industry.
In 1994, Mr. Song graduated from the Department of Computer
Science and Technology of the Northwestern Polytechnical
University. He obtained a Master of Technology from the National
University of Singapore in 2005 and graduated from the NTU-SJTU
Joint Executive MBA (EMBA) Programme in 2008. Having joined the
Group in January 2007, Mr. Song has 10 years of work experience
in Singapore. Beginning in 1997, he worked as a senior software
development engineer for a software development firm for a year.
In 1998, he joined KZET M ABRAF of the textile industry
and served as its IT Manager and Chief Information Officer CIO
successively.

Mr. Xu Huiguo (&2 El) , aged 63, joined the Group in 2011. He
is currently a deputy general manager of the Group in charge of
the administrative affairs of the Group. Mr. Xu has over 44 years
of experience in administration and management. Mr. Xu obtained
an undergraduate qualification in economic management from the
Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C. and is a qualified
engineer. Prior to joining the Group, he was the team leader of the
wiring team (4288 ) of Ningbo Electricity Bureau (EXEER) | a
manager and the secretary of the party branch of 2K ERRIE L
25N 7], the general manager of %)% & % /A 7], the chief of Beilun
District Electricity Bureau (b #£ % /B ) and the general manager of
Ningbo Mingyao Environmental Thermal Power Co., Ltd.
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The Directors of Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
primary activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements and the Management Discussion and Analysis section of
this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in
the Chairman’s Statement, Financial Review and Business Review
sections respectively from pages 10 to 15, pages 26 to 37 and
pages 23 to 25 of this annual report. The future development of
the Group’s business is discussed throughout this annual report
including in the Chairman’s Statement and Future Prospect and
Strategies from pages 10 to 15 and 37 to 39 of this annual report.
In addition, more details regarding the Group’s performance by
reference to environmental and social-related key performance
indicators and policies, as well as relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers, are provided in this annual report in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report. This discussion forms
part of this Report of the Directors.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 107 to 211.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$1.07
per share (including a special dividend of HK$0.35 per share)
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.90 per share) for the year ended
31 December 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 10 June 2016. However, the
proposed payment of the dividend shall be subject to approval by
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
to be held on 26 May 2016 and subject to such approval having
been obtained, the payment of such dividend is expected to be in
late June 2016 (which will be confirmed in a separate announcement
after the relevant resolution is passed at the AGM).

No interim dividend was declared for the six months ended 30 June
2015.

There was no arrangement under which a shareholder of the
Company had waived or agreed to waive any dividend during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 41 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately RMB1,979,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year.

Annual Report 2015 £ ¥

93



94

EEE®RE
Report of the Directors

A it 7 Ik i

RRBRESHEAREE _+ 5 (—A~—
FE=ZFEM LIEFEEREFT)FHE - RAF
R-E—AF+-_A=+—HBHHAES K
A ANRE2541,766,00070 Hf AR

1,254,128,000c B & AIEAF E KRB
é\o

BrRBRE

RN R4 A S A2 AR PR 3 B R AR
ZlEX MASEEZERTERERAT
RBETHRE ARLOGTRARERS
HE R 0 PR 6 <

MBEENRE
AEEAEREANREENEM AERA
EH BN E212H -

BE LEIBEES

ARRAREANBAIRRE-S—HF
tASt-BLEFEABERE ME
B AR A AEE LR

BRESTE
RZEB-—AF+ZA=+—H ARFILE
(E RS AR AT B -

BEE
AEENRBESREAR I EEMT

HITES:

BEEEE
HEEAMESE
BEMEE
@i+
THREEE
BREHFLZ+

BYUFHTES:
BRARKE L4

R 1B 5 &
BEmEE
REBEEE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2015,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to RMB2,541,766,000, of which RMB1,254,128,000 has
been proposed as final dividend for the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction under the laws
of Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer such
rights on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders during new shares
issue.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 212.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share option scheme was operated by the Company as at 31
December 2015.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Ma Jianrong

Mr. Huang Guanlin
Mr. Ma Renhe

Ms. Zheng Miaohui
Mr. Wang Cunbo

Ms. Chen Zhifen

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chen Genxiang

Mr. Chen Xu

Mr. Jiang Xianpin

Mr. Qiu Weiguo
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In accordance with Article 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Mr. Ma Jianrong, Ms. Chen Zhifen, Mr. Chen
Genxiang and Mr. Chen Xu shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-election thereat.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term
of three years. The Company has received annual confirmations
of independence from Mr. Chen Genxiang, Mr. Chen Xu, Mr. Jiang
Xianpin and Mr. Qiu Weiguo pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and has considered that they are all independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years which will be automatically
renewed for another term of three years subject to compliance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the Listing Rules
until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the respective service
contract. According to the respective service contract, it may be
terminated at any time by either party giving the other party not less
than three months’ prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years which
will be automatically renewed for another term of three years subject
to compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company and
the Listing Rules until it is terminated pursuant to the terms of the
respective service contract. According to the respective service
contract, it may be terminated at any time by the Independent Non-
executive Director giving not less than three months’ prior written
notice.

Under the respective service contracts, each of the Executive
Directors is entitled to an annual discretionary management bonus
as the Remuneration Committee of the Board may approve, provided
that the aggregate amount of the discretionary management
bonuses payable to all Executive Directors in respect of any financial
year of the Group would not exceed 5% of the net profits of the
Group after taxation and minority interests and less the aggregate
amount of the discretionary management bonuses but before non-
recurring items for the relevant financial year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’
AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company and subject
to the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the
Company against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director, auditor or
other officer of the Company, other than for any matter in respect of
any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any such persons. The
Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company
during the year in respect of any legal actions which may be taken
against the Directors and officers in the execution and discharge of
their duties or in relation thereto.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 8 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”
below and “Related party transactions” in note 40 to the financial
statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement and contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, none of the Directors of
the Company had any interest in any competing business with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND MEMBER OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors of the Company and
members of the Senior Management of the Group are set out on
pages 84 to 91.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which was taken or
deemed to be held by any such director or chief executive under
such provisions of the SFO) and were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (“Securities Trading Code”) contained in the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

HERRATE BT

=g Msx SOREZER ii&vig - Q=] B E D (%)
Percentage of

the Issued Share

Capacity and Capital of

Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
BRRESE 1 NEIRER 750,332,500 53.63%
Mr. Ma Jianrong 1 Corporate interests 750,332,500 53.63%
B MEAE 2 NEIRER 85,837,500 6.14%
Mr. Ma Renhe 2 Corporate interests 85,837,500 6.14%
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Note:

1. As at 31 December 2015, 750,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory Limited (“Keep Glory”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to
80.08% by Splendid Steed Investments Limited (“Splendid Steed”),
13.92% by BMX (HK) LTD. (“BMX”) and 6.00% by Super China
Enterprises Limited (“Super China”). Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin (brother-in-law of Mr. Ma Jianrong and son-in-law of Mr. Ma
Baoxing). Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Jianrong is deemed
to be interested in the 750,332,500 Shares held by Keep Glory.

2. As at 31 December 2015, 85,837,500 Shares were held by Fairco
Group Limited (“Fairco”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, which in turn was owned as to 72.94% by
MCC Group Ltd (“MCC”) and 27.06% by certain senior management
of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui, Mr. Wang Cunbo and
Ms. Chen Zhifen (all are executive Directors). MCC, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a cousin of Mr.
Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Ma Renhe is deemed to be
interested in the 85,837,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Securities Trading Code.

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executive of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age)
to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2015, the following persons who held interests of
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company, other than
Directors of the Company, were recorded in the register of members
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

EARDRE BT
RA B 5 £ (%)

Percentage of

BB E

the Issued Share

Capacity and

Capital of

Name Notes  Nature of Interest Number of Shares the Company
ISES 1 BB A 750,332,500 53.63%
Keep Glory 1 Beneficial owner 750,332,500 53.63%
TES 1 NEIR £ 750,332,500 53.63%
Splendid Steed 1 Corporate interests 750,332,500 53.63%
25 2 BB A 85,837,500 6.14%
Fairco 2 Beneficial owner 85,837,500 6.14%
MCGC 2 NI £ 85,837,500 6.14%
MCC 2 Corporate interests 85,837,500 6.14%
B 5 Notes:
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1. As at 31 December 2015, 750,332,500 Shares were held by Keep
Glory, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, which is owned as to 80.08% by Splendid Steed, 13.92%
by BMX and 6.00% by Super China. Splendid Steed, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly
owned by Mr. Ma Jianrong. BMX, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Huang
Guanlin. Super China, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Baoxing (father
of Mr. Ma Jianrong). By virtue of the SFO, Splendid Steed is deemed to
be interested in the 750,332,500 Shares held by Keep Glory.
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2. As at 31 December 2015, 85,837,500 Shares were held by Fairco, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
which is owned as to 72.94% by MCC and 27.06% by certain senior
management of the Group including Ms. Zheng Miaohui, Mr. Wang
Cunbo and Ms. Chen Zhifen (all are executive Directors). MCC, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability,
is wholly owned by Mr. Ma Renhe, an executive Director and a cousin
of Mr. Ma Jianrong. By virtue of the SFO, MCC is deemed to be
interested in the 85,837,500 Shares held by Fairco.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the paragraph headed “Directors and Chief Executives’ interests and
short positions in the shares of the Company” above, had interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2015 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

hERBEE hiEEEZ

B 7t (%) B2 (%)

Percentage of Percentage of

Purchases (%) Sales (%)

RAHERBF The largest supplier/customer 13.61 24.84
AARHER EF A5  Five largest suppliers/customers combined 32.13 85.47
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For further information about the top four customers, please refer to
note 4 to the financial statements.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers at all times during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 40 to
the financial statements also constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, which are required to be
disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The following transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Company have been entered
into and/or are ongoing for which relevant disclosure had been
made by the Company in announcements in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
remaining related party transactions do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
a. Lease of certain production premises and facilities
Ningbo Shenzhou Knitting Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Knitting”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Ningbo
Shenzhou Properties Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Properties”) entered
into a lease agreement on 18 December 2013, pursuant to
which Shenzhou Properties leased to Shenzhou Knitting the
apparel production properties for a period commencing on 1
January 2014 and expiring on 31 December 2016, with a right
of renewal exercisable by Shenzhou Knitting for a further term
of three years at or below the prevailing market rate (the “Lease
Agreement”). The Lease Agreement is terminable by Shenzhou
Knitting giving no less than three months’ notice to Shenzhou
Properties. The rental so charged by Shenzhou Properties is
determined by reference to the market rates for leasing similar
properties and production facilities from independent third
parties under normal commercial terms during the course of
ordinary business in Ningbo, China. The management of the
Company has followed the procedures adopted by the Board
to ascertain the market rates charged by independent third
parties for similar properties. Shenzhou Properties, which is
owned as to 80% by Mr. Ma Jianrong, an Executive Director,
and as to 20% by Ningbo Rongrong Industrial Investment
Company Limited (“Rongrong Industrial”), an associate of Mr.
Ma Jianrong, is therefore a connected person by virtue of
Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. During the year, rentals
paid to Shenzhou Properties by the Group amounted to
RMB9,284,000.
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Provision of cutting and sewing services

Shenzhou Knitting and % BNt @ ET B BR 2 5 (Ningbo
Shenzhou Shitong Knitwear Co. Ltd.*) (“Shenzhou Shitong”)
entered into a processing services agreement (the “Processing
Services Agreement”) dated 18 December 2013, pursuant to
which, Shenzhou Shitong agreed to provide the Group with
certain cutting services for a period commencing on 1 January
2014 and expiring on 31 December 2016 at a rate of service
charges ranging from RMB1.0 per piece to RMB1.2 per piece,
depending on the technology involved. The related charges are
determined with reference to the current market prices charged
by independent suppliers for the provision of cutting services
of knitted garments. Shenzhou Shitong, which is indirectly
owned by Worldon as to 80% interest and owned by Rongrong
Industrial as to the remaining 20% interest, is a connected
person by virtue of Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. During
the year, the processing services fees paid to Shenzhou
Shitong by the Group amounted to RMB13,589,000.

Supply of packaging materials

Shenzhou Knitting and Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
Materials Company Limited (“Huaxi Packaging Company”)
entered into a supply agreement (the “Packaging Material
Supply Agreement”) dated 18 December 2013, pursuant to
which, Huaxi Packaging Company agreed to supply packaging
materials to the Group from time to time on normal commercial
terms which are no less favorable than those available from
independent third parties. The management of the Company
has followed the procedures adopted by the Board to
ascertain the prices charged by independent third parties for
similar packaging materials. The Packaging Material Supply
Agreement is for a term commencing on 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2016. Huaxi Packaging Company is owned as to
87.5% by Mr. Huang Guanquan, who is the younger brother of
Mr. Huang Guanlin, an Executive Director, and as to 12.5% by
Mr. Huang Fuchang, who is the father of Mr. Huang Guanlin.
Huaxi Packaging Company is a connected person by virtue of
Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rule. During the year, the amount
paid to Huaxi Packaging Company by the Group for the
purchases of packaging materials totalled to RMB46,438,000.

For further details of the above continuing connected
transactions, please refer to the announcement dated 18
December 2013 made by the Company.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the aforesaid transactions had been entered into (1) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (2) either
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and (3) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
have provided the Company a letter, confirming that nothing
has come to their attention that cause them to believe that
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions (1) have not
been approved by the board of directors of the Company;
(2) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group; (3) have not been entered into,
in all material respects, in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing the transactions; and (4) have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual values disclosed in
the previous announcement dated 18 December 2013 made by

the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws,
significant impact on the Group, such as the Listing Rules and the

rules and regulations in particular, those have

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. The Board is responsible
for monitoring the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements and such policies are regularly
reviewed. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and regulations
are brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time.

As far as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects

with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, for the year ended 31
December 2015, the Company had maintained a public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young has audited the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

By Order of the Board

Ma Jianrong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2016
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To the shareholders of

Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhou
International Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries set out on pages 107 to 211, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2016
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HEZZ—AF+=-A=+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2015

—E-FF —E—mF
2015 2014
B 7 ARET T ARETIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
WA REVENUE 5 12,639,332 11,131,532
55 B A Cost of sales (8,790,416) (7,904,911)
EH Gross profit 3,848,916 3,226,621
= NS g Other income and gains 5 459,402 420,167
$HE R KA Selling and distribution expenses (255,494) (247,957)
THAX Administrative expenses (962,064) (792,868)
Hibh X Other expenses (104,169) (15,328)
A& A AN Finance costs 7 (98,733) (46,442)
JEAE—MEt % AR &8 Share of losses of an associate 17 (957) (846)
R %4 A 7 PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 2,886,901 2,543,347
e Income tax expense 11 (532,059) (476,717)
FEERE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,354,842 2,066,630
MUTALTEE#ER: Attributable to:
PINNETEF =N Owners of the Company 2,354,664 2,065,867
FEE I 1 #E 2 Non-controlling interests 178 763
2,354,842 2,066,630
AATFERRRE EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
FEAELEEBRER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 13
BN Basic AR#¥1.68Tt AR®1.487T
—FEFH — For profit for the year RMB1.68 RMB1.48
e Diluted AR¥1.62t AR¥A1.457T
—FEHHE — For profit for the year RMB1.62 RMB1.45
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HEZZT—AF+=-A=+—HILFE VYearended 31 December 2015

—E-IF —E-MF
2015 2014
B 5 AR TR ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FEFHE PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 2,354,842 2,066,630
Hit 2 HE k= OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REMmE L : Cash flow hedges:
FEEEAHHMTA Effective portion of changes in
AREEHZ fair value of hedging instruments
BRE D arising during the year 23 (2,961) 14,679
HNGEBEm K Reclassification adjustments for gains
Rz Wz recognised in the consolidated
B OEAE statement of profit or loss 23 (6,402) (7,908)
(9,363) 6,771
BMERINEE 2 Exchange differences on translation of
b i =& foreign operations 36,921 34,447
FEHM2EEE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(BRBL&) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 27,558 41,218
FE2HEWEAR TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 2,382,400 2,107,848
ATNAT R ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
IN/NEIE7 ¥ =N Owners of the Company 2,382,222 2,107,085
FE 72 ) 14 e 2 Non-controlling interests 178 763
2,382,400 2,107,848
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“E-—RAFE+-HF=+—H 31 December 2015

—E-HF —E—OF
2015 2014
B &E AR T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y BB K& Property, plant and equipment 14 5,549,750 4,183,860
A T EFKIE Prepaid land lease payments 15 931,255 773,854
B EE Intangible assets 16 109,450 102,846
ZEER Entrusted loans 21 550,000 555,000
GFERIBTHRIITHFR Long-term time deposits at banks 300,000 =
R—EBE AR ZEE  Investment in an associate 17 4,677 5,634
R IBE E Deferred tax assets 31 4,981 12,690
BIERBNEE Total non-current assets 7,450,113 5,633,884
RENEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Inventories 18 3,232,847 2,607,210
JE U BR Tk N AR Trade and bills receivables 19 2,001,783 1,642,917
FENFIE - EHE R Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
E fib & W FRIE 20 676,284 1,112,694
JE L B BsE N = 5RIB Amounts due from related parties 559 =
ZHEERK Entrusted loans 21 120,000 60,000
A HERE Available-for-sale investments 22 800,000 320,000
MESRTE Derivative financial instruments 23 - 11,214
HEBER Structured deposits 24 110,000 2,211,160
BEFF R Pledged deposits 25 1,830,908 893,483
MR FEZHE =S 2  Bank deposits with an initial term of
RITIF 3K over three months 323,442 22,392
ReRREeEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 26 1,815,678 1,428,074
RRBEE Total current assets 10,911,501 10,309,144
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
EREREERE Trade and bills payables 27 678,535 467,624
78 UL BR X Advances from customers 5,130 7,793
H 4th & {5 3008 & FEET R Other payables and accruals 28 642,939 610,308
FFRRITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 29 656,851 46,737
FEAS BEESE A - FKIB Amount due to a related party 40 2,166 1,860
FERI B SR Tax payable 169,148 130,855
BWREaE Total current liabilities 2,154,769 1,265,177
EREBEE NET CURRENT ASSETS 8,756,732 9,043,967
BEERREBAER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 16,206,845 14,677,851
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—“E-—RAE+=-HF=+—H 31 December 2015

—F-1% —F-0F
2015 2014
B =E AR T AREF T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
eI =K NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Al E 5 Convertible bonds 30 3,117,009 2,864,675
ELERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 31 - 1,850
RIERBEE Total non-current liabilities 3,117,009 2,866,525
FEE NET ASSETS 13,089,836 11,811,326
E= EQUITY
AATEEAEML#ER  Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
% < Share capital 32 142,105 142,105
1 Reserves 33 12,932,015 11,653,464
13,074,120 11,795,569
FEEEER Non-controlling interests 15,716 15,757
KA Total equity 13,089,836 11,811,326
BER HEM
Ma Jianrong Huang Guanlin
TEFEHITER TTIAR S FFHNITEE

Chairman and Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZ—AF+=-A=+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2015

LN N 1
Attributable to owners of the Company
TERESZ EERH EX EaR#E B
ke BHEER &35 byl 4 AEE ROEE BARR RERA RERE a5t FESEER L 3]
Equity Employee
Share  component of Statutory Exchange equity Proposed Non-
Share premium convertible Hedging surplus fluctuation benefits Retained final controlling Total
capital account bonds reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
Wi ARBTR ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Histsz) (H3t30) (Wikes)  (Matssp)  (Miissq))
(note 32) (note 30) (note 23) (note 33(i) (note 33ii)
At 1 January 2014 142,106 2,031,861 - 2,592 1,052,009 (61,234) 48,191 6,275,820 824920 10,316,264 15,393 10,331,657
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 6,771 - 34447 - 2,085,867 - 2,107,085 763 2,107,848
Dividends paid to non-
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (399) (399)
72 Equity component of
convertible bonds 30 - - 197,140 - - - - - - 197,140 - 197,140
Final 2013 dividend declared
- - - - - - - - (824,920) (824,920) - 824,920)
Proposed final 2014 dividend
12 - (660,119) - - - - - (643,552) 1,103,671 - - -
Transfer from retained profits = = = = 86,117 = = (86,117) = = = =
At 31 December 2014
142,106 1,471,742 197,140 9,363" 1,138,126* (26,787)" 48,191 7,712,018 1,103671* 11,795,569 15,757 11,811,326
FATREARG
Attributable to owners of the Company
TERES2 EEEH EX EaRE B3
Rx  ROEEE EEF2 Hhak ARE RORRE BAGRE REEA RERE B FEGEER aRs
Equity Employee
Share  component of Statutory Exchange equity Proposed Non-
Share premium convertible Hedging surplus fluctuation benefits Retained final controlling Total
capital account bonds reserve reserve reserve reserve profits dividend Total interests equity
Mt ARBTT  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(Hitsz) (Ht3k30) (Witos)  (Watss)  (AEEEsG)
(note 32) (note 30) (note 23) (note 33() (note 33(i)
RZF-R5-A-H A1 Janvary 2015 142,106 1,471,742 197,140 9,363 1,138,126 (26,787) 48191 7,712,018 1,103,671 11,795,569 15,757 11,811,326
EEREWAEE  Totel comprehensive income
for the year - - - (9,369) - 36921 - 2,354,664 - 2,382,222 178 2,382,400
pEzECEY . Dividends paid to non-
controling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - 219 (219
Final 2014 dividend declared
- - - - - - - - (1,103671)  (1,103671) - 1,103,671)
Proposed final 2015 dividend
AHRE 12 - (810,094) - - - - - (444,034) 1,254,128 - - -
SRARBET Transfer from retained profits - - - - 12,379 - - (12,379) - - - -
RZZ-1% At 31 December 2015
ZR=t-H 142,106 661,648 197,140 -+ 1,160,505* 10,134 48,191 9,610,269 1264128" 13,074,120 15,716 13,089,836

* BRAEVBRAIRFPZEERHBARE -
12,932,015,000c (= — M F: AR
11,653,464,0007T ) H & 5 B IRARK ©

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB12,932,015,000 (2014: RMB11,653,464,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZT—AF+=-A=+—HILFE VYearended 31 December 2015

—E-afF —E-mF
2015 2014
Bt & AR¥B T ARBTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
REXKMBELRKE  CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
B 75 B A1) B Profit before tax 2,886,901 2,543,347
THE Adjustments for:

A& KA Finance costs 7 98,733 46,442

FEfh — B & A R]EIE  Share of losses of an associate 17 957 846

A A Interest income 5 (222,435) (125,435)

TEME - KE K Loss on disposal of items of property,

REEBE ZEE plant and equipment 6 5,847 2,838

RERAMITBRRES Unrealised exchange loss of

e R convertible bonds 179,273 =

Y3 BB R Depreciation of items of property,

BERE plant and equipment 6 492,045 415,749

TR LS FRIE#ESE  Amortisation of prepaid land lease

payments 6 20,536 18,928

EmEE#H Amortisation of intangible assets 6 9,681 7,966

3,471,538 2,910,681
FE N Increase in inventories (625,637) (182,311)
JE W AR SR S R HRHE AN Increase in trade and bills receivables (358,866) (267,926)
TENRIE ke RHEM Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

FEUERIER A (#0)  deposits and other receivables 20,848 (230,056)
FEUN BEEE A £ ZXIBIE A1 Increase in amounts due from related parties (559) =
FERTBR SR R =B N Increase in trade and bills payables 210,911 75,875
T8 U AR FOR Decrease in advances from customers (2,663) (6,302)
H b fE T EIE R FE AT Increase in other payables and accruals

TRIEIE N 39,573 16,950
FEATREEE A T FIEIE A1 Increase in amounts due to related parties 306 1,860
REEBASRE Cash generated from operations 2,755,451 2,318,771
AT S Interest paid (10,287) (1,608)
BERNEARNER Hong Kong profits tax paid (38,168) (28,319)
B REMEMBEH PRC corporate income tax paid (447,889) (370,403)
REXEFREBINELAE  NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

FEE ACTIVITIES 2,259,107 1,918,441
MBS $ME  Net cash flows from operating activities

R 2,259,107 1,918,441

ER ) B % 45 @1 4% A% 5 PR /A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



MERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZ—AF+=-A=+—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2015

—E-afF —E-MF
2015 2014
AR TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REXKFMAEELRE  CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
B F & Interest received 157,220 96,911
BEME BE K Purchases of items of property,

HEIEE plant and equipment (1,859,912) (1,036,478)
HEME - BE Rk Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

REWEB 2 PR 5IA plant and equipment 4,572 4,452
SANTEA LA EFKIE  Payments of prepaid land lease payments (177,937) (95,910)
WHEEMmEREE Purchases of other intangible assets (16,285) (8,903)
I g — B A A Prepayment for acquisition of a subsidiary

KBS - (20,000)
U BE — B2 A RIA%#E  Purchases of a shareholding in an associate - (6,480)
STAEfMEWRFTE Z £/l Decrease/(increase) in financial products

Emmd, (3hm) included in other receivables 470,000 (470,000)
BT L Increase in pledged deposits (937,425) (893,483)
ZREE FIE Increase in entrusted loans (55,000) (615,000)
HEREFEZRD (#h1)  Decrease/(increase) in structured deposits 2,101,160 (2,211,160)
WA H SR E Purchases of available-for-sale investments (480,000) (120,000)
R1TER () 4 (Increase)/decrease in bank deposits (601,050) 5,033
REZEHMA NET CASH FLOWS USED IN

HEFREFE INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,394,657) (5,371,018)
mMEES (A, CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/GENERATED

ELXBHERE FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
MERITER New bank loans 928,209 46,737
BEIETEX Repayment of bank loans (318,095) =
AT RE S FTS B Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds = 3,043,590
mZANA A% A AR AR S Dividends paid to owners of the Company (1,103,671) (824,920)
A JE3E HI 1 #E 22 R M PE B, Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (219) (399)
AT B Interest paid (15,385) (7,692)
BE&EE (FTA) E4L  Net cash flows (used in)/generated

ReREFHE from financing activities (509,161) 2,257,316
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEZZT—AF+=-A=1T—HILFE VYear ended 31 December 2015

—E-HF —E—HF
2015 2014
B 5 ARE T ARETIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HERBEEZEEY NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
B/, CR2) FE AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 355,289 (1,195,261)
FUReMIEELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 1,428,074 2,609,050
EXEH) 2 FE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 32,315 14,285
FRIBEREELEEY  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 1,815,678 1,428,074
REeRESEEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
HEeRON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
R RIRITHEH Cash and bank balances 1,748,380 1,000,264
RERERE DR Time deposits with
=& A 3 54 original maturity of less than
Z EHFR three months when acquired 67,298 427,810
BT SRk M3 £ 8K Cash and cash equivalents as stated
Frolz3Re & in the statement of financial position and
REEEY the statement of cash flows 26 1,815,678 1,428,074

ER ) B % 45 1 4% A% 5 PR /A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

“E-—RAFE+-HF=+—H 31 December 2015

ARAIREEER
RMBEREEZERER AT ([RAAF])
R_ZEERFENA-_+T=BEHRZE
SEMK L AEERRER A A o 5t
= R i i A& Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands ° 2" 2 & i%
ME_ZEZRF T —HA-_THEERES
BEHAERSZMABR AR EMR ([EHR])
ke

ADAIREWBAR (KB AEE])
TENERERHEHBREES (6
BE]) -

EEZRA TEBREERAA(—XK
REBREIES ([RBREZES])E
MY 2 AE) BARAZREERA
Al HERERRA (—KNRBRLE
EEMKIL AR BRERAZHNE

pE/NEI

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 23 June 2005. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Main
Board”) since 24 November 2005.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of knitwear products (the “Knitwear Business”).

In the opinion of the directors, Splendid Steed Investments
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), is the ultimate holding company of the Company.
Keep Glory Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI, is the
intermediate holding company of the Company.

B RER Information about subsidiaries
ARAREEMB AR ZFFBHT Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:
NG 3
MR ER R R BEADL TEEBR
A% EABRZER ERTRE H# M  KEHE
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
KT AERAES. 30,002% 7T 100% - REBRZHSUEREZK
BEREEAT EREREEME
Top Always BVI, US$30,002 100% - Investment holding in the BVI
limited liability company and property leasing in
Hong Kong
ERAMNHEERAF B EBE R 116,000,000% 7 - 100%  RARBIARERE RIHE S BR
(TERMEr&l) KEM
Ningbo Shenzhou PRC, US$116,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of

Knitting Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Knitting”)

wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise

knitwear products in
Mainland China
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Notes to Financial Statements

—ZE—HAF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

1. REIREBER (&)

MERRER (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

AT 3
MR/ MG HR BEADL FEXBR
A1 EAERZER ERTRE H#E M RKEHH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
EREESANEERAR HE NEHBECE 2,100,000 T - 100%  RAREIAFEESL R HEHER
([t H@Et]) KEM
Ningbo Shixing Knitwear PRC, US$2,100,000 = 100% Print and sale of knitwear
Printing Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign-owned products in Mainland
(“Shixing Printing”) enterprise China
ERBRERERAF mEHEEERE 10,000,000 1. - 91%  RAEAREREEHER
Q5D KEM
Ningbo Yongmian Fashion PRC, US$10,000,000 = 91% Manufacture and sale of
Garment Co., Ltd. foreign equity joint knitwear products in
(“Yongmian Fashion”) venture Mainland China
ERBREEERAF mEHEEERE 5,000,000% ¢ - 91% RPEAERERHEEHER
([ERgkmE]) KEM
Ningbo Shendie PRC, US$5,000,000 = 91% Manufacture and sale of
Fashion Co., Ltd. foreign equity joint knitwear products in
(“Shendie Fashion”) venture Mainland China
Bl AR REFTE NHEBELE  30,000,000%7T - 100% HREZHERHEHBRE
Em
Shenzhou Cambodia Kingdom of Cambodia, US$30,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and sale of
wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
AT 5k mENEBERE 78,000,000% 7 - 100%  RAREIRFESLE R HEH AR
KEM
Dagian Knitting PRC, US$78,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and sale of
wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
ERMMHEERAF mENEBERE 1,050,000% T - 100%  RAREIAFESLE R TR
([#aheti]) KEM
Ningbo Linlin Knitting PRC, US$1,050,000 = 100% Manufacture and processing
Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
(“Linlin Knitting”) enterprise Mainland China

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

—ZT—AF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

1. REIREBER (&)

Gl ENCEECNE )

&

Name

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

EMRL MR

EAERZER ERTRE
Place of incorporation/

registration and kind of Issued

AT 3
BEEDL
H#E &
Percentage of
equity attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect

TEEBR
Rd- ik

Principal activities and
place of operations

ERERRGERR
(IZXEE])
Tuton Textile (Ningbo)
Co., Ltd.
(“Ningbo Tuton”)

BN (ZH) BERAA
(TeMZz&l)
Shenzhou Knitting
(Anhui) Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Anhui”)

Bt (EM) AR AR
(TEMEM])

Shenzhou Knitting (Quzhou)
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou
Quzhou”)

TEERRHERAF
(TE8ER])

Shanghai Maxwin Garments
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Maxwin”)

ERATELOBREMS
AR ([ATELA])
Ningbo Dagian Import &
Export Co., Ltd.
(“Dagjian Import & Export”)

BMES

Shenzhou Trading

XREBE
Top Always HK

legal entity share capital
mENEBERE 4,000,000% T
PRC, US$4,000,000
wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise
mENEBERE 10,000,000 .
PRC, US$10,000,000
wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise
mENEBERE 8,000,000% T
PRC, US$8,000,000
wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise
mE - BEEERT AR 2,000,0007
PRC, sole proprietorship RMB2,000,000

company

FE - BREFARA AR 10,000,0007T

PRC, RMB10,000,000
limited liability company

BE BRECAH 1007 7T

Hong Kong, HK$100
limited liability company

BE BRECAH 1007 7T

Hong Kong, HK$100

limited liability company

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%
= 100%

= 100%
= 100%

B AR B R BE L T I T3t 4R
KEM

Manufacture and processing
of knitwear products in
Mainland China

B A B R FE L T i T3t 4R
KEM

Manufacture and processing
of knitwear products in
Mainland China

B B R FE 8L T i T3t 4R
KEM

Manufacture and processing
of knitwear products in
Mainland China

NP B AEETESEH

Trading in Mainland China

NGIEPNES Fuf B ES

Import and export of
commodities in Mainland
China

BX%

Dormant

REBREZRRELOE

Investment holding and
import and export of
commaodities in Hong Kong
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Notes to Financial Statements

—ZE—HAF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

1.

AAIREEERE (&)

MERRER (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

AT 3
MR/ MG HR BEEDL FTEXBR
A1 EAERZER ERTRE =§:3 M RKEHH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and

Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations

ERBEREBIERAR HE BREELA AR 8,000,0007 - 100%  RAAREABEETR KR
(Me"])

Ningbo Hengzhi Clothing PRC, RMB8,000,000 = 100%  Clothing detection in
Detection Co., Ltd. limited liability company Mainland China
(“Hengzhi”)

ERBEHBAERAF mE - NEBERE 3,060,0005 7T - 100%  RAREIAFESLE RN T AR
([REHE]) KEm

Ningbo Yongyi Knitting Co.,  PRC, US$3,060,000 = 100% Manufacture and processing
Ltd. wholly-foreign-owned of knitwear products in
(“Yongyi Knitting”) enterprise Mainland China

=hII=R: BA BERAEAHA 5,000,0008 [ - 100% RARETESES

Shenzhou Japan Japan, JPY5,000,000 = 100% Trading in Japan

limited liability company

ERSBRHERAF HE EREERA AR 80,000,0007 - 100%  RABEABRETTEER
(I=RSH])

Ningbo Maxwin PRC, RMB80,000,000 = 100% Retail in Mainland China
Fashion Co., Ltd. limited liability company
(“Ningbo Maxwin”)

ZEONELOERAR B BREELA AR 5,000,0007 - 100%  RAREARELAER
(TeNZE])

Anging Shenzhou Import PRC, RMB5,000,000 = 100% Import and export of
& Export Co., Ltd. limited liability company commodities in Mainland
(“Shenzhou Anging”) China

HE BEREERA AR# 10,000,0007 - 100%  RABEAEETHEERER

Shanghai Maxwin PRC, RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property management in
Industry Co., Ltd. limited liability company Mainland China
(“Maxwin Industry”)

BEERE EBRAHS AREEAA 10,000% T 100% - REBRZESHEREZR

Buddies Investments BVI, US$10,000 100% - Investment holding in

limited liability company

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

—E—RAF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

1. AAIREEER &) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)
MEBARER (&) Information about subsidiaries (continued)
AT 3
MR/ MG HR BEEDL FTEXBR
A1 EAERZER ERTRE =§:3 M RKEHH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
55 BV RERLEE BREARA 10,000% 7T 100% - REBRLESHEREZR
Maxwin BVI BVI, US$10,000 100% - Investment holding in
limited liability company the BVI
BHEE BB BRAEAHA 10,0008 7 - 100% REBERSREZER
Maxwin HK Hong Kong, HK$10,000 = 100% Investment holding in Hong
limited liability company Kong
SE(hE)FRRA mENEBERE 18,000,000 1. - 100%  RABEAEETESER
([HRHE])
Maxwin (China) Limited PRC, US$18,000,000 = 100% Trading in Mainland China
(“Maxwin China”) wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise
ZRHBER AT mENEBERE 60,000,0005 7T - 100%  RAREIARESLE R HEH R
([#£2]) KEm
Huayao Textile Limited PRC, US$60,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and sale of
(“Huayao”) wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
BEERM B BREEAH 100,0008 - 100% RRMETEFES
Buddies Macao Macao, MOP100,000 = 100%  Trading in Macao
limited liability company
ATRER REZETE NHEBELE  40,000,000% 7T - 100% HREZHERHEHBRE
Em
Dagian Cambodia Kingdom of Cambodia, US$40,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and sale of
wholly-foreign-owned knitwear products in
enterprise Cambodia
BEEEHE EBRAHS AREEATA E - 100% REBELHESETRERR
Buddies Group BVI, USs$1 = 100% Investment holding in

limited liability company

the BVI
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Notes to Financial Statements

—ZE—HAF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

1. RAREEERE (&

MERRER (&)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

AT 3
MR/ MG HR BEEDL TEEBR
A1 EAERZER ERTRE =§:3 M RKEHH
Percentage of
Place of incorporation/ equity attributable to
registration and kind of Issued the Company Principal activities and
Name legal entity share capital Direct Indirect  place of operations
ATHE (ZB)ERAR  HE HEBELE 8,000,000 7T - 100%  RAREAEZER
HEHBREER
Dagian Textile (Anhui) PRC, US$8,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. wholly-foreign owned knitwear products in
enterprise Mainland China
= EBRAHS AREEATA E 100% - REBRRESETREZR
Gain Lucky BVI, USs$1 100% - Investment holding in
limited liability company the BVI
BRI B ARAEAHA 50,000,0005 7T - 100%  HEEEER
HEHBREER
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Vietnam, US$50,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. limited liability company knitwear products in
Vietnam
jugthifes B ARAEAHA 36,000,0005 7T - 100%  HHEELE RN TSRS
Em
Worldon (Vietnam) Vietnam, US$36,000,000 = 100% Manufacture and processing
Company Limited limited liability company of knitwear products in
Vietnam
ZHERRHERAF HE EREERA AR %5,000,0007C - 100%  RABEABRETTEER
Anhui Maxwin Fashion Co.,  PRC, RMB5,000,000 = 100% Retail in Mainland China
Ltd. limited liability company
ERRSFMHERAF  HE BREELA AR #44,932,4287T - 100%  RAREIARESLE R HEHER
KEm
Ningbo Ruiding New PRC, RMB44,932,428 = 100% Manufacture and sale of

Materials Co., Ltd.

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

“E-—RAFE+-HF=+—H 31 December 2015

2.1 RRE%E 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

RAVBRRDBREZTESANAE
(IBEEGRTMAS])EM2BEBUH
BEEQ ([BEHBREER ] B
ERETRAMBHREEN FEGtE
Al ([FEesER]) M) FEA
Rt R REBR RGN RKERE
R -BEAREAENTESRTA
S #RE TSR TR E L R AE A
mE-BIEZEER BRI FMH R
ZUAARE ([ARKE]) 27 FiBHE
BENEANEAHABREREATA -

aprae
BANBERDEAAARENBAR
(HBAEBDRE-F-—HEF+-
A=+—ALEEZHHEER HBA
ANMAARNEERMELH 2 ES
(BEABERE) - AEERERE
AYRLANB2 TEBRREARL
SHER AREEARERANR Y
ENYEREERNHEN (DR T AR
BiE S R A Y R ABEEHRE ) 2 5
BRI B DRARA -

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for derivative
financial instruments which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”)
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2015. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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Notes to Financial Statements

—“E-—RE+=-HF=+—H 31 December 2015

1 REEE (&)

SOFEE (
HARBERABMEEGIRNREHR
REBERRHECER RN - BIAE
BN EERSHEEHREHRNEN
HReEZR—UHEBEERERL 85

(@) HEREHREGBREFAANEG
M BE:

b) HMEHLHMEENEN: &
(0 ARBEZREEIBEREE-

BRI M ERERTIIER—HNES
BB - W AR B AN 2 R AR [R] #9 3R & BT AR
H-MBARMEED AAEEREE
HEEEGEAAR UKEECHES
SEEGIERIEERRIE-

B3R A2 AR S AR BH NS
BN AEEEATEAE A RIEHIEE
W BIGR BB A R
B AAREKEATENRSMEELD
FAEERARMAER AR %
WA IR RRSRELRA RN
3 o

WBEEERBRER EXHB QB M
M= EEdEITERT A — @A L
REH - AAKESENTIEEEIES
KREER —FZWERARZMERER
BAEEH(AEAEEHE)RERR
PN

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control,
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described for
subsidiaries above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

ER ) B % 45 @1 4% A% 5 PR /A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



AR ERAR M EE
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R

2.2

AFE+_-_A=+—H 31 December 2015

REEE &)

ABEEE (#)

MHAEEAEH —RHBR A 225
B RERRRO)ZHNBARZEE
(BIEER) RAE - (i) b
2% 7 BREE R (i) B2 iR e > 23R
BEw RRRBOFUREZAR
(iR BAE MR B 2 2 o 18 R (i) 8 25 BF
T M 2 B R AE - & AR
H 2 U 26 % PO TE SR 2 7 £ B s 6
B ERRAEEEELEABEEN
B ERE AR LB R A AR
REBEF (CRAEBEY) -

ENRREHREE

RER BN AR 2 55k B IRER A DA
TRIEFTNF BT B REER -

BEAGIERBIORMETT  RTEAHE:
ESH
BEANEREEN-"T-TEE-_T——FRAMY
FEYE
BANERELN-_T——FE_T-=FRAHY
FEM#E

PR Lt 4 4E FT 22 RISE S 3 1t 35 B 7 3R
REKRBEAYHEE -

LS - AR R AN B B TR BR AR B B
RFRMOEBEREMBER 2 LR
AIMERTA (2Z BB A FGD (£622
B)) HMBHRRNIBZZEERYB
RPN EEETERTHE -

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The adoption of the above revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

In addition, the Company has adopted the amendments to
the Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
relating to the disclosure of financial information with reference
to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during
the current financial year. The main impact to the financial
statements is on the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

—ZE—HAF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2015

23 EHEMEEAERNNE BT 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HEA HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

AEEWERNNETERETER T The Group has not applied the following new and revised

B MR E B R AR BT E] RSB EI BB HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

B s s A2 Bl o these financial statements.

BER M BRE LR F5 SHTA HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

BB REEDE105 R REZRABER A Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
BB ERE8HMET LAEPERIZE HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
(Z2——%) EHELFA Venture'

BERUBREEREI0% REERE: Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
BERUMBHRELENE12R R JEFA G HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception’

BB G ENE8% bl E (2011)
MET (Z2——F)

BB BREEL WiES ER BB Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
FNHRBE] it Joint Operations'

BB IREERE145% EEREEKF® HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

BB REERE155 BEF &> HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

BRI EAFIRNER] #ETE) Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'

BERGHEE16% R HABEZHTER Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
B G ERIE8HAE] BinEnEs HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation’

BERGHERF16% R BE . EEREY Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants'

B G AN S4ROE HKAS 41
BREHEE7ROET BUABHEZH Amendments to HKAS 27 (2011)  Equity Method in Separate Financial
(Z2——%) Vg Statements'
ZE-—EF_F-QmF SEEERBRE Annual Improvements 2012- Amendments to a number of HKFRSSs'
BEHZFEH#E R 2 BT 2014 Cycle
! RZZE-—ARF-H—Bsiz&RKBZ 1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
FEBMER

2 RZZE-—NF-—H—-HBsiz&RKBZ 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
FEBMAER

8 BRAREBXREE=-T—~"F—A—H 3 Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual
2 EFB 2 FEMBRERRNE S financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and
MR EER 2B B NEAR therefore is not applicable to the Group
PN
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HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS
9 from 1 January 2018. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the standard upon adoption and expects that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 will have an impact on the classification
and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The standard also
introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
September 2015, the HKICPA issued an amendment to HKFRS
15 regarding a one-year deferral of the mandatory effective
date of HKFRS 15 to 1 January 2018.The Group expects to
adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing
the impact of HKFRS 15 upon adoption.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements
in respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial
statements. The amendments clarify:

()  the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i)  that specific line items in the statement of profit or
loss and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated;

(i)  that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they
present the notes to financial statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a
single line item, and classified between those items that
will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that
apply when additional subtotals are presented in the statement
of financial position and the statement of profit or loss. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January 2016.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify the principle
in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating business
(of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits
that are consumed through the use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property,
plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The amendments
are to be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016
as the Group has not used a revenue-based method for the
calculation of depreciation of its non-current assets.
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POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into
line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s investments in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for

sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over
the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative
financial instruments and equity investments at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

F—H — EAREREEXBENER Level 1 -  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
MGz mE (REHAE) markets for identical assets or liabilities

FEH — ERNHERM - EAERZ Level 2 -  based on valuation techniques for which the
HANBHEMEBERZ lowest level input that is significant to the
SIEBHEASE D AEE fair value measurement is observable, either
S HEBRMG directly or indirectly

E=H — ERHERMN EAERZ Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
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lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract assets, financial assets)
investment properties and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties (continued)

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(vili)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment used for this
purpose are as follows:

st AE S FerEE

Estimated Residual

Al Category useful life value
BF Buildings 20 years 10%
R 55 K i 2% Plant and machinery 10 years £ 10%
qE Motor vehicles 5 years F 10%
EMREERKE Furniture and fixtures 5 years F 0%
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POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continueq)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of intangible
assets are as follows:

HAl & 5t 7] A & 8 Category Estimated useful life
=t 104F Software 10 years
A7k 204 Water Use Right 20 years
HE Leases

BORERNZIN BREERERNBA
BooHmEkRBREEEEEASENE
- B EREHE-NREBRERS
B HEEENRANAKERENRE
RETUERNL WERBEERE (T
BRERMNEER) -RAKR ARBEE
BELBERY HAMBENEHBRE
HEEE (BRMEMERTZEANL
WHRERER) FFAYE  BER&ER
Wiz & EHE R G AR F K
REFENE-ZFHEZBENA
REEHNZE TR R AR
BEmRP -

EREAREMEZHBEANKEZEE
BIERERSE  HEREGHERSF
I E -

REERARZBRE D R @R
mEEAARBZELD BIELER
S-WMAEERABRA AKEHET
ZIENAE (R E R4 S AE A BTUER
MES) NERZNEENANESRS B
BRI

REHE RN L HEEFBRRLRE
BARARGER ERRBNESRENREER
NHER

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Prepaid land lease payments

All land in Mainland China is state-owned and no individual
land ownership rights exist. The Group acquires the right to
use certain land and the considerations paid for such right are
recorded as prepaid land lease payments, which are amortised
over the lease terms of 30 to 50 years using the straight-line
method.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with positive net
changes in fair value presented as other income and gains and
negative net changes in fair value presented as finance costs
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. These net fair
value changes do not include any dividends or interest earned
on these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading
or designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

ER ) B % 45 @1 4% A% 5 PR /A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited



PR R R

Notes to Financial Statements

“E-—RAFE+=-HF=+—H 31 December 2015

24 T ESHEFERE &) 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

REREMBEREE (£)

B REKNE

B R e Wk IR A P A (B E B RT A E A
ReR BYEEEMSREZIFTE
TREE-BRNFHER UFEEHR
18 32 BRI 2R A 12 8 5 A AN H0 B A R
BERGBAE-NAEHEERAE D5
MEEZEAFTESEE LREER
BEFRMEARIHERE D 2 A A
ERNEHECDTAGRBEERZEM
WA R Y g8 o BB AT EE 4 2 IS B IR AR
REARANERBERA R EYEFIAZ
H A B S 15 2 FERR

HEIHRE
WAKEAFAEDNH 2 BRMEE
AII. BB B E 2 P REE 1+ 3 M Bl E 2 H A
ZHMEEREEDBRFBEIHKR
B-RHEIBREAREERMNELR
B AR E DR EREHRTZ - RET
AR R R Z TR
Hn(E U BEESERMNEEEZHD
2B R o BRI R H D 5 AR
EHEERZEMKA RIS REME
EZBERTRGARERAEMREZF

/8 I 7
BEIER -

JRAEELHEKE
AfHESRRER LT RIFLTRE
REGBREBESZIFTECREE -B
BRAHHE ZBIEIRE R ABLI IFR
BARFEENEERANEFEAR
Bt ABRZRE - WMBER 2 EBE S
RRERAKBELAIGEEARRDHESS
ERMBSAREHMEEZES -

POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in
other expenses for receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to
hold them to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and
debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt
securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in
market conditions.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains
or losses recognised as other comprehensive income in the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve until the
investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in other income, or until the investment is determined to
be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in other gains
or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the
available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss as other
income in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is
unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if
management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of
reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and any
previous gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised
in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining
life of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity
amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset
using the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity
is reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(@) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below
its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss — is
removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to which
the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

cTHEE Financial liabilities
WL ERR G E Initial recognition and measurement
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The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on

their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

BRAREBEFABEZZ A BRERFE Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
BEESBRAERNYBEERARIEE /KR financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
AABEFEEEgHFTABET 2 ERE designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
& o or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The net fair value
gain or loss recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)

LR E 5 Convertible bonds
AREEREFEEAEFE 2B R The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
BRR KA BIEGEE M ERREZPINE characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the

BE-BTAURREER BEBH 2 consolidated statement of financial position, net of transaction
AREDERAERZ A AABREERZ costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair value of the
T 3% | & &6 7€ - 1 52 SR EE D IR B R A R liability component is determined using a market rate for an
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equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried
as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder
of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the conversion
option is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference

o between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
HKEEMIT A Offsetting of financial instruments

HEEEHEA ARG NIT I OEEER
NIREREREE BB FBAHAE
B SAREREERERAGE @/
EEREBBESHPRE Mz HEA
R IEARA T AR

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, respectively.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow
hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

o fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes
in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment; or

° cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to
variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction, or a
foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment;
or

o hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
(continued)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which
the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk
management objective and its strategy for undertaking the
hedge. The documentation includes identification of the
hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness of changes in the hedging
instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in
the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the
hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually
have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting
periods for which they were designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income in the hedging reserve, while any ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when
hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised
or when a forecast sale occurs. Where the hedged item is
the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are
transferred to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the same period or periods during which the asset acquired or
liability assumed affects the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

Cash flow hedges (continued)

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the
hedging strategy), or if its designation as a hedge is revoked,
or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income remain in other comprehensive income
until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm
commitment is met.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective
hedging instruments are classified as current or non-current or
separated into current and non-current portions based on an
assessment of the facts and circumstances (i.e., the underlying
contracted cash flows).

o Where the Group expects to hold a derivative as an
economic hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting)
for a period beyond 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, the derivative is classified as non-current
(or separated into current and non-current portions)
consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

o Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are
effective hedging instruments, are classified consistently
with the classification of the underlying hedged item. The
derivative instruments are separated into current portions
and non-current portions only if a reliable allocation can
be made.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(o) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;
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POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continuea)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. In prior
years, final dividends proposed by the directors were classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Following the implementation of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) and its disclosure requirements,
proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of the Company is the Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”). The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries
located outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3. EESHERMEET 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
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AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could

P EE o require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.
H Judgements
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In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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. EESTHE RS (2) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
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AND ESTIMATES (continueq)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material

BEEzEEHGERMEZAENER adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
PR BRER - within the next financial year, are described below.
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Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently related depreciation charges. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
the industry cycles. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continueq)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. There were no deferred
tax assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2015 (2014: Nil). The amount of unrecognised tax losses
at 31 December 2015 was RMB166,046,000 (2014:
RMB143,408,000). Further details are contained in note 31 to
the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and there is one
reportable operating segment: the manufacture and sale
of knitwear products. Management monitors the operating
results of its business units as a whole for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers

— —T-0F

2015 2014

AR TR ARETT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R K R Mainland China 2,995,543 2,487,429
=[N Japan 2,859,692 3,081,139
2 ¢:z) European Union 2,319,860 1,929,613
X United States of America 1,588,689 1,300,040
At [ 53 Other regions 2,875,548 2,333,311

12,639,332 11,131,532

PR EREEE 2 MABR THRE M
R BB D o

The revenue information of continuing operations above is
based on the delivery destinations of the products.
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(b) HEEBEE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information (continued)

(b) Non-current assets

—E-EHF T

2015 2014

ARET T ARBET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

e N7 Mainland China 4,334,664 4,053,915
jiiqET] Vietham 2,149,758 902,972
R Cambodia 99,474 96,851
oA [ 1% Other regions 6,559 6,822
6,590,455 5,060,560

PRFELEXRBIIHRBDEE
BERVREBEMEE D TTE
BRERER R—RABERR 2K
BRIBEERIAEE -

FEREFzER
REUNTEBEFPZBRADAIMEAEE
I A8%8k A I :

The non-current asset information of continuing
operations above is based on the locations of the assets
and excludes entrusted loans, investment in an associate
and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
Revenue from major customers which individually accounts for
8% or more of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

—E-HF —ZT—-NEF

2015 2014

AR T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

PR Customer A 3,139,511 2,610,476
2R Customer B 3,137,291 2,331,925
ZFR Customer C 2,738,298 2,367,393
®PET Customer D 1,092,108 999,872
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5. WA -HMWAR Kz 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
WABEHEEYMHNGRRERE ST Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
Bk B8R FE allowances for returns and trade discounts.

WA HEARKESTAT An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:
—E—HF —E-MF
2015 2014
AR¥ T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KA Revenue

HEEW Sale of goods 12,639,332 11,131,532

=i N Other income
BT T B Government grants 216,410 273,801
ER1TF B YA Bank interest income 187,189 90,710
R ERF B A Interest income from entrusted loans 35,246 34,725
Hae A Rental income 20,557 20,931
459,402 420,167
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6. FRBiATRIE 6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
REBZBRBATFBEEIR 7 (FTA) The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
—E-afF —E-MF
2015 2014
Bt 5 AR T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
EHEFEKAE Cost of inventories sold 8,778,279 7,132,905
e Depreciation 14 492,045 415,749
FEN T ERTEESE  Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments 15 20,536 18,928
ET A Amortisation of intangible assets 16 9,681 7,966
BIEKEHERERZ  Minimum lease payments under
= KA & R operating leases 84,049 82,660
% B4 B B 5 Auditors’ remuneration 2,783 2,600
EERAFAZ (B Employee benefit expense (including
BEFEREETH directors’ and chief executive's
AEB£ (M7E8) ) remuneration (note 8)):
TEKFH® Wages and salaries 3,249,587 2,648,458
RIREH B Pension scheme contributions 180,709 126,157
HAtb 48 7 Other benefits 98,492 83,572
3,528,788 2,858,187
b N =58 55 Foreign exchange differences, net* 87,503 2,375
MR EEZREIRFEE Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value 11,023 10,522
|RITAE WA Bank interest income (187,189) (90,710)
H b ) B U A Other interest income (35,246) (34,725)
HEME - BE R Loss on disposal of items of property,
REIEE 2 E1E plant and equipment 5,847 2,838
- BE_Z-AF+-_H=1+—BEZ= 3 The foreign exchange differences, net for the years ended 31

E-NE+-_A=+—HIFEZE
RERFHECOIFAGERERZ

(£t B3 e s,

December 2015 and 31 December 2014 are included in “Other
expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or
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7. MERAK 7. FINANCE COSTS

BEEKARDTAT : An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
—E-EF —F-EF
2015 2014
AR TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR & 5 F) 2 Interest on convertible bonds 88,446 44,834
RITEEZFE Interest on bank borrowings 10,287 1,608
98,733 46,442

8. EERBETHRAEZHME 8.

Bz ET R R R EE R R &P F383(1)
(@) () ) RNEMRER AR (KEE
ENRER)ROIB2HMRE  ~NFEE
ERERITBABZMERENT

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the disclosure requirements of Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as

follows:
—E—EHF —Z—
2015 2014
ARE TR AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Fees 156 284
e R REYNZ Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 7,354 7,030
IRRET B Pension scheme contributions 95 43
7,449 7,073
7,605 7,357
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8. EENES{THAEZME 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

(#%&) REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) MTES(BERSTHABR)R (a) Executive directors (including the chief executive),
BUKHITES and independent non-executive directors

Fa MR -3

ik ENFE (3 Meme
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
AR®T T ARET T ARETTR AR®T R

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

—E-1fF 2015
HITESE: Executive directors:
BREEE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 1,503 27 1,530
HBEMEE Mr. Huang Guanlin
(1T #%) (Chief executive) - 1,370 24 1,394
BLMEE Mr. Ma Renhe - 1,048 24 1,072
gY@+ Ms. Zheng Miaohui - 1,136 - 1,136
FERELE Mr. Wang Cunbo - 981 10 991
BReAut Ms. Chen Zhifen - 1,144 10 1,154
- 7,182 95 7,277
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
BEREE Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 43 - 139
BB £ & Mr. Chen Genxiang 60 43 - 103
REELE Mr. Qiu Weiguo - 43 - 43
BRIBEAE Mr. Chen Xu - 43 - 43
156 172 - 328
156 7,354 95 7,605
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8. EENES{THAEZME 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

(#&) REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) MTES(BERSTHABR)R (a) Executive directors (including the chief executive),
BIUFHITES (£) and independent non-executive directors (continued)
He EHR RN E
we ENF & it 5% e @
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration

ARBTT  ARETT ARBTR ARETRL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

“E2-mEF 2014
HITES: Executive directors:
BRELE Mr. Ma Jianrong - 1,389 11 1,400
HEMEAE Mr. Huang Guanlin
(17 48%) (Chief executive) - 1,186 8 1,194
BEMEAE Mr. Ma Renhe - 940 8 948
Y@t Ms. Zheng Miaohui = 1,131 - 1,131
TRREE Mr. Wang Cunbo - 1,138 8 1,146
ReHL+ Ms. Chen Zhifen - 1,134 8 1,142
- 6,918 43 6,961
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
BEMELAE Mr. Jiang Xianpin 96 28 = 124
BRI AE Mr. Chen Genxiang 60 28 = 88
REEELE Mr. Qiu Weiguo 64 28 - 92
BB & A Mr. Chen Xu 64 28 - 92
284 112 - 396
284 7,030 43 7,357
FR WEEENEZSTHAEN There was no arrangement under which a director
ZEXREREEAME 22 or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration during the year.
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9. IEESHFMES 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
FRNAZ RS THEE T T RIEERE The five highest paid employees during the year did not
EXHEETBAE (ZE—MF &) - include any director or chief executive (2014: None), details of
HBE NS FIBEHR EXHES - FR whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
FEZ(ZE—NF: - ALB)IEARFES remuneration for the year of the five (2014: the five) highest
IxmTHAERRTMEES ceF paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive
BT : of the Company are as follows:

i —T-F

2015 2014

ARE T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

e R REMA S Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,567 8,481

RIRET B Pension scheme contributions 39 13

8,606 8,494
MENFATHARNZIEESERESTH The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
AEESHNEE AS: paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

band is as follows:

EEAH™
Number of employees
—E-fF —E—mF
2015 2014
1,000,001 7L & HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
2,000,000/ 7T 1 B
482,000,000/ 7T Over HK$2,000,000 4 -
5 B
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10. RIKEF

10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

—E-HF —MHF
2015 2014
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REr & Bm kR R Charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss
—RARBA R - Retirement benefit contributions 180,709 126,157

AEBRHBEARE 2 2BEEB 2 RIKE
NZZBHBTE B < RIKEF8IF&F
R RERZEFE AKEAFL ZRF
RENRENEFZEEFCEBZIET

BOLFE YREET ERAAE:
YA BRTE RS-

ANEE TR R R S M A TE R FT BRI
%\;‘%HAE%%@Eﬁaiﬂi‘UZﬁE%
—IHAERFORH AR S R AREF
:JrilJ(Hﬁaiﬁi‘JJ) HRTIEEEE
Aoz EBED LI WRIEETE
SRFERAEAZNERGEEBaR
broiBRF Bl EEFRABYEREZ
EeN BASENEEIRFBBE K
SE B EEFRMRE ST EIE L ¢
NETEBENES -

» %

DRIRRIERT R R/ ez
ZEENMBAREREMN(RBEE)EBR
NE(TEEMREE]) KTHE (xR
BRE)ER2A(TKRTRHERE]) R
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. ([ Gain
Lucky Vietnam ) ZBAR 1% A& 4 & H 1 78
2 TR E B T e MR KRR ET 8 R
(REMH|K) -

The retirement benefits of full-time employees of the Group in
Mainland China are covered by various government-sponsored
pension plans under which the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions that should be borne by the Group are calculated
based on percentages of the total salary of employees, subject
to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the relevant government
authorities.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Cambodia”),
Dagian Textile (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Dagian Cambodia”) and
Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. (“Gain Lucky Vietnam”), wholly-
owned subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of Cambodia
and Vietnam, respectively, are required to contribute amounts
based on employees’ salaries (defined contribution) to the
retirement benefit schemes as stipulated by the relevant local
authorities.
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10. BIK\EHR (#)

11.
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KM EELE TR MK

B bRt 2 RN - AN SR B R A AR
HiRREENXEEAEE 2EE-

REHR
HE_Z—RAFE-_FT—HWNF+=A
ST HLEFEZHBERAIEERD

10. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continuea)

11.

Buddies (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited (“Buddies
Macao”), a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in Macao,
is required to contribute a certain amount to the retirement
benefit scheme as stipulated by the relevant local authority.

The Group has no further obligation for post-retirement benefits
or housing funds beyond contributions in respect of the above.

INCOME TAX

The major components of income tax expense for the years
ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are:

—B-HF —T-F

2015 2014

AR T ARBTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BB 2 & HFE/H Current Hong Kong profits tax 27,053 23,497
R KB 2 B HA 2 Current Mainland China corporate

Fis® ([ 2F1EH])  income tax (“CIT") 497,297 457,475

EERIIA (MF7E31) Deferred taxation (note 31) 7,709 (4,255)

532,059 476,717

RERASEHERBEEL(—ANANEF
BRI FE NG ARBACERERS
HESRTRRAR FAEHELEZX
RN RNNCIE 33 ESFDER
WA W es IR ERB - AR AR AR
ERARERG WARBTBEL M
RN R 1216.6% ( —F — U4 :
16.5% ) X TR BN B EFEH -

Pursuant to section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999
Revision) of the Cayman Islands, the Company has obtained an
undertaking from the Governor-in-Council that no law enacted
in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits,
income, gain or appreciation shall apply to the Company or its
operations. As the Company carries on business in Hong Kong,
it is subject to Hong Kong profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong.
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11.

&8 (&)
REBRZHESTEMK LB A RH
EBMFTST REAZEWBRARIR
RBEXHSWELEME (RAEM
WER) NERNEBEZHESETE
K- B REBRE LB S MK
VZMBRAREKREERBR AR (K
Z|) AEEREBRAFR([BEFE
®E|) SEBVI)VERAR ([BEH
BVI]) BEESEERAF ([BHE
SEDEEMAERRAR ([EF])HH
EWT RN KEREBNEWERE
XK MERBBELE ZGFTERTEF
HEE16.5% (ZZF— T :16.5% ) 2
HEHMNHEBNEGH -

BRERBRIEHBE RRBELE
M AL 2 2 BB R B M (RIS )
BRAR ([HMNRIEE]) RKT 48
(REF)BRAA ([ATREREI)EA
B20% W RBMAAFH - KA TRIHR
REDEENEZERRBNAEH -
FRNSR I 2 RN T SR X 3 £ 8
AR o

REBEAMAZZMBRRRMNESE
RAB(TRMER]) KFE(FB)ER
BERRARA([XFBRBDEFE(F
BIERAR ([FEEE])AE16.5%
—ZE—MF:16.5%) FIEHBHERR
FRBELZ AT ERBABHMATIA -

RBEAEMKRZZZ2EWNBEARHMA
AR (T8N B AR RERBEE
RIRPIIS TR K30% N A REL 2 &
R E AR - R FAFEM AR
W R B AR E A ] R AE - S
EHL B APTS TR TR

1. INCOME TAX (continued)

The subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI are not subject to
income tax as these subsidiaries do not have a place of
business (other than a registered office only) or carry on any
business in the BVI. Accordingly, Top Always Investments
Ltd. (“Top Always”), Buddies Investments Limited (“Buddies
Investments”), Maxwin (B.V.l.) Limited (“Maxwin BVI”), Buddies
Group Limited (“Buddies Group”), and Gain Lucky Co., Ltd
(“Gain Lucky”), subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI, are not
subject to tax. As Top Always was engaged in the property
leasing business in Hong Kong, it is subject to Hong Kong
profits tax at a rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

Shenzhou (Cambodia) Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Cambodia”) and
Dagian Textile (Cambodia) Co. Ltd. (“Dagian Cambodia”),
wholly-owned subsidiaries incorporated in the Kingdom of
Cambodia, under the Law of Taxation, are subject to income
tax at a rate of 20%, and Dagian Cambodia is entitled to be
exempted from income tax for the first four profit-making years.
Shenzhou Cambodia and Dagian Cambodia had no assessable
profits during the year.

Shenzhou Trading Company Limited (“Shenzhou Trading”), Top
Always (Hong Kong) Investment Limited (“Top Always HK”)
and Maxwin (Hong Kong) Limited (“Maxwin HK”"), subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong, are subject to profits tax at a rate
of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong.

Shenzhou Japan Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhou Japan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary incorporated in Japan, under the Law of Taxation, is
subject to income tax at a rate of 30% of the assessable profits
arising in Japan. No provision for Japan income tax has been
made as Shenzhou Japan had no assessable profits arising in
Japan during the year.
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11.

FREBL (%)

R A 2 2 & B A FGain
Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. ([7Z Fl| #k
& |) & Worldon (Vietnam) Company
Limited ([t 3@ F ] ) BIRH R20%H
MET1S T B B B & FI) 4F 5 1 A . 4%
MBI RE=FEENFIRRETH
EAO%MMFT ST - R IHE B 5 B
BEERFE kB EK R FEME
(AR E R%E) BT bt Hh - BIRME
VAR EEE AR ¢ ik (a) 1= ) B R AN i
DRRZZE—RNENARZT—NF—
AR # 4 = 160,000 7 & (KI31E
EL)MBIRER: RO)BEEEKRA
Z B =F AR FREFWASESE
TR BEELEWRAZHR=FNERB
83,000 8 T - EAMHRBUEH X 10%8
MG WA EREEHF  RAR
NLF AR R50%FTSF

R R BRI FUX - RORPIE A
YZzrEMBARBEE ORMIERRA
ERB)ERAR ([BFERPT]) ER
REMRFINEH  RA BT FER
FIVE HORPI RIS B B4 -

BREBETFEARKMBEEEMESTE ([H
EEMBIE]) ST BENBRRNSF
P78 B B BR B W A $225% 2 T R R
(REBHEXMBRIETE) -

R-B—=F RPBAEEMAIZ
2EMBARERATHBRBR AR
(TRTHE DEERERMNIEZD
Bz ([SFximdz]) - Bt
ARFOBAERR_ZT—=F—HA—He
REFEFAMGHEBRRE15% °

1. INCOME TAX (continued)

Gain Lucky (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. (“Gain Lucky Vietnam”) and
Worldon (Vietnam) Company Limited (“Worldon (Vietnam)”),
wholly-owned subsidiaries incorporated in Vietnam, are
subject to income tax at a rate of 20%, and are entitled to be
exempted from income tax for the first two profit-making years
and subject to a lower tax rate of 10% from the third year to
the sixth year. The period of tax privilege will start from the
earlier of the first profit-making year and the fourth year since
its establishment. Furthermore, under the laws and regulations
of Vietnam, provided that (a) the total investment of at least
VNDG6,000 billion (approximately US$300 million) is paid by
June 2016 and January 2018 for Gain Lucky Vietham and
Worldon (Vietnam) Company Limited respectively; and (b) it
maintains a minimum annual revenue of US$500 million within
three years from the date of generating revenue, or it employs
more than 3,000 staff members within three years from the
date of generating revenue, it will be subject to a lower profits
tax rate of 10%, and the profits tax will be waived for four years
and 50% of its profits tax will be waived for the nine years
thereafter.

No provision for Macao Complementary Tax has been made
for Buddies (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited (“Buddies
Macao”), a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in Macao, as
Buddies Macao is exempted from Macao Complementary Tax
pursuant to Macao’s relevant tax legislations.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (the “New CIT Law”), the PRC subsidiaries
for the year as determined in accordance with the New CIT
Law are subject to a tax rate of 25% on their assessable
income.

During 2013, Ningbo Dagian Knitwear Co., Ltd. (“Dagian
Knitting”), a wholly-owned subsidiary established in Mainland
China, was qualified as a High-New Technology Enterprise
(“HNTE”) of Zhejiang Province. As a result, Dagian Knitting had
been entitled to a concessionary rate of income tax at 15% for
three years commencing 1 January 2013.
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11. FiE®H (&) 11. INCOME TAX (continued)
BERYHEHFERARE—2—5
ER-—B-NE+=A=+—0 55
EERESABE WERNT

A reconciliation between the tax expense and the product of
accounting profit multiplied by the PRC’s domestic tax rate
for the tax years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 is as

172

follows:

—E-IF —E-MF
2015 2014
AR TR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 75t B ) Profit before tax 2,886,901 2,543,347
LAE FE i K 25% Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%
(ZZ—M%F :25%) (2014: 25%)
AEZHE 721,725 635,837
BEREARER M T EFS  Lower tax rates for specific jurisdictions or
B e 2 BAR T R enacted by local authorities (206,230) (194,790)
AR EAfE € A Adjustments in respect of current tax of
T I8 Y 78 B previous periods (123) (3,900)
FE (G B & A Rl R a8 Profits and losses attributable to associate 239 212
HARTBA Income not subject to tax (10) (210)
Rkt Expenses not deductible for tax 18,328 8,383
FARERZHIEER Tax losses not recognised during the year 41,511 35,852
FIFALART AR RER A AT KN Utilisation of previously unrecognised
HIREE deductible tax losses (43,381) (4,667)
532,059 476,717
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12. KB 12. DIVIDENDS
—E-RF —E—POE
2015 2014
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R R HA AR S B AR Proposed final dividend of HK$1.07
L@A1.078 T (BI1E (including a special dividend of HK$0.35)
R IR 2.0.35%5 7T ) (2014: HK$1.00 (including a special
—ZE—F :1.008 T dividend of HK$0.35)) per ordinary share
(B EH AR E0.35
L) ) 1,254,128 1,103,671
AFEE 7R RBRBBRAQTRE The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
REEREREFRE EHE- approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

13. XA TEBERKREIFEAE{  13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

BRER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY
(@ EX (a) Basic
BREXRBIDREBERARER Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
% 1% ¥ % B A FEAG AR BR LA A profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
BETTBERMETFESEEGE - Company by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

—E-RF —E—OE
2015 2014
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A 7] i AR AR Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

A ARGHE of the Company 2,354,664 2,065,867

BEITEBRINEFYE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(Fh) in issue (thousands) 1,399,000 1,399,000
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13. AR RIEERKREIFE AE{ 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

BRERN #) TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (continuead)

(b) #8 (b) Diluted
ERESTRMNREMEAEEEE Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
7789 AR B2 N MR T B AR weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
MEFHREELFETE A RQ to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
ARA—BAESEINTER: shares. The Company has only one category of dilutive
AR ES - EPRETBRRES potential ordinary shares: convertible bonds. The
B AT R - mFFEIRER convertible bonds are assumed to have been converted
B EA BRI R IETE - into ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted to

eliminate the interest expense less the tax effect.

—ZE-HfF —E—mF
2015 2014
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
NATEBREEEA A Profit attributable to ordinary equity
FEAS 7 holders of the Company 2,354,664 2,065,867
ATmRESF R Interest expense on convertible bonds
(RELE) (net of tax) 73,852 37,437
RREETREE Profit used to determine diluted earnings
v P N | per share 2,428,516 2,103,304
BRITEREBEMNETFHE Weighted average number of ordinary
(FA%) shares in issue (thousands) 1,399,000 1,399,000
PA TS IBFAE : Adjustment for:
R LR ES Assumed conversion of convertible
(FA) bonds (thousands) 102,632 54,953
AR E SlEE Weighted average number of
Bz & AR I iE ordinary shares for diluted earnings
8 (FAR) per share (thousands) 1,501,632 1,453,953
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14. % - BERRE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
BHRER
BF BERESE RE EEEE ERIR @t
Furniture
Plant and Motor and Construction
Buildings ~ machinery vehicles fixtures  in progress Total
AR¥TR ARETn AR%Tr AR®Tn AR%Trn ARET:
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
RHFE: Net book value:
W-ZE-WE+-A=+—H  At31 December 2014 2,065,668 1,842,776 41,184 58,438 175,794 4,183,860
AR Cost:
R-ZE-8%—HF—H At 1 January 2015 2,709,297 3,651,307 102,429 197,656 175,794 6,836,483
R Additions 37,202 308,600 35,466 62,195 1,420,284 1,863,747
LB Transfers 588,671 278,852 2,824 5,208 (875,555) -
ik Disposals (51,415) (53,724) (12,946) (2,984) - (121,069)
RS Exchange realignment 875 8,254 338 118 - 9,585
R-_E-81%+-A=t—-H At 31 December 2015 3,284,630 4,193,289 128,111 262,193 720,523 8,588,746
RiFE: Accumulated depreciation:
R_F-HF—F—H At 1 January 2015 643,629 1,808,531 61,245 139,218 - 2,652,623
FENERR Depreciation provided during the year 163,453 286,501 16,174 25,917 - 492,045
e Disposals (51,415) (44,870) (11,639) (2,726) - (110,650)
R Exchange realignment 536 4,159 190 93 - 4,978
W=Z-af+-f=1-H At 31 December 2015 756,203 2,054,321 65,970 162,502 - 3,038,996
RHFE: Net book value:
WZZE-RF+-A=+—H  At31 December 2015 2,528,427 2,138,968 62,141 99,691 720,523 5,549,750
RHFE: Net book value:
RZF—-=F+ZA=+—H  At31 December 2013 1,552,518 1,586,699 44,692 61,874 272,447 3,518,230
AR Cost:
R-E-NF—A—H At 1 January 2014 2,087,118 3,172,507 96,134 179,359 272,447 5,807,565
NE Additions 33,824 230,257 11,393 16,613 795,345 1,087,432
an Transfers 612,714 278,246 - 1903 (892,863) -
He Disposals (24,398) (30211) (5,121) (226) - (59,956)
R AR Exchange realignment 39 508 23 7 865 1,442
RZZ-EE+ZA=F—H  At31 December 2014 2,709,297 3,651,307 102,429 197,656 175,794 6,836,483
ZiHE: Accumulated depreciation:
RZE-MF—f—H At 1 January 2014 534,600 1,585,808 51,442 117,485 - 2,289,335
FEMERE Depreciation provided during the year 133,413 247,835 12,636 21,865 - 415,749
He Disposals (24,398) (25,290) (2,841) (136) - (52,665)
R HE Exchange realignment 14 178 8 4 - 204
R-_E-EF+-A=t-H At 31 December 2014 643,629 1,808,531 61,245 139,218 - 2,662,623
EmFE: Net book value:
R=F—ME+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2014 2,065,668 1,842,776 41,184 58,438 175,794 4,183,860
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15. FE{T L b A EFE

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

—E-HF —E—F
2015 2014
ARET AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DN Cost:
n—A—H At 1 January 849,951 754,040
NE Additions 177,937 95,911
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 1,027,888 849,951
REr# Accumulated amortisation:
n—H—H At 1 January 76,097 57,169
F A i Amortisation during the year 20,536 18,928
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December 96,633 76,097
BREFE Net book value:
R+—A=+—H” At 31 December 931,255 773,854
n—H—H At 1 January 773,854 696,871
16. B EE 16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B4 Pk et
Water Use
Software Right* Total
ARB T ARB T AREBT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E—RF+-A=+—H 31 December 2015
R-ZZT—RF—H—HZ Costat 1 January 2015, net of
BXAS - B HIR R AT 8 accumulated amortisation 16,308 86,538 102,846
NE Additions 16,285 - 16,285
FEEHEE Amortisation provided during the year (3,231) (6,450) (9,681)
R-_Z—R%F At 31 December 2015
+-—A=+—H 29,362 80,088 109,450
RZE—RF At 31 December 2015:
S =
DN Cost 37,090 129,000 166,090
ZETE 5 Accumulated amortisation (7,728) (48,912) (56,640)
REFE Net carrying amount 29,362 80,088 109,450
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16. B EE (&)

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

A FAK#E~ Bt
Water Use
Software Right* Total
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
“Z—NE+=-A=+—H 31 December 2014
RZZE—WNF—H—HZ Costat1 January 2014, net of
PRS- B AR R AT 8 accumulated amortisation 8,921 92,988 101,909
NE Additions 8,903 - 8,903
FEEHEE Amortisation provided during the year (1,516) (6,450) (7,966)
RZE—MF At 31 December 2014
F=F=4=E 16,308 86,538 102,846
RZE—WMF At 31 December 2014:
+-R=+—8:
(DN Cost 20,804 129,001 149,805
2t Accumulated amortisation (4,496) (42,463) (46,959)
REFE Net carrying amount 16,308 86,538 102,846

BEAEBEZFMtRERFR=
SERFENATLZ EARAEE
)k Tt [E K F B B 2= T 8 kK
BARRZZENFTLZ =T
& ASEERERE B TA
R #129,000,0007C * AIRFEIABEE
FERFSKERMEE  BE20F ([A
KigE]) RZFE—RAF+=—A=+—
H AEEE X T AR¥%53,000,000
T (ZZF—m4F: AR%53,000,000
J0) M 8REE A R #76,000,00070 2 5t
N EL A FRIE

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by the Group and the
Government of Beilun District, Ningbo City, in April 2006 and
three supplementary agreements entered into by the Group,
Ningbo Beilun Water Conservancy Bureau and Ningbo Water
Supply General Company in 2008, the Group has agreed to pay
the local government an amount of RMB129 million in exchange
for a guaranteed constant water supply with a favourable price
for a period of 20 years (“Water Use Right”). As at 31 December
2015, the Group has paid an amount of RMB53,000,000 (2014
RMB53,000,000), and the remaining amount of RMB76,000,000
was included in other payables.
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17. A—RBEBEQAT2RE

17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

—E-EHF T

2015 2014

ARE TR ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

HHEEFR Share of net assets 4,677 5,634

BRI MM EENTEBR AR ([EBR
YA BAAEE - E QT WK
EARE 2 RBET

Ningbo Avery Dennison Shenzhou Knitting and Printing Co.,
Ltd. (“Ningbo Avery”) is an associate of the Group and is
considered to be a related party of the Group.

RE B % g R E) 2 F5
BARB—HE2ENBARSA 2 Eam

PR A7) 4ELBK ©

TFRELAREES T & L EA 2B

= 72\ 3

XEEDBE@

Company.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associate all comprise
equity shares held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

BN HEER: Group’s associate that is not individually material:
—ZE-HfF —E—mF
2015 2014
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE{GEE S A RIFEFBE KR Share of the associate’s profit for the year
H b 2 W= and other comprehensive income (957) (846)
AEBREZ QAR EZ  Carrying amount of the Group’s investment
SR E in the associate 5,634 6,480
4,677 5,634
18. F & 18. INVENTORIES
—E-RF —E—OE
2015 2014
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R ¥ Raw materials 793,430 350,888
& Work in progress 1,285,362 1,209,252
2K Finished goods 1,154,055 1,047,070
3,232,847 2,607,210
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19. ERERR R RE 19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
i —T-F
2015 2014
AR®B T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE U BR 3k R =R Trade and bills receivables 2,001,783 1,642,917
AEEEEFP BEHAREFEZNEFEER The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
NET EEEANTASEARRK -5 credit with credit terms of within six months. Overdue balances
EIRE ST Mm@ BRI AR o are reviewed regularly by senior management.
RFERR BREZZEAHFE 2EK An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
RRERZEBERESTAT end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:
—E-afF —E-MF
2015 2014
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
=@AR Within three months 1,902,454 1,542,666
={EAA N E Over three months 99,329 100,251
2,001,783 1,642,917
I 4 B 95 ok R AR A B RUE < FEUGR The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are
REERZREDHTOT not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:
—E-IF —T W
2015 2014
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
7R 48 B SR (B Neither past due nor impaired 1,993,905 1,571,146
#H D = 8 A Less than three months past due 3,135 13,582
wEI=ME A LA E Over three months past due 4,743 58,189
2,001,783 1,642,917
A8 EA SR (B 2 e U R TR B EA I S A Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
RS BEFHR- customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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19.

FEWERRREE (&)

i BB R M 2 FE M B B T B T
EEAM REEFAAEENRZE
BRIT-RIBAAER AATNEER
B RN EEERTES A% B
S MR AT 2 BUKE - EER
REER T A E RS A EE L &R
P S S IR 4R G o T A 3R
FEEEERRY-

RZE—RFE+-_A=+—H EKE
AEEBEATYEEHE:

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a

number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for

impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there

has not been a significant change in credit quality and the

balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does

not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these

balances.

At 31 December 2015, the trade and bills receivables were

denominated in the following currencies:

“Z-51% —T-mE
2015 2014

F&  HEARE R HEARE
Original RMB Original RMB
currency equivalent currency equivalent
T AR%®TR T ARETET
in thousand RMB’000 in thousand RMB’000
T Us$ 178,429 1,158,647 173,463 1,061,418
ARE RMB 843,136 581,499
2,001,783 1,642,917

YRR EREZREEREEAAER

o

g

+
T

The carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables

approximate to their fair values.
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20. ENRE -BREREMEWSE 20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

1" RECEIVABLES
—E-afF —E-MF
2015 2014
AR TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AN RIBENIES Prepayments and deposits
—EE R — Purchase of raw materials 150,929 169,819
—BEWE BEK — Purchase of items of property,
REEE plant and equipment 43,490 34,267
- RES — Prepaid rental and deposits 115,648 114,256
—WE—ERE A — Acquisition of a subsidiary - 20,000
—E A - Others 15,319 8,199
JE U K T U B 3R E R iR =X VAT refund receivable and recoverable 195,906 216,247
B HSmEEEIT Financial products issued by
S RbE M a financial institution - 470,000
JFE U T 2, Interest receivable 99,010 33,795
E h fE Y 5k IE Other receivables 55,982 46,111
676,284 1,112,694
LM EES RSN E - E AR None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
BEZ S REEEIT YW &R KT The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
FEWGRIE B receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
TERTRIE - e K H M B WGRIE 2 R E The carrying amounts of the prepayments, deposits and other
BHEAAEMES- receivables approximate to their fair values.
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21. EETERK

21. ENTRUSTED LOANS

“E-1f “Z-NF
2015 2014
xeeHE VN
FI%(%) HHA ARETR 7% (%) IME  ARETR
Principal Principal
Interest amount Interest amount
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
L Current
ZREN-BER Entrusted loans - secured 5.05-5.10 2016 120,000  5.85-6.15 2015 60,000
FEH Non-current
RAEF-HER Entrusted loans - secured 6.21-6.40 2017 550,000 6.21-6.40 2017 555,000
670,000 615,000
22, At HERE 22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
—E—EHF —E—mF
2015 2014
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEREEREITH Financial products issued
B BE m by financial institutions 800,000 320,000

ER N BB 58 @142 R A BR A A Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited
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22, HEHERE (#) 22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)
R-ZZE—RE+ZA=+—H &% As at 31 December 2015, certain financial products
BEERETE TREEEAAR issued by financial institutions with a carrying amount of
800,000,0007C (Z & — W& : AR RMB800,000,000 (2014: RMB320,000,000) were stated at
320,000,0007T ) K & @b E f Ty I K AR cost less impairment. The directors are of the opinion that their
BREAR EEREEZEZAALET fair value cannot be measured reliably. The financial products
ARG E-eREMCFHIN—F have terms of less than one year and have expected annual
BIEHFE R mEHSES0% (ZZT—M rates of return up to 5.0% (2014: 5.2%). Pursuant to the
F:52%) - BEHBELKBI ZE underlying contracts or notices, these financial products are
©REE MR B H B R R AR o AN & B 1 % capital guaranteed upon the maturity date. The Group does not
RIS % S S BE M ° intend to dispose of them in the near future.
23. fTEEMIA 23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
—B-IF —T-MF
2015 2014

BE &% BE BfR

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

ARETRE AR®TR ARETT ARETR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

REEREH Forward currency contracts - - 11,214 =

EMEBRANCREERLAREM
G

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the
same as their fair values.
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23. fTHEE®MTI A (&) 23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
EHERESN-BHEaREH Forward currency contracts - cash flow hedges
REBENECERIEEBINER 278 Forward currency contracts are designated as hedging
:HlJffiﬁKfﬁEZ¥15¢Iﬂ GRHIEME X instruments in respect of forecast future sales to overseas
ERRBETR RTINS SHE 2 KT R AN iR B customers. The forward currency contract balances vary with
ﬂTZ A B T 2 the levels of expected foreign currency sales and changes in
foreign exchange forward rates.
RHAEESOMNFHEEBRRKRES The terms of the forward currency contracts match the terms
FHEMF - AEEEAB =T —HF of the forecast future sales. The cash flow hedges relating to
Eﬁiiﬁ‘\ﬁﬂﬂimﬁ’%ﬁ ISR = 2 ¥ forecast future sales in the year 2015 were assessed to be
BE RETHER - BEIFEARK highly effective. Net losses of RMB9,363,000 (2014: Net gains
9,363,0007T (= ZF — M4 : W= FEEA of RMB6,771,000) were included in the hedging reserve as
R #6,771,0007T ) & 51177 2Lt A ¥ follows:
8 -
—B-HF —T-mF
2015 2014
AR®BT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FFAEHREZ AR Total fair value (losses)/gains included in
(B1E) sz the hedging reserve (3,529) 16,272
A/MEJ%Z oy i U Deferred tax on fair value gains 568 (1,593)
HizEBERRPER Reclassified from other comprehensive
HitvrrEK=EFHHE income recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss (7,685) (8,515)
ENOBERERZET Deferred tax on reclassification to
IR profit or loss 1,283 607
ReRsE P2 Net (losses)/gains on cash flow hedges
(B#E) MW FE (9,363) 6,771

M
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24,

EBEX 24. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS
—E-HF —E—OF
2015 2014
ARE TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
17 FORA AR B 55 R R 1T Y Structured deposits in licensed banks
HEETR R in the PRC, at amortised cost
B AN 5T 110,000 2,211,160

ZERBEFIHARR —FARN - B EF
B3R & A53.6/E (= — M4 : N F4.0E
F49E) BEFBEENHIBE ZF
EBEEZERE B ERRA AR
EEAE AI4R AT EE [ ©

These structured deposits have terms of less than one year
and have fixed annual rates of return at 3.6% (2014: from 4.0%
to 4.9%). Pursuant to the underlying contracts or notices,
these structured deposits are capital and return guaranteed
upon the maturity date. No redemption ahead of the maturity
date is allowed.

25. o EFER 25. PLEDGED DEPOSITS
—ZE-HfF —E—mF
2015 2014
AR T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FLNEE 18 HA £ ) 45 31 Pledged for foreign currency swaps 1,830,908 893,483

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—80 8
208,046,0003 7T * 5,800,000,000 A
+ 14,000,000 T A % 22,866,000%
TEEB (& &4 A R %1,830,908,000
gt) (—ZF — V04 : 144,854,0003 JT °
#4 AR #893,483,0007T ) Z $R1T 4584
EERF BEEASELEMBNET
HNEFREABLE - X FSEEBEERIEN
T12BEZ20EMBEEFEFMEFTE (=
T—JIE 1 2EE2.5E) °

As at 31 December 2015, bank balances of US$208,046,000,
JPY5,800,000,000, EUR14,000,000 and CHF22,866,000
(totaling approximately RMB1,830,908,000) (2014:
US$144,854,000,
RMB893,483,000) were restricted until certain foreign currency

equivalent to approximately
swaps held by the Group are settled. The pledged deposits

carry interest at fixed rates ranging from 1.2% to 2.9% (2014
from 1.2% to 2.5%) per annum.

Annual Report 2015 & ¥

185



186

B S R 2R B

Notes to Financial Statements

—“E-—RE+=-HF=+—H 31 December 2015

26. RERREEEFY

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

—E-EHF T

2015 2014

ARE TR ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

5 & RIRTT &R Cash and bank balances 1,748,380 1,000,264
VR FEFRPELR =M@ A Z Bank deposits with an initial term

RITFER of less than three months 67,298 427,810

BENRREZEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,815,678 1,428,074

RBEHR AEEUNARBG
BEZRE2EBOEHBODBARE
1,088,440,0007T (= —HF : AR
985,855,0007T) ° A REE A B A H %
REAME R AT BIR R B KEZ I
EERKROIREE SERNESER
NS BER SRR T
EREBZRITHEARBEBAEME
'}rﬁ%o

RN RIT 2B EWRIT 28 BEFHKA
R ENF B R REUK B - 52 7 5RA —
REZEATFZTAYEFE RTF
AREBEZERHRSHFRME  LREE
REITERAMEREAE - RITEREF
AW BB KRR EBRIFRIT
RehReTEYM REEERARE
VEESR

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB1,038,440,000 (2014: RMB985,855,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair
values.
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27. BERERRRREE 27. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
REMERR BRNERERAEERRE ST An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end
N of the reporting period is as follows:
—E-afF —E-MF
2015 2014
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
7~ E A R Within six months 642,818 454,016
NEARE—F Six months to one year 21,636 1,781
—FEMF One year to two years 4,341 5,032
ME E Over two years 9,740 6,795
678,535 467,624
ERERREBITE - ENERRRE The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. The
BeEREEERNAERS- carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables approximate

to their fair values.

28. Hih B+ FRIE KR FETHRIE 28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

—E-AHF —T-F
2015 2014
AR¥B T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEEHF X Accrued expenses 296,989 213,106
7K FE T RRIE Payable for Water Use Right (note 16)
(KFzE16) 76,000 76,000
HBEME BEK Payables for purchase of
A 2 R R IE property, plant and equipment 74,896 81,838
FHERRETIREZRES Guarantee deposits related
to construction projects 5,740 9,781
RPEFEWFIE Advance from customers 76,054 85,535
Ho{th &S R IR Other taxes payable 52,660 101,020
FEASTIESE S 1 hE 2 2 Dividends payable to
% 2 non-controlling interests 587 587
Hit Others 60,013 42,441
642,939 610,308
E M FER FRIB R ERTFRIB 2 BREIE R H The carrying amounts of the other payables and accruals
ARERE HEMENFETGE - approximate to their fair values. Other payables are non-

interest-bearing.
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29. FHERITEE 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
“E-1f “Z-NF
2015 2014
BRAIZ ERF|%
(E) HEA ARETR (E) %R ARETI
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
ik} Current
ROER-BER Bank loans - unsecured - - - 2.6 2015 1,865
ROER-RER Bank loans - unsecured LIBOR/
(REKER) (due for repayment on demand) HIBOR
+1-1.35 2016 586,460 2.8 2016 44,872
ROER-RER Bank loans - secured
(REKER) (due for repayment on demand) 29-3.0 2019- 2020 70,391 = = =
656,851 46,737
* ZERTEEFARBDBEAN  REAR * These bank borrowings are included in current liabilities as the
RITHEREENAIBERERURE banks have an overriding right to call for cash repayment on
BRMBAEE—SEEAEBRER - demand at any time without further reference to the Group and
MEXAEEBEERNBITZEMNE to demand settlement of any balance owing by the Group to the
ko banks.
—E-HF —ZE-mEF
2015 2014
ARET ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
iR Analysed into:
AR THHEEE Bank loans and overdrafts repayable:
RITERRBEX
—F R HREKR Within one year or on demand 656,851 46,737
@ RZZE—ARAF+ZA=+—8" A (a) As at 31 December 2015, the borrowings are
BREHUET BT E denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong
dollars.
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30. TRIKRES 30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

i —E-MF
2015 2014
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R-—Z—MFXA+/\H Face value of convertible bonds
BITZABMRESZ issued on 18 June 2014
H1E 3,097,380 3,097,380
BITE Issuing expenses (53,790) (58,790)
Em D Equity component (197,140) (197,140)
RZZ—WNFxA+/\H Liability component on initial recognition
N ERSHBELD on 18 June 2014 2,846,450 2,846,450
EXREHgE Effect of exchange rate changes 160,278 (18,995)
2R B A Accumulated finance costs 72,169 24,407
&1t 1) 2 Interest payable 38,112 12,813
BB Liability component 3,117,009 2,864,675

RZZE—WFEANA+NB KAQAE
177N % 42 %83,900,000,000/8 L — &
—NFAATNRB(TRHB])EEZ
ARRES TP BRRERBRAAT
LM A%38.56 L (A T %) EE 7
KABOSE-BRIEZAIEED i I8
ElokaEss BRAIZEESHF BN A%
AL ¥ 2103.86%EE - N —_F—HF
NAT=8 KER_-_ZT—NFEREK
B BMEBEEABRLSSRARD G T HERK
38.00/8 7T °

BESMD Mg A1) < R AER AT AR
BHRETRET -

BEBPZARE THIRERERED
AR A 1R 75 2 T 35 M K3.55[E 51 & ©
BRERRERBOZEE SFARRE
w2 A e

R=F—AF+-HA=+—8 M@k
BHEMARERRRAEEMES -

R-EBE-—RAE+-_A=+—H HERE
SRAEABEESFBROANAR ZER

e

On 18 June 2014, the Company issued convertible bonds
which will be due on 18 June 2019 (the “maturity date”), in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$3,900,000,000 with an
initial conversion price of HK$38.56 (subject to adjustment)
per ordinary share of the Company, and the coupon rate is
0.5%. Unless previously redeemed, converted, purchased or
cancelled, these bonds will be redeemed at 103.86% of their
principal amount on the maturity date. On 13 June 2015, the
conversion price has been adjusted to HK$38.00 per ordinary
share of the Company upon the declaration of the final 2014
dividend.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
component were determined upon the issuance of the
convertible bonds.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate of 3.55% for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the equity
component, is included in reserves in shareholders’ equity.

The fair value of the convertible bonds approximated to their
carrying amount as at 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2015, no bond holders have converted
their bonds into ordinary shares of the Company.
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31. EEHIE 31. DEFERRED TAX
RIEFTISTIARE 2R EEHIn T : The gross movements in the deferred tax accounts are as
follows:
—ZE-HfF —E—mF
2015 2014
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
F4 At beginning of year 10,840 7,571
RARFEEEER (k) Deferred tax (charged)/credited
A ZBIEF IR to the statement of profit or
(PfFE11) loss during the year (note 11) (7,709) 4,255
MNAREEREZRT A (H1%)  Deferred tax credited/(charged)
ZIEEF IR to equity during the year 1,850 (986)
FIR At end of year 4,981 10,840
BEEMBEAGEREENFTFANZES): The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
year are as follows:
(a) EEHEEE (a) Deferred tax assets
BE st
Provisions Total
ARET T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RZZE—WMF—HA—H At1January 2014 8,435 8,435
MARFEZIEARKRTAZ Deferred tax credited to the statement of
R AT IE profit or loss during the year 4,255 4,255
RZZE—M4F At 31 December 2014
+-A=+—8 12,690 12,690
NARFEEZRIMBBZ  Deferred tax charged to the statement of
IR AE T IE profit or loss during the year (7,709) (7,709)
R=Z-81F At 31 December 2015
T=E=ETFr= 4,981 4,981
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31. IELERIE (&)

(a)

(b)

EEMEEE (&Z)
R—ZE—FRE+=_RA=+—H"
REBEBRBERENARE
166,046,0007C (ZF — W F : A
R#143,408,0007T ) - N &£ E I
R EANHE R EERERE
EHBEEE REAERAT AR
BE G FEER TR I DA ALK S T 0 B
TR AR

T R B K B E A 3 AT AR R R BE R
RERBEA B Z B BB KR —
ERFEHE-

EEFRBEABEREENFRZE
g

. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(a)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

The Group had tax losses of approximately
RMB166,046,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB143,408,000). Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these deductible temporary
differences as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

The tax losses arising in Mainland China for offsetting
against future taxable profits will expire in one to five
years.

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets
during the year are as follows:

EEHRBEE (b) Deferred tax liabilities

BHERE

#H1E R

Cash flow

hedges

ARBET T

RMB’000

RZZE—WMF—H—H At 1 January 2014 864
RAFEER IR 2 BEERIE Deferred tax charged to equity during the year 986
RZZE—WmF+=-_A=+—H At 31 December 2014 1,850
RAFEE RN 2 ELER IR Deferred tax charged to equity during the year (1,850)

R-—ZE—HAF+=-HA=+—H

At 31 December 2015
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31. IELERIE (&)

(b)

EEHEEE (&)
RIBRERERERE RZZEE
NE—A—H# KA BARERL
ZHEMEEREMEIR ZKREE
B 0% TEH0E © fie = B 825 )%
BEMBRIZERAERBE L A
AEARKZENRE -G AEE
s @A E A% o T 15 1 B8
R-_EENFE_RA -+ _HHEH
B #i(2008) %198 5T AU R = F
T+F+Z A=+t —HNREBEA
FERRELPEREERE
BRTEINFL o

R-_ZE—RFF+_A=+—8
L AN S B A R B K B A 2 BT B
A RIAZBR BT 2 K HE L Z A
ZIERTEIT M ERIEERIE - &
ERE ZEWBRRIRNA R iR
DIKZEBH ALK R
T-—AF+_A=1+—H EFKE&
B R B K FE BT B 2 5] 8 BE A R
RELCHIEEB EREHEAH
#5 A R #9,956,484,0007T ( =
T — O : AR #8,089,743,000
=

AR 2x A ) E B RO S 2 BB 3
B ERI PTG IRIRR -

31. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

(b)

ER ) B % 45 @1 4% A% 5 PR /A & Shenzhou International Group Holdings Limited

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China effective from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax arrangement
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. On 22
February 2008, Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by
the tax authorities to specify that dividends declared and
remitted out of the PRC from the retained profits as at 31
December 2007 are exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 2015, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB9,956,484,000 at 31 December 2015 (2014:
RMB8,089,743,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.
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32. kA& 32. SHARE CAPITAL
“E-F —E-mF
i) Shares 2015 2014
THER ARETR FET ARET T
HK$’000 RMB’000 HK$’'000 RMB’000
BEIRAR: Issued and fully paid:
1,399,000,000/% 1,399,000,000 (2014:
(ZF—mF: 1,399,000,000) ordinary
1,399,000,000% ) = A% shares of HK$0.10 each
B0.108 w2 i@k 139,900 142,105 139,900 142,105

33. f1E
AEERANRBEEE HESER
HEBELIRUBREFN1EES
BREBE-

(i) ZEERHLES ([EEEHBLAE
£1)
BEFERRNERPBEARERBA
Al B ERMA S AP B KR
BARIABEZRBRPFEAARETR
RIETE ZBRBEFB10%BAZRE
TEBAES EEAHLESE
BB AENB AR GEMRAZ
50% &1k o F DA TE BB AES A
FAREMATRA  HER R
BREEN S DR MR 225% ©

(i) EXEBFE
EH RS EERECHEERES
SN B A Bl 2 B IS R B A 2 B
HE®E-

33. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 111 of

the financial statements.

(i)

(i)

Statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
articles of association of the Mainland China subsidiaries,
each of the Mainland China subsidiaries is required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with the PRC generally accepted accounting
principles, to the SSR until the reserve reaches 50% of
its registered capital of the Mainland China subsidiaries.
Part of the SSR may be converted to increase paid-
up capital, provided that the remaining balance after
the capitalisation is not less than 25% of the registered
capital.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to record
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries.

Annual Report 2015 &

193



194

R 7S 2R B

Notes to Financial Statements

—“E-—RE+=-HF=+—H 31 December 2015

34. ZERE S z2EMIA 34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
REmESHR SR T A ZREE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
N instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
SREE Financial assets

—E-ffF
2015
ENR AHHE
7] CREE st
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
AR¥T R AR¥T T AR¥T R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments - 800,000 800,000
KRR K R & Trade and bills receivables 2,001,783 - 2,001,783
SFABRNRIE RE K Financial assets included in
HA e EIE 2 & Bl prepayments, deposits
BE and other receivables 154,992 - 154,992
JE U B Bk A £ 3K0A Amounts due from related parties 559 - 559
ZEER Entrusted loans 670,000 - 670,000
EBER Structured deposits 110,000 - 110,000
BT R Pledged deposits 1,830,908 - 1,830,908
NpEFERHa=H"A 2 Bank deposits with an initial term
RITER of over three months 623,442 - 623,442
BehBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,815,678 - 1,815,678
7,207,362 800,000 8,007,362
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34. HERE S 2EBMIT A (&) 34.

(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

—E-OF
2014
BERR A E
FEEE [E Y FIR SHEE @it
Available-
for-sale
Held for Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total
AREFT ARETT ARE®TR ARET:
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EH#\IEEJ %&é Available-for-sale investments _ _ 320,000 320,000
YRR ERE Trade and bills receivables - 1,642,917 - 1,642,917
FABMRE HER Financial assets included in
Hin U FIE 2 prepayments, deposits
tREE and other receivables - 549,906 - 549,906
REER Entrusted loans - 615,000 - 615,000
BREER Structured deposits - 2,211,160 = 2,211,160
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments 11,214 = = 11,214
[REARIPEE Pledged deposits - 893,483 - 893,483
NisErBa=EA2 Bank deposits with an initial term
ROIFR of over three months - 22,392 - 22,392
Re kB2 EEY Cash and cash equivalents - 1,428,074 - 1,428,074
11,214 7,362,932 320,000 7,694,146
SRAE Financial liabilities
—E—EHF —Z
2015 2014
2 12 86 B A R KR
AEZ FEZ
o8- LR AE
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised amortised
cost cost
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR KRR Trade and bills payables 678,535 467,624
ST AEMBENFIB M ERT A Financial liabilities included in
prlcd = = other payables and accruals 269,896 311,667
J& 15 BB A 3008 Amount due to a related party 2,166 1,860
Al AR & 5 Convertible bonds 3,117,009 2,864,675
FFERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 656,851 46,737
4,724,457 3,692,563
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35. M TEZAABRAAEE 35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

R OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
rEBzemIAREERAAE (R The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
FEEHEANABEGEMBSE BRI A instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
™ reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:
HRHEE ARE
Carrying amounts Fair values
“E-nf —E-mF “E-1fF —E-mF
2015 2014 2015 2014

ARBTR ARERTT ARBTR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

TREE: Financial assets:
AHHERE Available-for-sale investments 800,000 320,000 800,000 320,000
JE AR 3% Trade receivables 2,001,783 1,642,917 2,001,783 1,642,917
FABRTE e RHEM  Financial assets included in
BRHBEZEREE prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 154,992 549,906 154,992 549,906
R EHX Entrusted loans 670,000 615,000 670,000 615,000
HIETF T Structured deposits 110,000 2,211,160 110,000 2,211,160
THESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - 11,214 = 11,214
EEAER Pledged deposits 1,830,908 893,483 1,830,908 893,483
MiaGEFH@ =7 2HKIT Bank deposits with an initial term
e of over three months 623,442 22,392 623,442 22,392
RekBEEED Cash and cash equivalents 1,815,678 1,428,074 1,815,678 1,428,074
8,006,803 7,694,146 8,006,803 7,694,146
tRaRE: Financial liabilities:
ERERREE Trade and bills payables 678,535 467,624 678,535 467,624
ST AE fth B 1 5RIE K Financial liabilities included in other
Bz 2B R payables and accruals 269,896 311,667 269,896 311,667
& < BB A L3008 Amount due to a related party 2,166 1,860 2,166 1,860
kR ES Convertible bonds 3,117,009 2,864,675 3,117,009 2,864,675
STERTEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 656,851 46,737 656,851 46,737

4,724,457 3,692,563 4,724,457 3,692,563
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35. TR TAZARERQIARERE

(&)
TREERABCANENRZIAERA
FEAZ 577 (M3EsRASIERIHE) & Al
R THARGEEAR T HER
BETANGEAE

ReRBLEEY VRTFREAE =@
RAZBITEH ZRER &BEX B
BHEGER BRERLRZEE EHEX
REE GTABMRE Ee REME
WHIBz & BEE T AHMERKE
REFREBZ A E  BUL B
BRRZERGATHBAR ZERNA
AEREEEEES FEREAZS
TARBEANEE-

AERTEERUBERESRZARETD
ERAEFRLUER EERRNA T
Hi H ZIEEEHT—JHX S 2 FI = B3R FEH]
KRR EREME

AEEBERZEH I LITEER TR
TEERTA (BREPERAH) HK
REEREERLUZ AERMTE (K
RBREHE) ZEFEAMAZTETR
ZMGHBEGABE (BRY ST ZE
EE8x HNERRHMEBRER) - EZHE
BenZRRERE R AERR-

RZZE—AF+=-A=+—8B &km#E
EEZMTEEERBIRITETAY
FEARBREEZEETGEAE -EH
EERMRZEBEIETEBE AR LT
AETAREBEAABERRZHMEHT A
ZER S G EE AR S

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits
with an initial term of over three months, entrusted loans,
structured deposits, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets included
in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, amounts due
from/to subsidiaries and loans to subsidiaries approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank borrowings and
convertible bonds have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments on similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties. Derivative financial instruments,
including forward currency contracts, are measured using
valuation techniques similar to forward pricing, using present
value calculations. The models incorporate various market
observable inputs including the credit quality of counterparties,
foreign exchange spot and forward rates. The carrying amounts
of forward currency contracts are the same as their fair values.

As at 31 December 2015, the marked to market value of the
derivative asset position is net of a credit valuation adjustment
attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes
in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the hedge
effectiveness assessment for derivatives designated in hedge
relationship and other financial instruments recognised at fair
value.
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35. €M TEZAABRAAEE 35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

&g OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)
AREEBR Fair value hierarchy

TRINRASEESR T A AAE=E The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
FR: hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:
BAREHNEBZEE: Assets measured at fair value:
R-B-AF+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2015

ERANTREETAAENE
Fair value measurement using

EX

REE EATER TR

mENEE BAYE BAYE
(5-%&) (E=#&) (E=%) @t

Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ARBT T ARETR ARBTRT AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments - - - -
RZE—MNFE+=A=+—H As at 31 December 2014
FRNTEBETAAEME
Fair value measurement using
EWN
R B BERABE PABE
THMRE BAHE AR
(E—#R) (E=#) (E=H) B
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
AREFT ARETTT ARETTL AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - 11,214 - 11,214
RZEBE—RFF+_A=+—HEZ=Z The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
—mE+ZA=+—H AEBEIEE value as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.
A ARBEFECSHEE-
e R A e E R Rl During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were no
B -BMEALEFERE —REFE & transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
288 - JREESE = A H NS E SN 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2014: Nil).

B(ZZ—WF:E&)-
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36. IXEREEEERKEK 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BROTETRS AEEZTESHTA
BREATBEES RTERMESUR
RPEPRFER - ZEEMITAETES
RASEEEESEMFES AKHETN
BFZERHEMEMEERAE HINER
REEEEZBRBRR R ENERRK

AREBETITETARS TE2EHE
ZHRERSL BNREEAKEZE
EEZEBREL -

AEBEMTAELEZ T ERBATIE
R NERR - EERBRETSHESR
R - EEEEHRBEBRANERS
THE R BRABER T X o NEE
BRAMETIAZ @ BOREN M BRE
MisE2.4 °

A 2= & By
AEBFESMSHNXEHRAKRERE
AEEBFERMEHET (BERHAR
EREFEXAEAN—FRIMEEZ
RITERE)BH-

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise convertible bonds, bank loans and
cash and short-term time deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations
(including the bank borrowings due to repayment after one year
which contain a repayment on demand clause) with floating
interest rates.
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HMEE [ B

AEBEHRHEKER - ZERBIR
BIHE -AEBL76% (Z T —MF:
78% ) $HE LASNEEHE - T ELA AT 88
EVREBANNEEB ARBHE K
EEERFELC2EMERARPERS
W DUBRTEHAREERE ZINER

B o

AEEZBRBREMIAR 2 HHER
HHTETAZ S8 NESKRAH M
R

R-ZE—AF+-_A=1—H Xr&H
I B EPR R E R FEREE AT ZID
BHER (T —WF &) -

36. BEMEEBEFERBX 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#%&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
MERERE (&) Interest rate risk (continued)
TRINIHRIRERR  FEFTA Efth B 2 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
T ZERT - AN B KRR FDEE F the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in interest
REBA @B v BWRERE DT - rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax.
RR B Al
3@ AEsgm
THEEZ O 2)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
decrease in in profit
basis points before tax
ARETT
RMB’000
—E—FHEF 2015
AR 2= -5 If interest rate increases +50 (3,520)
N F| =T If interest rate decreases -50 3,520
—T-mF 2014
T &= ER If interest rate increases +50 (2,244)
WA =T If interest rate decreases -50 2,044

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales. Approximately 76% (2014: 78%)
of the Group’s sales were denominated in foreign currencies
other than the functional currency of RMB of the operating
units making the sales. The Group requires the major operating
unit to use forward currency contracts to eliminate the foreign
currency exposures on the forecast future sales.

It is the Group’s policy to negotiate the terms of the hedge
derivatives to match the terms of the hedged item to maximise
the hedge effectiveness.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had hedged none (2014:
none) of its foreign currency sales for which firm commitments
existed at the end of the reporting period.
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MERBEERFERBE 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
SNERR (2Z) Foreign currency risk (continued)
TRINIANFRERR £ E & The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
NEZIERT 2N & B B AR & the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in foreign
9|\ MERSEAELSLH CHERE DN currency exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
(AREMEERBBZARBRER of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value
) e of monetary assets and liabilities).
ShEfE 3 ¥ BRBE AT
EH TR FEzEe
Increase/
decrease in Effect on
foreign profit
currency rate before tax
AREBTT
% RMB’000
—E—HEF 2015
i AR H T HE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (46,722)
i AREHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 46,722
— 2014
i AR HETTHE If RMB strengthens against US$ +5 (63,836)
MAREHETRE If RMB weakens against US$ -5 63,836
EERRE Credit risk
AEEEENZ R EZERITCE=ZFE The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
TR - AEBZBREMBNRIEEE third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
H@ETRGZER  VAKRBEEZE wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
&f IHE A - 7N 5 B 45 A BE R R I FRUE procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
Heh BASEEE 2 ERRARY T E an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is
7( RN IEAMEB E B TIEEE not significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
BB 5 BRIFEREEEHHEE functional currency of the relevant operating units, the Group
Rl E: BRAAREETEHLTEER does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Hy o Head of Credit Control.
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36.

HHEEREEEBEREX
(%)

FERRE (&)

rEEHEMeREE (BRASLRS
EZEY ZREFR BEER CEAEF
R HEMEURBEARETITETA) 2
FEERBRREXZHEFEY MEAXER
SERESENZETIAZERHE:.

HRAEBRENEEEERTZE
“HETRG ALBERAR-FE
STFRBEREF /RZHFEE -N®
HHR AEEBETEESERER -
EAAREB30% (ZZF—MF:33%) &
93% (ZZE —HF:92% ) EWREER D
AREAEBZBEAERRARES
HRASEZFEREFHAERELZR
RAw HEAEBEEEY RBXKH
F AL AEEAEZEEREEES
[\ B o

ZN
E—FEABE RMBHRRMF10H

%o

FRAEBEREREER ZEERR
i

L

RBES R
AEBBBBERAPECHE T AEE
EcRRER R IAZEESRT
AR REE (PIMEKKRNR) 228
BARREXBZAFRERE -

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, entrusted loans,
structured deposits, pledged deposits, other receivables
and certain derivative instruments, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as 30% (2014: 33%)
and 93% (2014: 92%) of the Group’s trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. As the major customers of the
Group are all world-famous brand companies, which have
established long-term business relationships with the Group,
concentrations of credit risk are well managed by the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note
19 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
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36. BEMEEBEFERBX 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
REBESER (Z) Liquidity risk (continued)
R¥REHIR - IR B 5T 4 E B IR 4 R Et The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
B ArEEemARZYBHBBRANA the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
s 8 undiscounted payments, was as follows:
ZE-1f
2015
~MERE
REX  SRAER SWT=MEA -EME MEAL st
6to
Less than less than 1t02 Over
On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ERERRZE Trade and bills payables 35,717 642,818 - - - 678,535
Hit R 30E Other payables 269,896 - - - - 269,896
JER—Z BB A T8 Amount due to a related party - 2,166 - - - 2,166
mRRES Convertible bonds - 9,750 9,750 19,500 3,929,250 3,968,250
SRS Interest-bearing bank borrowings 656,851 - - - - 656,851
962,464 654,734 9,750 19,500 3,929,250 5,575,698
—E-mE
2014

~EAZE
REX  ORAER SRTZERA —EME MEN £ @it

6to

Less than less than 1t02 Over

On demand 6 months 12 months years 2 years Total

ARETT  AR%TR ARETT AR®TR ARETR ARET:R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

EREARZE Trade and bills payables 13,608 454,016 = = = 467,624
B ENFIE Other payables 311,667 = = = = 311,667
JEff—ZBE A L8 Amount due to a related party = 1,860 = = = 1,860
R ES Convertible bonds = 9,750 9,750 19500 3948750 3,987,750
SFTRBOEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings = 1,865 = = 44,872 46,737

325,275 467 491 9,750 19500 3993622 4,815,638
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36. IXEREEEERKE 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

204

(%)

EXEE
AEBEAREEZ T ZEARAERGERN
SERBEEZRNRBERRIFEARL
T PTFHEEH RSB RFERKAE
B

AEERBEERAEHEENAEE
BREE BHFBNFABRERERE K
SE T REAERREIRMS 2K E - R
REEEAXBOITR -BE2E_ZF—H
F+-_A=+—Bk=_ZF—NFE+_A
= +—BLFE BEHEEBREAHNE
Z BRI EEE-

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014.
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36. XREABEEEEREEK 36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(#&) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
BREE (F)
AEBFBEAEEL R (BEEEE
BAERHBBANES TR B ER &
EEEAES B RTEE FEREX-
FEHBR 2R R =48+ HL A < 2R IE % B A
A A R {4 — 4 BB R A £ 208 - m
S RBSEEY - BADETRRES
RAE D REE AR S R R
o NRERR EREBLEMT

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, advances
from customers, trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, and an amount due to a related party, less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital includes convertible bonds and equity
attributable to owners of the parent, less hedging reserve. The
gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

—E-afF —E-MF

2015 2014

AR T ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

TERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 656,851 46,737
ERTEE R R RIE Trade and bills payables 678,535 467,624
E b T FIE R EEFTFIE  Other payables and accruals 566,885 524,773
JE A< A Bt A = FKIE Amount due to a related party 2,166 1,860
ReMREEFEEY Cash and cash equivalents (1,815,678) (1,428,074)
(EOEEE Net debt 88,759 (387,080)
AR ES - BEMD Convertible bonds, the liability component 3,117,009 2,864,675
RARER ANEIGER Equity attributable to owners of the Company 13,074,120 11,795,569
Eapal= Hedging reserve - (9,363)
KRB ER Adjusted capital 16,191,129 14,650,881
BARRERFHE Capital and net debt 16,279,888 14,263,801
BEARGEL X Gearing ratio 1% (3%)
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37. EEEM 37.
M-E—RE KEMITIHHERA
—EMINEREALY - EEAEERE
Fis 5 FONERS H14 #0148 2 RITIE K
7 BEIE N B RS 4R R M 5505 o

38. & iE 38.
(a) KEHEAE
REBBBE A HECEHERH
HEESETHAEZMERKE -

R-ZE—RAE+-_A=+—H K
SEBRENAIMELEHEER

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

In 2015, the Group has entered into foreign currency swaps
contracts with terms of one year. Details of the Group’s bank
deposits, which are pledged for certain foreign currency swaps
held by the Group, are included in note 25 to the financial
statements.

COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments
The Group leases certain of its office premises and plant
under non-cancellable operating lease arrangements.

At 31 December 2015, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

ZARRERSWT operating leases as follows:
—E-afF —E-MF
2015 2014
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 81,293 73,804
F_EERF In the second to fifth years, inclusive
(RREEREMF) 178,760 187,068
RF® After five years 152,166 149,819
412,219 410,691
(b) EXREIE (b) Capital commitments
—E-IF —E-NF
2015 2014
AR® T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BETHBARBE Contracted, but not provided for:
BEME WEMEHE Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment 329,813 359,075
329,813 359,075
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38. AIE (#)
(c) RFEERHIEEHN
R—ZZT—AF+=_A=+—
H A&EEBFEERNR —-—FRAH
& LA208,046,3353 JT R EL 4
AR #1,323,531,0007T * M
5,800,000,000 8 [E #ER 4 A R #&
298,265,0007T * bA14,000,0008x
JCHELA) A R #108,260,0007T
A22,865,854% £ /& BRI ER 49 A
R #5156,944,0007T #) 1= i SN E &
HYHy I

39. LAREE
R-ZBE—RFE+-_A=1+—HB X~&EE
VmEALAEE-

o

40. BEEA TR 5
(a) AEEMITEBASZHSE

38. COMMITMENTS (continued)

39.

40.

(c) Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had
commitments to sell forward foreign exchange
contracts of US$208,046,335 for approximately
RMB1,323,531,000, JPY5,800,000,000 for approximately
RMB298,265,000, EUR14,000,000 for approximately
RMB103,260,000,CHF22,865,854 for approximately
RMB156,944,000 within one year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Compensation of key management personnel of the

Group
—E-EF —F-EF
2015 2014
AR TR ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEREAERAENS Remuneration of directors and
senior management 23,904 23,287

EHREERERTRAEFHEZ
E—SHBHN T BRI ES

Further details of the directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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40. AR B (2)
(b) EHEBALZXRS

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

fFE Continuing
BRZNBF 7S 3R 3R H fth b 5 F il 2 &2 In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
S9N REERFE A G EE A+ financial statements, the Group had the following material

ETTINERRS:

transactions with related parties during the year:

—ZE-HfF —E—mF
2015 2014
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEEEMNEXZESRAF Lease of apparel production
(TERMNEX]) HE properties from Ningbo Shenzhou
REEAEMZE Properties Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhou Properties”)* 9,284 9,851
2 Mt B8 B R AR Processing services provided
(TERMNtEE ) by Ningbo Shenzhou Shitong
Rz TR Knitwear Co., Ltd. (“‘Shenzhou
Shitong’)* 13,589 13,995
M) 4R B B2 2 70 B 2 A BR 2 A Purchase of packing materials from
([ERpERAA]) ™ Shaoxing County Huaxi Packaging
B YR Materials Company Limited
(“Huaxi Packaging Company”)** 46,438 43,516
* BEMNEERBMEBEAAN T — . Shenzhou Properties and Shenzhou Shitong are controlled

BITERES

by one of the Company’s executive directors.

> EFEEEQARBAARAR—EH b Huaxi Packaging Company is controlled by the relatives of

TEEZRBIRG)

one of the Company’s executive directors.

MEABA LT ZREREE HIRE The purchase and lease from the related parties were
EEARMEFZERPREH#HZA made according to the published prices and conditions

P R IRFETT

offered by the related companies to their major
customers.
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40. BBEA TR F (#)

41

(c) BEEBATZREEBESASR

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Outstanding balance with a related party

AEEHEABALTAEUTERX The Group had the following significant balance with its
R related party:
—B-HEF —T—mF
2015 2014
AR T ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE S BB Bk A = FIE Amount due to a related party
—HEZ5HM : — trade related:
EWRBPEmAT Huaxi Packaging Company 2,166 1,860
2,166 1,860

. AR BB BRI R

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

RABIRAIREBRRZHBEARNRE 2 &7 Information about the statement of financial position of the
BT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—E—HF —E—EF
2015 2014
AR¥ T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Y3 B K Property, plant and equipment 18 30
RETB AR ZZE Investments in subsidiaries 648,422 648,422
KTHBARIZER Loans to subsidiaries 5,408,283 3,452,732
EREBEELE Total non-current assets 6,056,723 4,101,184
REEE CURRENT ASSETS
JiE g BR 3R Trade receivables 92,481 120,146
FE U E T KT8 A R A% B Dividends receivable from
certain subsidiaries 2,069,645 1,834,849
BTHBARIZER Loans to subsidiaries 583,493 851,882
JE Y Bt /8 A Bl 5RIR Amounts due from subsidiaries 88,538 289,642
PTEEmIT A Derivative financial instruments - 11,214
ReRBASEEY Cash and cash equivalents 231,968 166,976
BRBEE Total current assets 3,066,125 3,274,709
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M. QT HMERREK (&)

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continuead)

—E—-HF —E—mF
2015 2014
AR T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ik R=Ri CURRENT LIABILITIES
B b e A5 5RIE I E AT RIA Other payables and accruals 823 1,222
TERITEE Interest-bearing bank borrowings 586,460 =
JE 1~ B B A B FIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 2,746,797 1,248,234
FE ST IR Tax payable (12,112) 3,186
LR AEE Total current liabilities 3,321,968 1,252,642
BhE (BE) BE NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/
ASSETS (255,843) 2,022,067
HWEERRBERE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 5,800,880 6,123,251
kRBERE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
AR ES Convertible bonds 3,117,009 2,864,675
REFIE A E Deferred tax liabilities - 1,850
BIERBEE Total non-current liabilities 3,117,009 2 866,525
FEE Net assets 2,683,871 3,256,726
R EQUITY
& AR Share capital 142,105 142,105
s (M5E) Reserves (note) 2,541,766 3,114,621
4R 25 Total equity 2,683,871 3,256,726
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continuead)

B - Note:
AABKFEEHEZENT A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
TRRES 2 E
R RER RAEEH EEHH HHEE RBRE REEBA BERIRE &3t
Equity
Share component Exchange Proposed
premium Capital of convertible Hedging fluctuation Retained final
account surplus bonds reserve reserve profits dividend Total
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR AREFT ARETR ARETT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZE-mE-A-A At 1 January 2014 2,031,861 727,430 - - (490,683) 88,238 824,920 3,181,766
FE2ENEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year = = = 9,363 5972 545,300 = 560,635
Wk ES 2 EEHR Equity component of
convertible bonds - - 197,140 - - - - 197,140
ER-E-ZEXRHRE  Final 2013 dividend declared - - - - = - (824,920) (824,920)
BE-Z-MERHMRE  Proposed final 2014 dividend (560,119) - - - = (543552) 1,103,671
WZZ—ME+-F=1—H At31 December 2014 1,471,742 727,430 197,140 9,363 (484,711) 89,986 1,103,671 3,114,621
FREENREE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - (9,363) 105,744 434,435 - 530,816
ER-T-MERERE Final 2014 dividend declared = - = - = - (1,103671)  (1,103,671)
BE-F-WEAHME  Proposed final 2015 dividend  (810,094) - - - - (444034 1,254,128
RZZ-FE+-A=+—-H At31December 2015 661,648 721,430 197,140 - (378,967) 80,387 1,254,128 2,541,766
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42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Exen T R"E=-A-+—B#LE
45 4 1) 3% B M5 ok

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 21 March 2016.
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HBERBE
Financial Information Summary
(RBEFHEIN FTESEAARETITIR)

(Amounts expressed in RMB’000 unless otherwise stated)

AEERBEAMBHREMBEEFRAER
EFBFEZEAGEEAREE BER
DB REREEE M

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
prepared on the basis as set out herein, is set out below:

BE+t-A=+-BLEE R+t=A=+-H

For the year ended 31 December/As at 31 December

—E-AHF —mE —EF—= —2——-F —E2——F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ARBTRE ARETT ARETR ARETRT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
E Results
KA Revenue 12,639,332 11,131,532 10,047,217 8,937,578 9,043,442
BEKA Finance costs (98,733) (46,442) (10,010) (29,987) (51,243)
B 75 B AR Profit before tax 2,886,901 2,543,347 2,201,209 2,005,465 2,059,420
R R A X Income tax expense (532,059) (476,717) (397,297) (383,985) (354,573)
F E Profit for the year 2,354,842 2,066,630 1,803,912 1,621,480 1,704,847
AT ALTE(hER Attributable to:
NEER A Owners of the parent 2,354,664 2,065,867 1,802,989 1,620,158 1,703,845
FEPE I 1 e 2 Non-controlling interests 178 763 923 1,322 1,002
2,354,842 2,066,630 1,803,912 1,621,480 1,704,847
EE-BER Assets, Liabilities and
FEF M ER Non-controlling
Interests
BEE Total assets 18,361,614 15,943,028 11,317,274 9,895,409 8,549,559
BEE Total liabilities (5,271,778)  (4,131,702) (985,617) (1,773,275)  (2,437,331)
FEPE )1 o Non-controlling interests (15,716) (15,757) (15,393) (34,764) (33,999)
13,074,120 11,795,569 10,316,264 8,087,370 6,078,229
Wist: AEBHE-—Z—NER—F—FHE+-H Note: The consolidated results of the Group for each of the two years ended

== Eﬁﬁli&%iZﬁmiﬁ'u&

F—xfmi&:%f£¢+—ﬂ_+fa
REBE - B ERIETE BV S BN 75 R

%%ﬂﬁﬁi%m1ﬁﬁﬁ%

31 December 2014 and 2015 and the consolidated assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group as at 31 December 2014
and 2015 are those set out on pages 107 to 211 of the financial
statements.
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SHENZHOU INTERNATIONAL
GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ehillt R Bx Sk @2 iR B IR 2 o

Ningbo Office Z i EE

18 Yongjiang Road
Ningbo Economic and Technical
Development Zone
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, PRC

PEDT R ER T
BRI 5 B
FLER 185%

Tel Z5%: (86) 574 8698 0102
Fax {8E: (86) 574 8698 0162

Hong Kong Office
FEMNER

Unit 2708, 27th Floor
Billion Plaza

8 Cheung Yue Street
Kowloon, Hong Kong

BBNERMBHLHR
BERESZ27TIE2708E

Tel BE: (852) 2310 4919
Fax H: (852) 2310 4929

Shanghai Office
LI BNER

26th Floor You Yi Time Building
159 Zhao Jia Bang Road

Xu Hui District

Shanghai, PRC

HE LEHRER

BB 1599
EBRERRAKE261E

Tel EBE: (86) 21 6403 1166
Fax {8E: (86) 21 5496 0947



	Cover
	Inside Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Profile
	Financial Highlights
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis – Operating Environment, Business Review and Future Prospects and Strategies
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Biographical Details of Directors and Members of Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Financial Information Summary
	Back Cover



